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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In 2021, standing at the new development stage, the Company
implemented the new development concept, integrated into the new
development pattern, and comprehensively unlocked high-quality
development. Facing the complicated external situation and arduous
tasks, cadres and employees cohesively focused on development and
its implementation. By virtue of advanced management experience and
talent team as well as the outstanding principal business advantages,
the Company continued to maintain the leading position in the field of
technology and environmental protection in the PRC's power industry.

In 2021, the Company firmly grasped the national development opportunity
of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”, seized the opportunity of
ecological and environmental protection and treatment along the Yangtze
River and Yellow River, deeply promoted the cultivation of three new
business directions of in-depth environmental treatment, resource
recycling and integrated intelligent energy, and made breakthroughs in
the acquisition of “specialized and advanced” cutting-edge technologies
and new products under the background of continuously consolidating the
existing core business advantages, comprehensively open a new chapter
in the Company’s high-quality development.

Looking forward to the future, the Company will take the national “14th
Five-Year Plan” as the guide and take the high-speed track of ecological
environment management, circular economy development and new energy
industry, so as to obtain new profit growth points of the Company. The
Company will continue to rely on the resource platform provided by the
Controlling Shareholder, China Datang, to further strengthen in-depth
exchanges with local governments, advanced enterprises in the industry,
universities and research institutes. In terms of market development,
production and operation, product manufacturing, technical services, and
new industry layout, we will deepen pragmatic cooperation, so as to build
the Company into a first-class comprehensive ecological environment
management service provider.

Chairman of the Board
Wang Yanwen
31 March 2022
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MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER

Dear Shareholders,

In 2021, with the strong support of Shareholders, the Company adhered
to the concept of green and low-carbon development, and won the
awards including “Civilized Unit Pacesetter in the Capital”, “2021 Golden
Bee Corporate Social Responsibility ® China List — Ecological Civilization
Enterprise”, “2021 Golden Key Action — Outstanding Winner”, “Top 50
Environmental Enterprises in China” and our comprehensive enterprise
strength has been significantly improved.

In 2021, the Company actively responded to the national “dual carbon”
goal. Four distributed photovoltaic projects including Baidu, Fangshan
Liangxiang Higher Education Park, Yankai Electric and the integrated
intelligent energy for office buildings were connected to the grid for power
generation on schedule, becoming China Datang's first batch of distributed
photovoltaic projects in Beijing. The catalyst has achieved impressive
results in overseas markets. The Company successfully entered into a
four-year overall purchase contract with CLP Group and 11 catalyst projects
in Daeyoung, South Korea, signed orders for the overseas steel industry of
Johnson Matthey Group in the United Kingdom, and obtained the supply
contract for the Reunion power plant in the Caribbean. The products of the
Company have been exported to more than 10 countries and regions. The
self-developed rotary atomization desulfurization wastewater treatment
technology has been successfully applied to the external market. The
Sanmenxia desulfurization gypsum reuse project has started construction,
and the green and low-carbon transformation continued to deepen.

In 2022, the Company will closely focus on the “14th Five-Year Plan”, and
accelerate the promotion of industrial upgrading in accordance with the
three major business transformation directions of in-depth environmental
governance, resource recycling and integrated intelligent energy. The
Company will actively develop new business formats such as energy
storage, battery-swapping heavy trucks and comprehensive energy
services in the park, concentrate superior resources and strength to
acquire a batch of “specialized and advanced” core technologies, and
strive to bring better returns to all Shareholders.

General Manager
Tian Dan
31 March 2022
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COMPANY PROFILE
REIEN

The predecessor of the Company (stock code: 1272) was China Datang Corporation Group Environment Technology Co.,
Ltd. (FEAEEBIRERITER2AR]), which was established in July 2011. Since the establishment of the Company and
after several years of rapid development and a series of business restructuring, the Company has been successfully listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 15 November 2016. As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a total
of 2,967,542,000 issued Shares, among which the Controlling Shareholder, China Datang, holds, directly and indirectly, an
aggregate of approximately 78.96%.

RAR MR - 1272) A1 F B20MF7AR AP EARAFEERBERMERAF « RARKUIAK @ KBS FHRRER
R—ZINEBER - ARFIBE2016511 A15AREMRPAERAI) EH - B2021F12A31H - ARF2EHTROHEHR
2,967,542,000/% + EAHERRERHEAEEE KEES HFEH78.96% KRN °

The Group is the sole platform for the development of environmental protection and energy conservation business under
China Datang Corporation, one of the major state wholly-owned power generation groups in the PRC. The principal business
of the Group includes environmental protection facility concession operation, denitrification catalysts, environmental protection
facilities engineering, water treatment business, energy conservation business and renewable energy engineering business.
FEER2EALEEHEREEE c —WFBEREEEETRERERDOEXEBHE—T A - REENTELLEBRBFRR
RIERFATAE - BmECA  RRBIETIZ - KBER - SEEBRAIBERRIEEY -

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s major corporate structure was as follows:
M2021F12A31H » RARIEZ2RERBAOT :

China Datang(; Ct::r)poration Ltd. Other public Shareholders
G| AT of H Shares
100% (PEARERARAT) HHRABES
China Datang Group Capital Holding Co., Ltd.
PRC) 78.17% 21.04%
(FEAEEBREAZRERAR)
(hED
‘ 0.79% The (%‘;2)‘“”‘/
(BRH)
(hE)
65% 56% 100% 92.11% 65% 50% 10%

China Datang Overseas
Power Operating Co., Ltd.

Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(REGLR) fige
FARAR)
(PE)

Engineering Co., Ltd.
(PRC)
(REAREER R TE
BRRAF)

(R )

Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(REELR) KB T2
BMARAR)
(RE)

Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(REBFORERHR
BRAMARR)
()

Technology Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

O T RERMIRR
FHEARRAE)
(RED)

100%

Datang Technologies & Engineering India

Private Limited

(India)
(REREIEEEERAT)
(ENE

£
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group
amounted to RMB5,288.4 million, representing a decrease of
22.5% as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit of the
Group amounted to RMB341.4 million, representing a decrease of
70.8% as compared with last year; the gross profit margin of the
Group was 6.5%, representing a decrease of 10.67 percentage
point as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the parent amounted to RMB-
209.9 million, representing a decrease of 169.2% as compared
with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group continued to be
the largest desulfurization and denitrification concession operator
and the largest manufacturer of denitrification catalysts in the PRC.

The Board proposed to distribute the final dividend of RMB0.0298
per share (before tax) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 154 B

The following table sets forth the Company’s consolidated statements of ~ TXRBIIAR G T REPENEHFIERE R EMEE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the periods indicated: Wz % :

Year ended 31 December

HZ128318LLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20195 20184 20176

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETFRT AREFRT AREFT

Revenue WA 5,288,416 6,821,071 6,414,621 8,588,070 8,024,494
Cost of sales SHERA (4,946,985)  (5,652,769)  (5,334,656)  (7,238,113)  (6,424,764)
Gross profit e 341,431 1,168,302 1,079,965 1,349,957 1,599,730
Selling and distribution expenses $4& k7 5 (18,151) (23,041) (36,898) (42,237) (46,036)
Administrative expenses G (478,694) (483,796) (549,695) (279,419) (293,094)
Other income and losses H U A K &8 80,436 82,240 132,290 169,414 429
Other expenses, net HibfE - 58 (42,145) (106,603) - - -
Finance costs B (221,959) (270,291) (252,841) (200,518) (182,831)
Impairment losses on financial ~ £EEMAREERE

and contract assets, net Bk 5 (39,130) (44,153) (69,678) (59,775) -
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRBAT(FE),/FE (378,212) 322,658 303,143 937,422 1,078,198
Income tax expenses FTE#AY (65,058) (111,298) (57,766) (154,199) (163,286)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R (&), /I8 (443,270) 211,360 245,377 783,223 914,912
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEREMEE WS

INCOME FOR THE YEAR, (MrBiE)

NET OF TAX (1,080) (40) 967 758 (930)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREGRELEE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR (444,350) 211,320 246,344 783,981 913,982

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to: (BR) FEREBR

Owners of the parent RRHEE A (208,332) 302,872 218,942 766,736 874,924
Non-controlling interests R R (234,938) (91,512) 26,435 16,487 39,988
(443,270) 211,360 245,377 783,223 914,912

Total comprehensive income  SEWBEESRER
attributable to:

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZFEPN (209,881) 303,319 219,666 768,183 874,403
Non-controlling interests PRI R (234,469) (91,999) 26,678 15,798 39,579
(444,350) 211,320 246,344 783,981 913,982
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)
MR (&)

The following table sets forth selected items from our consolidated &I~ BHRK PR A G SRR KRNI
statements of financial position as at the dates indicated: EEIEAE -

31 December

12A31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20205 20195 20185 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETFTR AREFRT AREFRT

ASSETS BE
Total current assets e EELEE 10,670,721 11,778,902 12,459,102 12,172,973 10,309,222
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 7,857,665 8,401,956 8,711,657 8,287,008 7,852,230
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 18,428,386 20,180,858 21,170,759 20,459,981 18,161,452
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EERER
Total current liabilities TEBEESE 9,478,199 9,927,604 10,574,779 10,195,621 8,181,413
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEESE 2,194,611 2,913,976 3,362,099 2,945,038 3,053,678
Total equity BrEs 6,755,576 7,339,278 7,233,881 7,319,322 6,926,361
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BEREREE

EQUITY 18,428,386 20,180,858 21,170,759 20,459,981 18,161,452

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated statements ~ FNREIIFTREERMOEHRESRERBN
of cash flows for the periods indicated:

Year ended 31 December

HZ128318LEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20195 20184 20176

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARBBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT AR%TR

Net cash flows from/(used in) TG (AR

operating activities EMEFE 987,035 1,838,799 (183,225) 487,782 873,831
Net cash flows used in investing %&EHFARRE

activities TMEFE (396,588) (608,905) (1,045,933) (839,589) (1,145,537)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BMEES(ER)/FEER

financing activities EREFE (876,728)  (1,276,650) 1,133,442 370,295 (979,554)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B DT

As an environmental protection and energy conservation solution provider
for coal-fired power generation enterprises, the principal business of the
Group includes environmental protection facility concession operation,
denitrification catalysts, environmental protection facility engineering,
water treatment business, energy conservation business and renewable
energy engineering business. Customers of the Group spread over 30
provinces, autonomous regions and municipal cities in the PRC as well
as eight countries.

.  INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Based on the overall performance of the environmental protection
industry in 2021, the following highlights and industry trends are
worth mentioning:

1. The “Dual Carbon” goal promotes the
development of integrated intelligent energy
business

In February 2021, the State Council issued the “Guiding
Opinions on Accelerating the Establishment and
Improvement of a Green and Low-Carbon Loop Development
Economic System ( BRINRET B2 4 O ERBERER
KmEEZNIEE B R ) ), which indicates the promotion
of green upgrade of the industry, strengthening of the
green environmental protection industry and promotion
of the green and low-carbon transformation of the energy
system. In October 2021, the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China and the State Council successively
issued the "“Opinions on Completely, Accurately and
Fully Implementing the New Development Concept and
Achieving Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality ( (B8R 2%
RETE SR ERESMITHEERFTMI/ENER) )"
and the “Carbon Peaking Action Plan by 2030 ( {20304
AIGEIETTEI A ZE) )" to put carbon peak throughout the
whole process and all aspects of economic and social
development, and focus on the implementation of the “Top
Ten Carbon Peaking Actions”, i.e., the energy green and
low-carbon transformation action, the energy conservation
and carbon reduction action, the industrial carbon peaking
action, the urban and rural construction carbon peaking
action, the transportation green and low-carbon action,
the circular economy supporting carbon reduction action,
the green and low-carbon technology innovation action,

2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (
SR ER

the carbon sink capacity consolidation and enhancement
action, the green and low-carbon common action and
orderly carbon peaking action in various regions. By 2030,
the consumption proportion of non-fossil energy sources
will reach approximately 25%, the total installed capacity
of wind power and solar power generation will reach more
than 1.2 billion kW, the carbon dioxide emissions will reach
a peak and achieve stable with a slight decline. The carbon
peaking goal will be successfully achieved by 2030. These
policies provide policy support for the Group to promote the
transformation of the integrated intelligent energy business
and accelerate the development of new energy.

The circular economy plan creates
opportunities for resource recycling
utilization business

In July 2021, the National Development and Reform
Commission has issued the “14th Five-Year” Circular
Economy Development Plan ( € [+ | fBREEHER
£1) ), which specified that by 2025, recycling production
should be comprehensively promoted, and green design
and clean production should be generally promoted, so
that the comprehensive utilization capability of resources
shall be significantly improved, and the resource recycling
industry system shall be basically established, and the
output value of resource recycling utilization industry will
reach RMBS5 trillion. At present, the Company is conducting
the desulfurization gypsum reuse, the treatment and
disposal of waste catalysts and other businesses. Also,
the Company is proactively exploring other new resource
recycling utilization businesses including waste fan blade
and photovoltaic components.

The battle of pollution prevention and control
expands the room of in-depth environmental
governance business

In November 2021, the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council issued the “Opinions
on Deepening the Battle of Pollution Prevention and Control
(BRRAFT ISR e BEER)". By 2025, the
ecological environment will continue to improve, the total
emissions of major pollutants will continue to decline,
the carbon dioxide emissions per unit of gross domestic
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product will drop by 18% compared with 2020, and the
concentration of fine particulate matter (PM2.5) in cities at
the prefecture level and above will drop by 10%. The ratio
of days with good air quality will reach 87.5%, the ratio of
surface water I-lll water bodies will reach 85%, and the
ratio of coastal waters with good water quality (classes
| and Il) will reach approximately 79%. Heavy weather
pollution and urban black and odorous water bodies will be
basically eliminated, soil pollution risks will be effectively
managed and controlled, solid waste and new pollutant
control capabilities will be significantly enhanced, quality
and stability of ecological system will continue to improve,
and the ecological environment governance system will be
more complete. The construction of ecological civilization
will achieve new progress. By 2035, green production and
lifestyles will be widely formed, carbon emissions will
stabilize with some decline after peaking, the ecological
environment will fundamentally improve, and the goal of
building a beautiful China will be basically achieved. This
policy provides a policy guarantee for the development of
the Group's environmental governance business, and the
environmental protection industry still has considerable
room for development.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2021, the Group recorded steady development in each business
segment and maintained the leading position in business segments
of environmental protection facility concession operation and
denitrification catalysts. Based on the cumulative operating unit
capacity as of the end of 2021, the Group continued to maintain its
position as the largest flue gas desulfurization and denitrification
concession operator in the PRC. Based on the total output of
denitrification catalysts in 2021, the Group remained as the PRC's
largest producer of denitrification catalysts.

In 2021, all of the Group's desulfurization concession operation and
denitrification concession operation projects under construction
have transferred into operational stage in respect of the
environmental protection facility concession operation business.
While consolidating its leading position in the environmental
protection field of thermal power segment, the Group actively
developed environmental protection governance businesses in
steel, cement, metallurgy and other non-electric fields to expand
its business scope and influence.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (
BEE

1. Environmental Protection and Energy
Conservation Business

1.1

Environmental protection facility concession
operation business

The Group's environmental protection facility
concession operation business covers desulfurization
and denitrification concession operations and its
major assets are located along east coast and in the
areas with relatively robust economic development
and strong demands for electricity. The following
map shows the geographical layout and cumulative
capacity of the Group's concession operation as at
31 December 2021:

ﬁ] Desulfurization Concession Operation
BEREE

B Denitrification Concession Operation
PR R E R

ﬁ: In operation: 1,920MW
128 1,920MW

In operation: 2,640MW
1248 2,640MW

[ In operation: 4,800MW
1248 4,800MW

In operation: 1,000MW
#3%: 1,000MW

B8 In operation: 1,000MW
248: 1,000MW

In operation: 10,120MW
123E: 10,120MW

[P In operation: 1,425MW
83 1,425MW

ﬁ: In operation: 1,200MW
$248:1,200MW

s In operation: 1,200MW
$#3E: 1,200MW

ﬁ: In operation: 1,920MW
i:1,920MW
i 181,920

In operation: 1,320MW
$E: 1,320MW
s 81,320

As at 31 December 2021, the cumulative
installed capacity in operation for desulfurization
concession operations of the Group reached
50,210MW. The cumulative installed capacity in
operation for denitrification concession operations
reached 41,240MW and the installed capacity of
the desulfurization entrusted operation projects
reached 1,960MW. Among them, there are three
projects other than China Datang Group, with the
desulfurization installed capacity of 3,240MW and
denitrification installed capacity of 1,320MW.

CONTINUED)
i B2 AT (48

IRRERERT

1.1.

BRREFTEERE

REEIRRBIEFIEE
EEREDNR - AR AT
K FTBEESPAR
s - BRI
- AERREERNH
@ o TE®BERR2021F
12 A3 AR E S EE
B D R REAE

In operation: 1,400MW
158: 1,400MW

B In operation: 1,400MW
138: 1,400MW

ﬁ: In operation: 7,030MW

1%3E: 7,030MW

s In operation: 7,030MW
1218 7,030MW

In operation: 4,040MW
1838: 4,040MW

[ In operation: 4,040MW
1218: 4,040MW

In operation: 5,260MW
1938: 5,260MW

3 In operation: 3,960MW
183 3,960MW

In operation: 5,780MW
$23&: 5,780MW

B In operation: 5,140MW
1558: 5,140MW

- In operation: 2,400MW
155E: 2,400MW

In operation: 2,000MW
138: 2,000MW

ﬁ: In operation: 5,200MW.
1%38: 5,200MW

B In operation: 5,200MW
$523&: 5,200MW

HE2021F12A318 -
REBBRFRETCE RaT
KB RMAE502100
B B EE Rt
WEBEMAE41,2405K
B BHEEREEEl
HEHARET1,960KF - &
o PR KRS E S
BESME  PImERAS
3,240 FL - BRASEER
81,3200 F

T FFERSE
AERFEERERNHARAR
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BEE AT (8)

TRIRN2021F12 A31 B AL
B A R B A AT A TR B 1B

The table below sets forth the status of the Group’s
desulfurization and denitrification concession

12
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operation projects as at 31 December 2021:

Category of Installed
Project location Project name concession operation capacity
HE FTE HE ERE R E R HBRE
(MW)
CER)
Guangdong Chaozhou Desulfurization and denitrification 3,200
R BN WiEE - WiRs
Leizhou Desulfurization and denitrification 2,000
B M AT AT
Jiangsu Lvsigang Desulfurization and denitrification 2,640
L& =puihess iam ~ B aE
Nanjing Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
R WiER - WiRe
Xutang Desulfurization 1,300
"yE s
Shandong Huangdao Desulfurization and denitrification 1,340
TS =HE Wies - WiRs
Binzhou Desulfurization and denitrification 700
B i~ B A
Dongying Desulfurization and denitrification 2,000
RE AR - BiRE
Zhejiang Wushashan Denitrification 2,400
pziipan S22 it B
Ningxia Pingluo* Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
] FEE> it~ B A
Henan Xuchang Desulfurization 2,020
A E= i
Sanmenxia Desulfurization and denitrification ~ 2,950/1,050
=Pig b ~ AR AH
Anyang Desulfurization 1,270
7[5 i B
Shouyangshan Desulfurization 600
ELN i B
Xinyang (entrusted) Desulfurization 1,960
55 (&%) Fit i
Gongyi Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
£ AR ~ BihH
Hebei Wangtan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,200
b T Aia ~ AR A
Zhangjiakou Thermal Power  Desulfurization and denitrification 630
RRAHE AR ~ BihH
Zhangjiakou Desulfurization 2,560
RE A ko0
Yuxian Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
55 AR - BiRE
Tangshan Beijiao Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
& ILERD Fian - BihE

B
?’,%,
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NTINUED)

Category of Installed
Project location Project name concession operation capacity
BB HEERB TR EER EBRAE
(MW)
(JER)
Tianjin Jixian Desulfurization and denitrification 1,200
xoE #15% B - Ry
Anhui Luohe Desulfurization and denitrification 2,500
i & B - R
Ma'anshan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
S B B
Hushan Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
ELL BiE B
Tianjia'an Desulfurization 640
eSS it B
Shaanxi Binchang Desulfurization and denitrification 1,260
i 2 Bia - B A
Baoji Desulfurization and denitrification 660
55 BiER - BiRE
Inner Mongolia Tuoketuo Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320/6,120
Ny Rt Bea - B
Xilinhot Desulfurization and denitrification 1,320
BB Bea - B AE
Jiangxi Fuzhou Desulfurization 2,000
i} M it A%
Shanxi Shentou Desulfurization and denitrification 1,000
1] FEE Fea - A
Xinjiang Hutubi* Desulfurization 600
s I [ ¥ * ik
Wu Cai Wan* Desulfurization 1,320
R & % B
Liaoning Shendong Desulfurization and denitrification 700
BRE BR Wea - B hE
Huludao Desulfurization and denitrification 700
RS BimE - BiRE

Note: The projects marked with * are projects other

than China Datang Group.

i AERTEMEER
ALK R B AN
HE
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1.2 Denitrification catalysts business

In 2021, the Group's denitrification catalysts
business remained stable. The following table
sets forth the breakdown of the key figures of the
Group's denitrification catalysts business in 2021:

Production volume Sales volume

Delivery volume

12.

RIEEL R R

20214 - ANE B HHE
LB ZEBRZERE - T%
FI| 7R 2021 F 7N 5 & i
LB H /= BEIEA
4

(Unit: m3)
(Ef7 : 7 752K)

Delivery volume to customers
other than China Datang Group

ER HE RYE FEAEREANEFRGE
26,406 35,065 30,819 13,216

In 2021, the Group sold 15,727m?® of catalyst to
customers other than China Datang Group and
entered into 112 contracts, among which, 19
contracts were entered with overseas customers
with the aggregate sales volume of 7,162.7m3,
while 65 contracts were entered with customers
from non-electric industry such as glass and alumina
sectors with the aggregate sales volume of 2,790m?.
Meanwhile, the Group has made steady progress in
the disposal of waste catalysts with a total amount
of 8,633.18m? of waste catalysts disposed in 2021.

1.3 Environmental protection facility engineering
business

In 2021, the Group continued to carry out its
environmental protection facility engineering
business, including desulfurization, denitrification,
dust removal, ultra-low emission, and industrial
site dust management, and actively explore the
environmental market of non-electric industry such
as petroleum, coking, steel, and cement.
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B HE 2021 F K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

The following table sets forth the breakdown of
the environmental protection facility engineering
business in the power industry of the Group as at
31 December 2021:

NTINUED)

B w0 AT ()

Projects put into
operation in 2021

TR RR2021F12 8
INBAEBEHTEERR
BRI REEEHARIBIRA
4

Projects under
construction in 2021

2021FHREIEB 2021FEEIER
Number  Capacity Number  Capacity

Project BH BE HERE BE HEHAE

(MW) (MW)

(kR) (kr)
Desulfurization Jilz8T 4 470 2 30
Denitrification RS 15 8,740 11 3,300
Dust removal FREE 2 420 0 0
Ultra-low emission HEBIEHER 0 0 0 0
Industrial site dust treatment T 2R [@ AT 5 10,360 1 2,640

1.4.  Water treatment business 14. KHEEH
In 2021, the Group entered into 4 contracts for 20214 - ﬁ%@xa 1K
waterworks projects, with a total contract amount BIRBEBEAME  #BsE
of RMB106 million, among which, for the market FEeEARE1.061ETT °
other than China Datang Group, the Group obtained B EPBIKEEEMNU
projects from China Resources (Holdings) Company SNERRIEER(EE) A
Limited and Inner Mongolia Mengtai Coal & RARFMAZTHEREE
Electricity Group Co., Ltd. (REXEHEHREEEEE EEERARIER - AE
[RA7]) for the first time. The rotary atomization EEeEEmmEE R
desulfunzanon wastewater treatment technology W BEK BRI R AT A TN B R
independently developed by the Group has been ZERIEE - AEHAINE
successfully applied to the Nanjing project, which MREHERE o
is of pioneering and exemplary significance.
2. Overseas Business 2. BHIEH

HZE2021F128318 » AEH
BINEBTTIEBSE - HpZEEH
NPP5A - NPPO K PTGIE B B %

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had five overseas
projects under progress. Among which, the NPP5A, NPP9
and PTG projects in Thailand have been put into operation,

the desulfurization project for No. 1 and No. 2 generating ABEET Eﬂfgﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ
units in Cuddalore in India ran steadily after officially put HEB1 - 25)%*%%HE‘HX &8

into operation. IBE ©

T FFERSE 15
AERBREREERNHERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENmEDI(E)

3.

Renewable Energy Business
3.1 Engineering Business

In 2021, the Group entered into 7 renewable energy
engineering projects, of which 6 are photovoltaic
engineering projects with installed capacity of
396.09MW, and 1 is wind power engineering project
with installed capacity of 130MW.

3.2 Investment Business

In 2021, the Group entered into 3 distributed
photovoltaic investment projects with total installed
capacity of 3.06MW, all of which have been
connected to the grid for power generation.

Research and Development

In 2021, the Group continued to intensify technological
innovation, successively set up the “technological
innovation leading group” and the working group for
"accelerating mastery of core technologies”, carried out
special promotions for five key self-developed technological
projects urgently needed by the Group. The Group organized
high-level technical developers to fully investigate domestic
and foreign technologies and market development condition
so as to provide support for the Group's precise positioning
of medium and long-term development direction.

In 2021, the Group was awarded 137 patent authorizations
in aggregate, including 24 invention patent authorizations. In
March, the “ISO International Standard Evaluation Method
for the Treatment and Reuse Technology of Industrial
Wastewater (L2 EE/K IR B AEAMEHEE)” (1SO 23043),
jointly prepared by the Group and Nanjing University,
was officially released and implemented. The Group has
completed the leading preparation and publication of 3
international standards.

The "Development and Engineering Demonstration of
Smart Denitrification Technology under Ultra-Low Emission
(BEERER TEEMERINAE R TETRE)” and the
"Research on Chemical Composition Analysis of Catalysts
(Tablet Method) (fE{LEI(LERK D DT (B IX)BFE) "
independently developed by the Group won the first prize
of technical achievement of China Electricity Technology
Market Association, and the “Control System and Method
of SCR Denitrification Ammonia Injection Optimization (SCR
AR RS IE B LIEHI K& K J75%K)" won the first prize of patent
of China Electricity Technology Market Association.

2021 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

There are inter-segment sales among the Group’s segments and
sub-segments, and accordingly the Group records intra-segment
elimination and inter-segment elimination among these segments/
sub-segments for the relevant revenue and cost of sales. In this
annual report, unless otherwise specified herein, (i) all discussion
about total revenue, total gross profit and overall gross profit
margin are based on the amounts after all intra- and inter-segment
elimination among the segments/sub-segments (being the figures
reflected in our consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income), and (ii) all discussion about the revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin of business segments and
sub-segments are based on the amounts before any intra- or inter-
segment elimination of such segment or sub-segment.

1. Overview

The Group's revenue decreased by 22.5% from RMB6,821.1
million in 2020 to RMB5,288.4 million in 2021. The
Group's profit for 2021 amounted to RMB-443.3 million,
representing a decrease of RMB654.7 million as compared
with RMB211.4 million in 2020. Profit attributable to owners
of the parent amounted to RMB-208.3 million. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
decreased by 18.7% to RMB1,244.9 million as compared
with RMB1,531.7 million as at 31 December 2020. The
Group's total assets decreased by 8.7% to RMB18,428.4
million as at 31 December 2021 as compared with
RMB20,180.9 million as at 31 December 2020. The Group's
total liabilities decreased by 9.1% to RMB11,672.8 million
as at 31 December 2021 as compared with RMB12,841.6
million as at 31 December 2020. The Group's return on total
assets for 2021 was -2.3%, as compared with 1.0% in 2020.

NTINUED)
EREHBAD TR

S FHERHMEBERKAREER

BRI R R 3 th

REBHS M FHBERCEFED
*IZFEJiﬁ% B L 35 A 4B B IR A RN K

B8 F o SRR o 2B A K EH F D
Fﬂiﬁﬁ% EARFRP - Kﬁ#;@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ

CFTEMBIA - BEFRBEE
a’“'JTEI’J*T iﬁﬁmw%mm%mm
DESAFI D EE R AN S (AR T
BMMEEEREMGERERTHN
SRE)HELT &n)ﬁfrﬁ%ifw“%&%’“
KFIURA ~ EF R EMNET I ERZ
E.IW%’MBE’JTEH’MBW&’MBF'EHK%
IR RRHETT ©

1. %

REBHIWAR2020F AR
¥ 6,821.1 8 B LA 2 22.5%
2021 F M ARMS528848
BT AEER2021FHF
BMAARK 4433 E T &
2020F MR AR 21148
ETRLOARKE4ATEETT °
JRREBABRENBAEAR
¥ 2083EBIL - AEEMR
& MBS EEWH2020F12 A
STEMARKIBIITIEE T
A 18.7% £2021F 12 A31H
MARBE12449F 8T - A&
BR42EER2020F12H31H
M AR#20,180.9H & st 4
8.7%ZE2021F 12 A31HHAR
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BEEMR2020F12H31HB A
R#128416EEBTHL9.1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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2. Results of Operations

2.1

22

2.3

24

25
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Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by 22.5% to
RMB5,288.4 million in 2021 as compared with
RMB6,821.1 million in 2020, primarily due to the
decrease in revenue of engineering businesses.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales decreased by 12.5%
to RMB4,947.0 million in 2021 as compared
with RMB5,652.8 million in 2020. The decrease
of the Group's cost of sales was mainly due to
the decrease in costs along with the decrease in
revenue of engineering businesses.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses
decreased by 20.9% to RMB18.2 million in 2021
as compared with RMB23.0 million in 2020.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by
1.1% to RMB478.7 million in 2021 as compared
with RMB483.8 million in 2020. This was mainly due
to the reduction of the Company's labor dispatch
personnel.

Other income and losses

The Group’'s other income decreased to RMB80.4
million in 2021 as compared with RMB82.2 million in
2020. This was mainly due to the increase in loss on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
compared with last year.

BEXR
21. KA
REERUWAE2020FH

2.2

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

AR®6,821.18 8 TR
122 5% E2021FH AR
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ﬁ °

HERF

REE R SEE K AN 2020
FMARYS6528H &
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REEHFEENATHREE
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HERDHMAZ

REBOBEERDHEAS
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Other expenses, net

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 60.5%
to RMB42.1 million in 2021 as compared with
RMB106.6 million in 2020, mainly because Datang
Hami 13th Division Clean Energy Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Datang Xinjiang"”) signed a compensation
agreement with China Datang Technologies
& Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Technologies &
Engineering Company”), which stipulated that
Datang Xinjiang would pay a total of RMB49,432,000
in compensation to Technologies & Engineering
Company for the termination of a construction
contract and Technologies & Engineering Company
recorded the compensation in other income
accordingly.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 17.9%
to RMB222.0 million in 2021 as compared with
RMB270.3 million in 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in the balance of long term interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group and the replacement
of high-interest bank borrowings through the
issuance of super short-term commercial papers,
which lowered the finance cost.

Profit before tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group's
profit before tax decreased by 217.2% to
RMB-378.2 million in 2021 as compared with
RMB322.7 million in 2020.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense was RMB65.1
million in 2021, representing a decrease of 41.5%
from RMB111.3 million in 2020, mainly due to the
decrease in profit before tax.

2.6

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.
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Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the year decreased by
RMB654.7 million from RMB211.4 million in 2020
to RMB-443.3 million in 2021. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group's profit for the year
as a percentage of its total revenue decreased to
-8.4% as compared with 3.1% in 2020.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

The profit attributable to owners of the parent
decreased by RMB511.2 million to RMB-208.3
million in 2021 as compared with RMB302.9 million
in 2020.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

The profit attributable to non-controlling interests
of the Group decreased by 156.7% to RMB-234.9
million in 2021 as compared with RMB-91.5 million
in 2020.

2.10.

2.11.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

Results on Business Segments

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
revenue by segment/sub-segment and each segment/
sub-segment as a percentage of total revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, as well as the

percentage of change:

NTINUED)

EREHBAD TR

REHBER

NEBMAEE F2021F K20204F
12A31BIEFEH S FEHB D EBk
TFHEU AR - & B HBURA
MEDLEREED LI TERAA
e

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12RNALEE
2021 2020
20215 20008
Percentage of Percentage
total revenue of total
before revenue before
Revenue  elimination" Revenue  elimination” Change
LRl (53R N
WA BRALAN AN AR 2t
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARETR NEETT
Environmental Protection and Energy Conservation BREEEAFE !
Solutions:
Total revenue of environmental protection and energy  SFREIEER FRESEALMA
conservation solutions before elimination ‘ 5,003,199 929 4,984,935 ni 04
Intra-segment elimination® Pt (90,171) (106,160)
Total revenue of environmental protection and energy  RIREEER AR PR HE
conservation solutions after intra-segment elimination ~ #UA 4,913,028 4,878,775 07
Inter-segment elimination AP - -
External revenue of environmental protection and ~ BREEERFEHMIRA
energy conservation solution 4,913,028 4878775 07
Renewable Energy Engineering: BARRIR:
Total revenue of renewable energy engineering ABLERTRENA
business ‘ 307,767 5.1 1,851,317 26.6 -834
Inter-segment elimination AHEER - -
External revenue of renewable energy engineering  FIBAEFIREMIUA 307,707 1,861,317 834
Thermal power engineering: AEIR:
Total revenue of thermal power engineering AETRAYHA 927 0.0 1,136 0.0 -183
Inter-segment elimination APEEH - -
External revenue of thermal power engineering RETRHMPRA 927 1,136 -183
Other businesses: R -
Total revenue of other businesses EHEBEPA 73,989 14 117,270 17 -36.9
Inter-segment elimination® APEHEE (7,295) 27,426) 734
External revenue of other businesses HHEBHMIBA 66,694 89,844 258
Total revenue before elimination® EHAUALEY 5,385,882 100.0 6,954,657 1000 26
Total intra- and inter-segment elimination” xiilisaked (97,466) (133,586)
Total revenue LON 3 5,288,416 6,821,071

T FFERSE
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Represents the revenue of each business segment
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment
elimination) as a percentage of the total revenue before
any intra- or inter-segment elimination.

Intra-segment elimination of revenue from sub-
segments under environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions segment mainly arises from the
intra-segment sales between denitrification catalysts
sub-segment to energy conservation sub-segment and
environmental protection facility concession operation,
respectively.

Inter-segment elimination of revenue from other
businesses segment mainly arises from the inter-
segment sales between other businesses segment
and environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions.

Represents the aggregate amount of the revenue of
all segments/sub-segments before any intra- or inter-
segment elimination.

Represents the aggregate amount of all intra- and inter-
segment elimination.
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(3)

(4)
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's TERHFINAEBEEHZE
gross profit by segment/sub-segment and gross profit 20214 K 202012 A 31
margin of each business segment/sub-segment for the BEFESH»HXTFHE
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, as well as the HIERN - EFEBFMIA L
percentage of change in gross profit: EMBIRE :

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12BNALEE
2021 2020
2021% 20208
Gross profit Gross profit Change of
Gross profit™ margin®  Gross profit”! margin® gross profit
W i g EARL
RIMB'000 % RMB 000 % %
AREFR NRETT
Total gross profit of environmental protection ~ RRTEBAFEEER
and energy conservation solutions 297,943 6.0 1,071,257 215 -12.2
Total gross profit of renewable energy TELRRIREER
engineering 225 0.1 5,11 28 -99.6
Total gross profit of thermal power engineering ~ XEIREAZER| (35) (38) (546 (48.1) 936
Total gross profit of other businesses At ERAZR 19,190 259 35,091 299 453
Total gross profit and overall gross profit margin® BEF|KEFE6 341,431 65 1,168,302 171 708
Notes: W
(1) Calculated based on the revenue of each segment (1) IZIRE D ER S F D B AU A
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment (fF1a] 53 BB A 3K 5> 2P ) K 8
elimination) minus the cost of sales of such segment BT EZ D 2 F 9 2HY
or sub-segment (before any intra- or inter-segment EEKN(FM DI A D
elimination). IR EH AT FTEASH o
2) Calculated based on the gross profit of each segment or 2) TRE”%%\EBT%’\ZME%ZL
sub-segment calculated according to note (1) divided by MMM ESHNER
the revenue of such segment or sub-segment (before SRR AL D Ebsk 5 B Y
any intra- or inter-segment elimination). JJ&()\({_TEH/\—”-BW&/\—*LB &
AT FHESH
(3) Total gross profit equals total revenue (being the (3) 48 F R Z A 48 U0k A (BD i i
revenue reflected on our consolidated statement of ERMOA GBS R E MR
profit or loss and other comprehensive income) minus ASEXR AR =8
total cost of sales (being the cost of sales reflected on $H AR (B S B 7E BP9 9
our consolidated statement of profit or loss and other AMEREEMGEKER

comprehensive income). Overall gross profit margin
equals total gross profit divided by total revenue.

ERBERTE) o BEFE
To A AT E R b Sl
HEAE - -
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BEE AT (8)
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Cash Flows

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents decreased by 18.7% to RMB1,244.9 million
as compared with RMB1,531.7 million as at 31 December
2020, mainly attributable to the decrease in the cash flow
generated from operating activities of the Group.

Working Capital

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net current assets
decreased by 41.0% to RMB1,092.5 million as compared
with RMB1,851.3 million as at 31 December 2020, primarily
due to the decrease in contract assets, trade receivables
and cash and cash equivalents.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's borrowings
decreased by 1.9% to RMB5,952.8 million as compared
with RMB6,070.9 million as at 31 December 2020.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure decreased by 70.7% to
RMB129.0 million in 2021 as compared with RMB439.8
million in 2020. Capital expenditure mainly comprises costs
of long-term assets including acquisition or construction of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
ERENWEDIT(E)
8.  Financial Ratios 8. M¥H=®E
The following tables set forth certain of our financial ratios TREHIRFTR B A A &AM
as at the dates and for the periods indicated: METHHLER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Current ratio BN E 111.5% 118.6%
Quick ratio RENLE = 109.4% 116.7%
Liabilities to assets ratio BEEELE 63.3% 63.6%
Leverage ratio (Y e s 69.7% 61.8%
Return on total assets 42E E Bl -2.3% 1.0%
Return on equity &N EIE &S -6.3% 2.9%
9. Significant Investment 9. HEX¥HE
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made HZE2021F12831HLEFE -
no significant investment. REBIWHEBEBAERE -
10. Material Acquisition and Disposal 10. EXKBRHEFER
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no HZE2021F12831HILEFE -
material acquisition or disposal. AEBFBTHESEAMNBREES
15 o
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MANAGEMENT[NSCUSSK»JAND/WM&YSB(CONNNUED)

BIRE 5w

DT (&)

11. Contingent Liabilities

(a)

(b)
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India Gujarat Project

As mentioned in note 6(b) to financial statements,
on 16 March 2019, the Group's subsidiaries,
Technologies & Engineering Company and Datang
Technologies & Engineering India Private Limited
("Technologies & Engineering India”) signed
construction contracts for desulfurisation and wet
chimney with Gujarat State Electricity Corporation
Limited (“GSECL"). Due to the impact of COVID-19,
the construction progress was delayed and GSECL
issued a formal notice which accused the Company
of default and stated that it might take measures
such as terminating the contract, redeeming the
performance guarantee letter, and entrusting the
work to others to complete. The Group fully accrued
provisions of RMB75,848,000 for the redemption
of the performance guarantee letter, and also
considers that the corresponding advance receipts
of RMB25,835,000 will no longer be obligated to be
returned after the redemption of the performance
guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses of
RMB50,013,000 accordingly, but the likelihood of
occurrence of other compensations about these
contract disputes cannot be estimated reliably.

India NLC Project

As mentioned in note 6(b) to financial statements,
on 6 March 2020, Technologies & Engineering
Company signed a construction contract with NLC
India Limited (“NLC India”). Due to the impact of
COVID-19, the construction progress was delayed,
and NLC India issued a formal notice to request to
terminate the contract and redeem the performance
guarantee letter amounting to RMB47,303,000. In
addition, the claims brought by NLC India also include
the costs incurred in re-tendering and the arbitration
progress. The Group fully accrued a provision of
RMB47,303,000 for the request of redeeming the
performance guarantee letter, and incurred other
expenses of RMB47,303,000 accordingly, but the
likelihood of occurrence of other compensations
about these contract disputes cannot be estimated
reliably.

11.
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V.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C

RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks on environmental protection and energy
conservation policies

The Group provides substantially all of its products and services in
the PRC, and the development of its business is greatly dependent
on the environmental protection policies of the PRC.

Environmental protection industry is one of the major industries
that benefit from the constant support of the PRC government.
The market demand for the Group’s environmental protection
and energy conservation products and services and the revenue
generated therefrom are directly affected by the environmental
protection policies of the PRC. However, there is no assurance that
such policies will continue to be available to the Group or there
will be no adverse change. If there is any adverse change, it may
result in a material and adverse effect on the business prospects,
results of operations and financial condition of the Group. The
management of the Group is of the view that, given the severity
of pollution in the PRC, it is unlikely for the PRC government to
revise such environmental protection policies regarding the adverse
effect or to withdraw any resources invested in the environmental
protection industry. Moreover, the Group, as a trendsetter and
leader of the environmental protection and energy conservation
for the PRC's electric power industry, has participated in the
formulation of various industrial policies and standards, which
allows it to catch the latest industry trends and respond in a
timely fashion.
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Risks on connected transactions with China
Datang Group and its connected persons

The Group has been conducting various transactions with China
Datang Group and its connected persons, and will continue to
enter into such transactions in the future. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the total value of goods sold and services
provided by the Group to China Datang Group and its connected
persons was approximately RMB4,738.4 million, representing
approximately 89.60% of the total revenue of the Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total value of goods purchased
and services received by the Group from China Datang Group and
its connected persons was approximately RMB1,518.9 million,
representing approximately 30.70% of the total cost of the Group.
The Group has been actively expanding its client base. For example,
during 2021, the Group entered into contracts in the amount of
RMB511 million with clients other than China Datang Group and
its connected persons, representing approximately 28.54% of the
total contract amount of the Group.

Liquidity risks

The Group had positive operating cash flows of RMB987.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group cannot assure
that its operating cash flow for any future period will be positive.
The Group's ability to generate adequate cash inflows from
operating activities in the future will depend largely on project
schedule and billing arrangement, its ability to collect receivables
from customers in a timely manner and the credit terms available
to the Group. If the Group is not able to generate sufficient cash
flows from operations or obtain sufficient financing to support
its business operation, the Group's growth prospects may be
materially and adversely affected. The Group plans to implement
diversified measures to collect receivables in order to improve
operating cash flow. In addition, the Group has been proactively
seeking financing to support the development and expansion of
its business. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had available
bank facilities of RMB6.596 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry risks

The Group’s business primarily focuses on the environmental
protection and energy conservation for coal-fired power plants,
and therefore the market demand for the Group's environmental
protection and energy conservation business relies heavily on the
growth rate of the coal-fired power generation output in the PRC.
In particular, the revenue generated from concession operations
will be directly affected by the power generation output of coal-
fired power plants. As pollution has become an increasingly severe
environmental issue in the PRC, the PRC government has shown
considerable concern for the adjustment to the national energy
structure and development. Therefore, there can be no assurance
that coal-fired power generation output in the PRC will continue
to grow at the current pace. If the increase in coal-fired power
generation output in the PRC slows down, it may result in a
decrease in utilization hours of coal-fired power generation units,
or a lower demand for the Group’s products and services, which
in turn will materially and adversely affect our business prospects,
results of operations and financial position. The management of
the Group is of the view that, in terms of the power generation
portfolio in the PRC, coal-fired power generation still dominates the
market. In addition, the vast majority of the Group's concession
operations locate in coastal areas and economically developed
areas, where the utilization hours of coal-fired power generation
are higher than the average level nationwide. The Group plans to
actively explore clients in the iron and steel, cement and petro-
chemical industries.

Risks on overseas business

The Group is aggressively developing its overseas business,
especially in the Belt and Road Initiative countries, deeply explores
Southeast Asia, South Asia and other core markets, and focuses
on the deployment in India, Thailand and other countries. The
Group's global business expansion may be hindered by risks such
as: lack of availability of overseas financing, possible difficulties in
the management of overseas personnel and business operations,
lack of understanding of the local business environment, financial
and management system or legal system, volatility in currency
exchange rates, cultural differences, changes in political, regulatory
or economic environments in the foreign countries or other regions,
as well as the risk of barriers. If the Group fails to manage the
above risks effectively, its overseas expansion may be hindered,
which may in turn result in a material and adverse effect on its
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business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.
The management of the Group is of the view that, the PRC
government has been actively establishing friendly diplomatic
relations with the Belt and Road Initiative countries and improving
the overseas investment atmosphere. The Group has extensive
experience in project management in certain countries, such as
India and Thailand, which can serve as examples for its future
overseas development. Moreover, the Group has established rather
mature risk management and internal control systems to mitigate
risks on overseas business to the greatest extent possible.

OUTLOOK ON THE GROUP’S FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

In 2022, the Group will focus on “three promotions and one
breakthrough”, deeply promoting the three major businesses
of environmental in-depth governance, resource recycling
and integrated intelligent energy, and achieving breakthrough
in acquiring “specialized and advanced” cutting-edge core
technologies and new products. The Group will focus on serving the
national strategies, and promote the optimization of structure and
layout; focus on independent controllability and the forefront of the
industry, and promote innovation-driven development; focus on the
three-year action of state-owned enterprise reform, and promote
the modernization of management system capabilities; focus on
improving the quality of operation, and promote comprehensive
quality and efficiency improvement; focus on key and difficult
points, and promote prevention and mitigation of major risks of
material investment; focus on governing the enterprise according
to law and scientific management, and promote and consolidate the
management foundation. The Group will implement the “six special
tasks” including business breakthrough, reform, management
improvement, technological innovation, risk mitigation and debt
clearing. During the critical period and window period of the
"14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group will base itself on the new
development stage, implement the new development concept,
integrate into the new development pattern, and start a new
journey of entrepreneurship. The Group will focus on the following
four aspects:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Focus on developing in-depth environmental
governance business

The Group will serve national strategies such as the battle
against pollution, material protection of Yangtze River,
ecological protection of the Yellow River Basin and high-
quality development, promote synergies in reduction of
pollution and carbon, make up for weaknesses, strengthen
weaknesses, prevent risks and optimize inventory. The
Group will improve and enhance the concession operation
business, product manufacturing business and engineering
business, steadily promote overseas business, and actively
expand new environmental governance business, striving
to improve the quality and efficiency level through the
traditional advantage businesses, and consolidating the
foundation for high-quality development.

Steadily promote the resource-recycling
utilization business

The Group will vigorously develop circular economy,
promote intensive use of resources and saving energy,
follow the principle of “reduction, reuse and recycling”,
closely implement the regional development strategies
such as the ecological and environmental improvement in
Yangtze River Economic Belt and the Yellow River Basin,
make deployment in national key urban agglomerations
such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta, Pearl
River Delta, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area and Chengdu-Chongging Economic Zone. Taking
existing resources of the Group as entry point, the Group
will conduct comprehensive utilization demonstration
of bulk solid waste, gradually expand the industrial park
recycling renovation business, advance the cascade
utilization of energy resources and waste recycling
utilization, comprehensively improve the resource utilization
efficiency, enhance the renewable resource utilization level
and support the carbon reduction action.
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Proactively broaden “low-carbon” integrated
intelligent energy business

The Group will implement the deployment of building a
new power system with new energy as the main body,
focus on building a modern energy system, accelerate the
development of non-fossil energy, adhere to both centralized
and distributed energy deployment, vigorously improve the
wind power and photovoltaic power generation scale. The
Group will take the distributed photovoltaic business as the
entry point, promote the centralized photovoltaic power,
wind power business, fully tap the needs of industrial
parks and key energy consuming enterprises, and carry out
comprehensive energy services, energy storage, intelligent
energy and other new businesses and formats, adjust
structure, change the mode, expand increment and open
a new layout.

Adhere to innovation-driven and enhance
core competitiveness

The Group will adhere to the self-reliance of science and
technology, give full play to the basic guarantee role of
technological innovation, focus on improving the level
of franchise operations, focus on reducing operational
energy consumption and material consumption, focus
on improving engineering and technical capabilities, and
focus on supporting the development of new business
formats. Focusing on national strategies such as “carbon
peaking, carbon neutrality, resource recycling, green and
low-carbon, new energy” and other hotspots, we will
organically integrate design strength, technical strength,
and research and development strength with our business
to achieve comprehensive output and effect. The Group will
will vigorously develop core technologies, strengthen the
collection and storage of cutting-edge technologies in low-
carbon, carbon-negative, energy efficiency management
and other fields, increase investment in technological
innovation, accelerate the acquisition of core technologies,
and strive to build new industrial advantages.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board hereby presents this report of Directors and the annual report
as well as the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the
year of 2021 prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs").

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as a joint stock Company in the
PRC with limited liability on 25 July 2011. Basic information about
the Company is set out in the sections headed “Company Profile”
and "“Corporate Information” on page 4 and pages 280-284 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is the sole platform for the development of environmental
protection and energy conservation business under China Datang
Group, one of the 4 major state wholly-owned power generation
groups in the PRC. The principal business of the Group includes
environmental protection facility concession operation, denitrification
catalysts, environmental protection facilities engineering, water
treatment business, energy conservation business and renewable
energy engineering business.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 142-143 of
this annual report. The financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 is set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position on pages 144-145 of and in Note
40 to the financial statements in this annual report. The cash flows
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of cash flows on pages 147-148 of
this annual report.
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V.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's business review, results
and performance during the year ended 31 December 2021,
the discussion and analysis of the key factors of its results and
financial performance, risk factors and risk management and the
prospect for future development are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8-32 of this
annual report, and the “Report of Directors” on pages 33-78 of this
annual report. The description of relationship between the Group
and employees is set out in the section headed “Human Resources”
on pages 134-135 of this annual report. The indemnity provisions
of the Company are set out in the section headed "“Directors’
liability insurance and the permitted indemnity provisions” under
the corporate governance report on page 91 of this annual report.
The aforementioned sections form part of the report of Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

As an environmental protection technology company, the Group
strictly abides by the environment and social-related laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation
to its businesses, including provision of environmental protection
and energy conservation services, monitoring of the pollutants
generated by coal-fired power plants, and provision of renewable
energy services, etc.. Meanwhile, as a responsible company,
the Group proactively performed its social responsibility in 2021,
and conducted business by taking fulfillment of the concept of
sustainable development as its duty. It also adheres to mutually
beneficial cooperation with customers and employees to seek
for common development, and strives to maintain a balance of
harmony with ecological environment and social environment.
The Group will keep on undertaking social responsibilities and
exerting advantages as an environmental protection enterprise
and making consistent efforts to forage an environment with blue
sky and white clouds.

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the Company
will be set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the "ESG Report”) to be issued by the Company separately
pursuant to Rule 13.91 and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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VL.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As an H share company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liabilities and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company is governed by various applicable domestic laws and
regulations including the Company Law of the People’'s Republic
of China (“Company Law"), the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Standards for Corporate Governance
of Listed Companies ( { LTI ARIAIE%RI) ) promulgated by the
CSRC, the Guideline on Comprehensive Risk Management of
Central Enterprises ( (FRMPEZEEREILIES]) ) promulgated
by the SASAC, as well as the Listing Rules and the SFO. The
Group has implemented risk management and internal control
measures to ensure its compliance with such laws and regulations.
Having reviewed the business performance of the Group, the
Board is of the view that the Group has been in compliance with
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in all material
respects.

The discussion and analysis of legal risks exposed to the
Company are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors and
Risk Management” on pages 27-30 of this annual report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 15 November 2016. The net proceeds from the
initial public offering and partial exercise of the over-allotment
option, after deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$2,032.3 million, which
will be used in the ways stated in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the announcement
of the Company dated 30 December 2021 (the "Announcement’)
in relation to the change in use of net proceeds.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SEEHREE)

The following table sets forth the use of net proceeds from the TREFNEE2021F12831BIEERA
initial public offering as at 31 December 2021: FEEMEFIRFENEABER
Intended use of  Revised use of ~ Actual use of net Unused net  Expected time

net proceeds  net proceeds as  proceeds upto  proceeds up to  of full utilization
disclosed in the  at the date of the 31 December 31 December of remaining

Prospectus  Announcement 2021 202 balance
BZaE
RRERREN REAEEE 12B31RMERE BZ20015
FEREFEN  FERETEN FENER  12A31AKER ZAER
RER% BiaRR ERENAR FERERE BENEIRY
(HK$ milfion) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B5%T) (B&%7) (B&%T) (B5%T)
To finance the capital expenditures for BRARRRMBR ISR HRE
expanding the desulfurization and FRRERRY
denitrification concession operations 1,219.50 1,219.50 1,219.50 0.00 -
To develop new sources of growth inthe  SEEMANFIBREERY - 05
revenue and profit, including but not BTRRRERERA MRS

limited to EMC business for coal-fired BEE  KBERNBEPRE

power plants, water treatment business, ~ BEHHEEREAE

and providing customers with overall

solution plans of ultra-low emissions 304.80 304.80 304.80 0.00 -
To repay some of the existing bank loans ~ ERBHHARITER + WEEH

in order to lower the finance costs and B A RuEERLE

improve the financial leverage ratio 203.20 203.20 203.20 0.00 -
For working capital and other general SEASRAM-RAAEE

corporate purposes 203.20 203.20 20320 0.00 -
For research and development expenditures {251 December 2025
101.60 93.60 5474 38.86 2025512A
Investment in renewable energy projects  AIE4ABIER R December 2022
- 8.00 0.00 8.00 2022512R

Total @ 2,032.30 2,032.30 1,985.44 46.86
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VII.

VIIL.

IX.

XI.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had no investment
properties or properties held for development and/or sale with one
or more of the percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.04(9)
of the Listing Rules) exceeding 5%.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2021, the total registered share capital of the
Company was RMB2,967,542,000, divided into 624,296,200 H
Shares and 2,343,245,800 Domestic Shares. Details of the changes
in issued share capital of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

As at 31 December 2021, there were no provisions for pre-emptive
rights under the Articles of Association or the relevant PRC laws,
which require the Company to offer new Shares to existing
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in Note 40 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RETAINED PROFITS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, where there are differences
between Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of the
PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the IFRSs, the retained profits shall be
the lower of the amounts shown in the two different financial
statements. There is no discrepancy between the net assets at
the end of 2021 as calculated in accordance with PRC GAAP and
the IFRSs. The retained profits of the Group as of 31 December
2021 is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The Board proposes to set aside 10% of the profit after tax as the
statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the Company Law
and the Articles of Association, and not to set aside discretionary
reserve. This proposal will be submitted to the 2021 AGM for
consideration and approval.
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SFETHEE)

XIl.

2021 FINAL DIVIDEND AND RELATED
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

According to the resolutions of the Board passed at the sixth
meeting of the third session of the Board on 31 March 2022, the
Board proposed to distribute the final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 of RMBO0.0298 per share (before tax) (the
"Proposed 2021 Final Dividend"”) in cash to the Shareholders.
If the proposal is approved by the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM
to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022, the Proposed 2021 Final
Dividend is expected to be distributed on or about Wednesday,
10 August 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 12 July 2022. The
Proposed 2021 Final Dividend to be distributed will be denominated
and announced in RMB, of which dividends on Domestic Shares
will be paid in RMB whereas dividends on H Shares will be paid in
Hong Kong dollars (the exchange rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars
will be exchanged at the average exchange rate as announced by
the People's Bank of China for five working days prior to the date
of the 2021 AGM).

In order to ascertain the entitlements of the Shareholders to
receive the Proposed 2021 Final Dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 7 July 2022 to
Tuesday, 12 July 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. To be eligible to receive
the Proposed 2021 Final Dividend, all transfer documents must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the Company’s board office in
the PRC at No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the
PRC, 100097 (for holders of Domestic Shares), no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 6 July 2022.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

TAX

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC ( {FFE A
RHAFMBEMEFEFE) ) and its implementation regulations (the
"EIT Law"), the tax rate of the enterprise income tax applicable
to the income of a non-resident enterprise deriving from the PRC
is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares registered in the name of
non-individual enterprises, including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other agents or trustees, or other organizations or groups, shall
be deemed as shares held by nonresident enterprise Shareholders
(as defined under the EIT Law). When the Company distributes
dividends to non-resident enterprise Shareholders, it is liable to
withhold enterprise income tax on their behalf at an interest rate
of 10%. If H Shareholders need to change their Shareholder’s
status, they shall consult with the agents or trustees on the
procedures. In strict compliance with laws and requirements of
relevant government authorities, the Company will withhold the
enterprise income tax according to the register of members of the
H Shares of the Company as at the record date.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has
been legally incorporated in the PRC or which was established
pursuant to the laws of foreign countries (regions) but has
established effective administrative entities in the PRC, and whose
name appears on the Company’s register of members of H Share
should deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident
enterprise furnished by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official
chop of the law firm issuing the opinion affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to the H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, if they do not wish to have
the 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf
by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy and Administration
of Individual Income Tax after the Abolishment of Guo Shui Fa
(1993) No. 045 Document ( BB 3% (1993)04558 S EE IL 18 A
RAEAFTSREE BEREA) ) issued by the State Administration
of Tax on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed by the PRC
non-foreign invested enterprises which have issued shares in Hong
Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject
to the individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general.
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If the individual H Shareholders are residents of Hong Kong or
Macau or those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with
the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will
finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of these Shareholders. If the individual H Shareholders
are residents of those countries which have entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than
10%, the Company will make applications on their behalf to seek
entitlement of the relevant agreed preferential treatment pursuant
to the relevant tax treaty. Under the above circumstances, if the
relevant individual H Shareholders want a refund of the extra
amount withheld (the “Extra Amount”) due to the application
of 10% tax rate, the Company can apply for the relevant agreed
preferential tax treatment provided that the relevant Shareholders
submit the evidence required by the notice of the tax treaty to the
H Share Registrar. The Company will assist with the tax refund
after receiving approval of the competent tax authority. Should
the individual H Shareholders be residents of the countries which
have an agreed tax rate of over 10% but less than 20% with the
PRC under the tax treaty, the Company will withhold and pay
the individual income tax at the agreed actual rate in accordance
with the relevant tax treaty. In the case that the individual H
Shareholders are residents of the countries which have an agreed
tax rate of 20% with the PRC, or which have not entered into any
tax treaty with the PRC, or otherwise, the Company will withhold

and pay the individual income tax at a rate of 20%.

The Company will strictly comply with the laws and requirements
of the relevant government authorities and withhold and pay
enterprise and individual income tax on behalf of the Shareholders
based on the Company’s register of members of the H Shares on
the record date. The Company assumes no liability whatsoever in
respect of and will not entertain any claims arising from any delay
in, or inaccurate determination of, the status of the Shareholders
or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding of enterprise
income tax. The Company assumes no liability whatsoever in
respect of any claims arising from any delay in, or inaccurate
determination of the status of the Shareholders or any disputes

over the mechanism of withholding.

XIV. REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has repurchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company'’s listed securities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total sales to the Group's
five largest customers represented approximately 20.74% of total
revenue of the Group for the year of 2021, among which total sales
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 6.45% of total
revenue of the Group for the year of 2021. The super-majority of our
top five customers during the Reporting Period were subsidiaries
of China Datang, and the Group was heavily reliant on sales to
China Datang Group as its principal source of revenue. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the total value of products and services
provided by the Group to China Datang Group and its connected
persons represented approximately 89.60% of the total revenue
of the Group for the corresponding period.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total purchase from the
Group's five largest suppliers represented approximately 9.92%
of total cost of sales of the Group for the year of 2021, among
which total purchase from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 2.08% of total cost of sales of the Group for the
year of 2021. During the Reporting Period, the Group procured
certain products and services from China Datang Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total value of products and
services procured by the Group from China Datang Group and
its connected persons represented approximately 30.70% of the
total costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, except for certain
subsidiaries of China Datang that were among our top five
customers or suppliers, none of the Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management, their close associates or any Shareholders (to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, who holds more than 5% of the
issued Shares) have any interest in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Company during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained good relations
with its customers and suppliers. The Company kept contact with
its customers and suppliers, and maintained communication with
them via various channels, such as telephone, email and physical
meetings, to receive feedback and suggestions.
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XVI. BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER LOANS

The details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 28 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

XVII.STAFF

Staff is the key for the Group's sustainable development. Details of
the staff of the Group are set out in the sections headed “Profile
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” and “Human
Resources” on pages 120-133 and pages 134-135 respectively in
this annual report.

XVil. ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE
TERM DEPOSITS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no entrusted
deposits with financial institutions in the PRC, or term deposits
which were overdue but unrecovered.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

XIX. DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management from 1 January
2021 to the date of publishing of this annual report:
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Date of appointment/resignation as a

Name Position in the Company Director/Supervisor/Senior Management
HE AR EEE RN ZE/ BERES EE SREEENAY
Directors

=

WANG Yanwen
TEX

TIAN Dan
B+

WANG Jungi
Fl&R

WU Daging
RRE

CHEN Kan
PRAT

YE Xiang

M-

MAO Zhuanjian
EHEE

GAOQO Jiaxiang
EES:

SONG Yunpeng

REWE
QU Bo
Hi

LIU Quancheng
22K

LIU Ruixiang
ZIEM

LI Zhenyu

Chairman of the Board

BER

Executive Director

BITEE

Authorised representative
BRERE

Former general manager

Al ARAL IR

Executive Director

HITEE

General manager

FErCS L

Former deputy general manager
Ail Bl A A5 18

Non-executive Director
HEMITES

Non-executive Director
HHITESE

Non-executive Director
EHMITES

Independent non-executive Director
B IEMITES

Independent non-executive Director
B IEMITES

Independent non-executive Director
B IEMITESE

Non-executive Director (Employee
representative Director)
HFHITEEMIREES)
Former chairman of the Board
AEER

Former non-executive Director
RIFERITES

Former non-executive Director
RIZERNITES

Former non-executive Director
RIFERITES

Former non-executive Director

RIZETES

June 2021
202146 A
October 2019
2019410AR
August 2020
202048 A
Resigned in June 2021
7202146 A BT
October 2020
2020%F10 8

June 2021
202146 A
Resigned in June 2021
7202146 ABHE
September 2021
202149 A
September 2021
2021494
September 2021
202194

June 2015
2015968

June 2015
201546 A

April 2016
20164 A
September 2021

202199 A

Resigned in June 2021
7202146 A BHE

Resigned in September 2021
202159 ABHE

Resigned in September 2021
202149 A BT

Resigned in September 2021
202159 ABHE

Resigned in September 2021
202149 A #HE
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SFETHEE)

Name

e

Position in the Company

EA R BEENEE

Date of appointment/resignation as a
Director/Supervisor/Senior Management

ZE/BERES BT SREEENAY

Supervisors
E=E
HUANG Yuan

=R

ZHANG Xuefeng
REIE

LUO Li

&R
CHEN Li
PR

HUQO Yuxia

EMRE
LIU Liming
¥z A

Senior Management®

SREERE"
CHEN Song
ek 72

LIU Chundong
BIER

ZHOU Ce

Bk
LIANG Xiuguang

WANG Haijie
T4
BU Baosheng

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
and Supervisor

EEgIRERESE
Supervisor
EE

Employee representative Supervisor

BIRKRES

Former employee representative Supervisor

A IRKRES

Former chairman of the Supervisory
Committee and Supervisor

MSEEERRES

Former Supervisor

AIBESE

Chief accountant

EEETED

Deputy general manager

BliEKIR

Secretary of the Discipline Inspection
Committee

HEREEEeER

Deputy general manager

Bliaig

Secretary of the Board, Joint Company
Secretary and authorized representative

EEEMWE  BEAMEREEREK

Former deputy general manager

Al Bl 48 518

Former deputy general manager

NMRAE Al Bl A A 12
Note:
(1) The list of Senior Management excludes those who are also

serving as Directors or Supervisors.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent

of the Company.

September 2021

202149 A

September 2021

2021997

January 2021

20211 A

Resigned in January 2021
7202191 ABHE

Resigned in September 2021

7202199 ABHE
Resigned in September 2021
7202149 A BHT

July 2019
201947 A
July 2020
202067 A
March 2020

202043 A
March 2018
201843 A
November 2020

2020%F11 8

Resigned in June 2021
7202146 ABHE
Resigned in June 2021
202146 ABHT

GEE

(1 EREEERETERERRETE
EREEMAR -

ARREHIEHBLIENTEETRE
FHRAIEINGHRES OB LML
ENFERRE  URRELBIINR
TERHBINARA -
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XX.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

From 1 January 2021 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
the changes in information of Directors are set out as follows:

° Mr. WANG Yanwen served as the chairman of the Board
from June 2021.

° Mr. QU Bo resigned as the chairman of the Board from
June 2021 and non-executive Director from September
2021.

o Mr. WANG Jungi served as a non-executive Director from

September 2021.

o Mr. WU Dagqing served as a non-executive Director from
September 2021.

° Mr. CHEN Kan served as a non-executive Director from
September 2021.

° Mr. LIU Quancheng resigned as a non-executive Director
from September 2021.

o Mr. LIU Ruixiang resigned as a non-executive Director from
September 2021.

o Mr. LI Zhenyu resigned as a non-executive Director from
September 2021.

o Mr. SONG Yunpeng served as a non-executive Director
(employee representative Director) from September 2021.

From 1 January 2021 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,

the changes in information of Supervisors are set out as follows:

o Mr. HUANG Yuan served as the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee and the Supervisor from September 2021.

o Ms. LUO Li served as the Supervisor from January 2021.

o Mr. ZHANG Xuefeng served as the Supervisor from
September 2021.

o Ms. HUQ Yuxia resigned as the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee and the Supervisor from September 2021.

EEgwmE (&)

“TEF EFEREREERS
BiER

H2021F1AVBEAESTeREHE -
B FTRAEI3BIBMIEHTE BF
BRI ZEEHHMT ¢

. FTEXHAEBE2021566 ABET
BER

. R e A 8202146 A#HEETE
ERNME2021F9 AREHTIEH
1TE%F -

. FER L BE2021F9 ARET
FEHITES o

. RABHREBE2021F9 ARBET
FEHITES o

. BT % 4 B8 202159 B BEEIE
WITESE -

o B2k B2021499 A BT
FEMITES -

. REM AL E2021F9 A LB
FEHITES -

. EFH4EBE2021F9 A BET
EMITES -

. KER 4 E2021F9 AREE
IFRITEE(BTRERES) -

B2021F1 A1 BEAESESREHE -
B FHBEANE13HIBIEEE - &
BERlZE#EHNMT ¢

. BREABE202159 ABEIEMTE
EEXFENRES -

. BHALZ T BE20215F1 ARLEME
BE o

¢ RBBRE2021FIBREE
B -

. EMEXZTBH2021F9 A £E (T
EEeTFERES -

I FFERSE
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

= NED ==
EEgREE)
° Mr. LIU Liming resigned as the Supervisor from September
2021.
° Mr. CHEN Li resigned as the Supervisor from January 2021.

XXI.

From 1 January 2021 to the date of this report of Directors,
according to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes in information of Senior Management are set
out as follows:

o Mr. WANG Yanwen was re-designated from a general
manager of the Company to the chairman of the Board
from June 2021.

o Mr. TIAN Dan was re-designated from a deputy general
manager to a general manager of the Company from June
2021.

o Mr. BU Baosheng resigned as a deputy general manager

of the Company from June 2021.

o Mr. WANG Haijie resigned as a deputy general manager of
the Company from June 2021.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 January 2021, 30 June 2021, 9 September 2021 and
23 September 2021 with respect to the changes in Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management respectively.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management are set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 120-133 of this
annual report.
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XXIL.

XXII.

XXIV.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the
Directors. According to the Articles of Association, the term of office
is three years. The principal particulars of these service contracts
comprise (a) the term of office commencing from the effective
date of their appointments to the date of the next general meeting
for the re-election of Directors; and (b) termination provisions in
accordance with their respective terms. Service contracts can
be renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and
applicable regulations.

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a contract with the
Company in respect of, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observations of the Articles of
Association and provisions on arbitration.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management during the Reporting Period are set out in Notes 9
and 35(d) to the financial statements and in the section headed
"Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
on page 108 of this annual report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2021, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company was involved in
its establishment either directly or indirectly, in which a Director
or Supervisor or an entity connected with a Director or Supervisor
had material interests, and with which the Company's business is
connected, subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

E=gRE(E)
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BRARER  EHR=F - RERBE
REXEZ2HBEEE  QFFAREEEE
TAERAHEEREREEAFATER
RREZBHILLE : Ro)AIRER B 0%
FEE UL - RBERAIRBARERLE
RREER] -

BEFCHR(EhEE)ETHEBER
ER  BRARERRMEGEXEAR
AFIM AR -

BREXHEEN  BEFEHEFEHEERN
RBERLARBTAR—FRTEEE
CEERERIN MR LORBER -

I EF CEERERTEEERD

B &

EE EELERAEEERBREHAN
MEFBRRAFRMEHREWFIR
35 M AFHREIBEIES - EERS
BEBEOFH]—& -

iR EFEREERES  REER

aSmiER

M2021F12A318 » ARRTEEE
MELEIIUSEENEENEEEY
EERFHENTERBEEANZHE - H
KR REEE M AR RS RS RE
MAERNEER S  THHAL -

I FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHAERAR

47



48

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SEEHREE)

XXV.INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. WANG Jungi, a non-executive Director
also acted as a director of Datang Huayin (a subsidiary of China
Datang and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600744). Mr. WANG Jungi was not involved in daily operations of
Datang Huayin. As at 31 December 2021, Datang Huayin held partial
interests in EMC business and energy conservation EPC business
that competes with our principal business. For details, please
refer to the section headed "Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholder” in the Prospectus.

Mr. WANG Jungi will abstain from voting for decision making
involving any competing business with Datang Huayin.

Even if he abstains from voting, there will still remain eight
Directors (including two executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors (one of whom is an employee representative Director)
and three independent non-executive Directors in the Board which
will enable effective decision makings.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that, as of 31
December 2021, none of them had any interest in any business
which competes or might compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our principal business.

XXV.INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code") stated in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
s=5gRE(E)

XXVILINTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Ztt E R AR5 AR AR {5
PR TRE

M2021F12A318 - BEHEL —U&
BERABAEN  THIAL(RESE &
BHRADNRFEZITHABRIN R R
TR R D R A ERRE S RS KA
EXVEBE2REIDHBRAARRGFEEILLE

As at 31 December 2021, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the following persons (other
than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and, which were entered REERR AR AR R 77 M R R 336
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to R ENECMANEZIAR -

Section 336 of the SFO:

As at 31 December 2021

20215125318
Number
of Shares/
underlying  Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant  Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share
Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital™ capital®?
ERSEERE {516 B8
]Syl IR A ERABE
TERFRER REH L) REE Epsall Epadd
(Share) (%) (%)
(&) (%) (%)
China Datang Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 2,343,245,800 100 78.96
HERE RERR BREAA (Long position)
(48)
Anbang Investment Holdings Co., Limited® H Shares Beneficial owner 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
THREZRBRAF HA& EnEBA {Long position)
(#78)
Anbang Group Holdings Co. Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
TREEZERERARC HA% REHEEER {Long position)
(48)
Dajia Life Insurance Co., Ltd.® H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
ARASRBRHABRAA H& Rt R {Long position)
(#8)
Dajia Insurance Group Co., Ltd.® H Shares Interest in controlled 120,540,000 19.31 4.06
corporation
ARRBEEEREFAA Hi& R EEER {Long position)

(#2)

T
=
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SEEHREE)

As at 31 December 2021

720215128318
Number
of Shares/
underlying  Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant  Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share
Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares  Capacity held capital™ capital?
EESBERE e
o]l BRIRA ERAEY
TZRRER RAER & ROHE BatW Bt
(Share) (%) (%)
() (%) (%)
China Chengtong Hong Kong Company H Shares Beneficial owner 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
Limited*
RERESARA A HA% ERfEA {Long position)
(4#)
China Chengtong Holdings Group Ltd.“ H Shares Interest in controlled 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
corporation
REREREEERARY HA& REHEE R {Long position)
(#8)
China Energy Engineering Corporation H Shares Beneficial owner 61,557,000 9.86 2.07
Limited
HEEREREEERAA H% ELBEEA {Long position)
(#F2)
State Grid Yingda Investment Management H Shares Beneficial owner 61,467,000 9.85 2.07
Limited®
BREAREERERRF" HA& EHHBA {Long position)
(48)
State Grid Corporation of China® H Shares Interest in controlled 61,467,000 9.85 2.07
corporation
EEEF SN H Rt ER {Long position)
(#18)
Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.®  H Shares Beneficial owner 59,506,000 9.53 2.01
CREAEREBEERRC H ELBEBA {Long position)
(4#)
China Three Gorges Corporation® H Shares Interest in controlled 59,506,000 9.53 2.01
corporation
RERI=ZKEEARS H& R EEER {Long position)
(#8)
China Huaneng Group Hong Kong Limited” H Shares Beneficial owner 49,002,000 7.85 1.65
REEREEEEERAA Hi% EEBEAA {Long position)
(178)
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
s=5gRE(E)

As at 31 December 2021
120215128318

Number
of Shares/
underlying  Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant  Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share

Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital™ capital®
EERBERS EHHE
el BRIRA ERAEY
TZRRER RAER &t ROEE Bt Bt
(Share) (%) (%)
() (%) (%)
China Huaneng Group"” H Shares Interest in controlled 49,002,000 7.85 1.65
corporation
REEREENR HA% REHEEER {Long position)
(4#)
China Huadian Hong Kong Company H Shares Beneficial owner 48,577,000 7.78 1.64
Limited®
FEESESERAF Hi& ERBEEA (Long position)
(#8)
China Huadian Corporation® H Shares Interest in controlled 48,577,000 7.78 1.64
corporation
FREEEEE LR HA Rt B ER {Long position)
(##&)
Taiping General Insurance Co., Ltd.® H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
AEHERBREBRAR® Hi& ERBBA {Long position)
(#18)
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited® corporation
FREATRBIERERAR H& Rt ER {Long position)
(118)
China Taiping Insurance (HK) Company H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited® corporation
PEATREBEE(FE)ERARY Hi& RS EE R {Long position)
(4#)
China Taiping Insurance Group Ltd.” H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
corporation
FREATRBERERETAF" H& et ER {Long position)
(#8)
China Life Franklin Asset Management H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Co., Limited”
HEASEERMEEERERAE HA ELBEEA {Long position)

(#R)
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E=gRE(E)

As at 31 December 2021

720215128318
Number
of Shares/
underlying  Percentage in
Shares directly the relevant  Percentage in
or indirectly class of share the total share
Name of Substantial Shareholder Class of Shares Capacity held capital capital®
EESEERS L HRE
]l ERIRA ERAEY
TZRRER RAER 54 RABE Batw Bt
(Share) (%) (%)
() (%) (%)
China Life Asset Management Company ~ H Shares Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
Limited"? corporation
REASEEERERAR HE% RS EEER {Long position)
(48)
China Life Insurance Company Limited™  H Shares Beneficial owner 20,519,000 3.29 0.69
HEASRBRRGHBRAF0 Hi& EalBA {Long position)
(48)
Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
corporation
G EEER {Long position)
(#8)
China Life Insurance (Group) Company"®  H Shares Beneficial owner 41,038,000 6.57 1.38
HEASRR(EE) AR Hi& BERBBEA {Long position)
(#F2)
Interest in controlled 20,519,000 3.29 0.69
corporation
Rt ER {Long position)
(#8)
Interest in controlled 41,038,000 6.57 1.38

corporation
R AEER

(Long position)

(#2)
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding
in a total of 2,343,245,800 Domestic Shares and a total of
624,296,200 H Shares respectively as at 31 December 2021.

The calculation is based on the percentage of shareholding
in a total of 2,967,542,000 Shares as at 31 December 2021.

Anbang Investment Holdings Co., Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Anbang Group Holdings Co. Limited. Anbang
Group Holdings Co. Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Dajia Life Insurance Co., Ltd., which is wholly-owned by
Dajia Insurance Group Co., Ltd..

China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Chengtong Holdings Group Ltd..

State Grid Yingda Investment Management Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of State Grid Corporation of China.

Three Gorges Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Three Gorges Corporation.

China Huaneng Group Hong Kong Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Huaneng Group.

China Huadian Hong Kong Company Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Huadian Corporation.

Taiping General Insurance Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of China
Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited. China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited is a subsidiary of China
Taiping Insurance (HK) Company Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Taiping Insurance Group Ltd.

China Life Asset Management Company Limited is a
controlling shareholder of China Life Franklin Asset
Management Co., Limited. China Life Asset Management
Company Limited is a subsidiary of China Life Insurance
Company Limited, which is controlled by China Life
Insurance (Group) Company.
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(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors were not aware of any
persons who had interests and/or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and which were entered in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

XXVI.DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or Supervisors or any of their respective
associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire the Shares or debentures of the Company or any
other corporate body, or had exercised any such right.

XXIX. FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY
RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2021, there is no financial, business or
family relationship among the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management.

XXX. DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

As at 31 December 2021, the Company maintained effective
Directors’ insurance for the Directors.

XXXI. MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter
into any contract in respect of the management or administration
of the entire or any significant part of the business of the Company
nor any such contract subsisted.
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St RERS

WEHR - AEEETTATRERS:

XXXIl. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted the following
connected transactions:

Non-Exempt Connected Transaction

On 30 December 2021, the Company entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) with
Datang Henan Power Generation Co., Ltd (KEAEHE
HBR/A7]) (“Datang Henan"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Datang, in relation to the proposed formation
of Datang Linzhou New Energy Co., Ltd. (KEMINIFTAE
JRAEREML AT (the “"JV Company”) with a registered
capital of RMB30.096 million. Pursuant to the Joint Venture
Agreement, the Company shall make a capital contribution
of RMB15.048 million representing 50% equity interest in
the JV Company.

The capital contribution of the Company shall be paid in
accordance with the shareholders’ resolutions of the JV
Company taking into account the development progress of
the JV Company project, which shall be no later than 31
December 2022. During the Reporting Period, no capital
contribution has been paid to the JV Company from the
Company.

As Datang Henan is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Datang while China Datang is the Controlling Shareholder,
Datang Henan is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As such, the aforementioned transaction constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
transaction exceeds 0.1% butisless than 5%, the transaction
is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the information with respect to the
connected transaction mentioned above, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2021.
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Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transaction of the Group as set out below is
exempt from the requirements of reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Trademark Licensing Agreement

The Company and China Datang renewed a trademark
licensing agreement on 27 July 2018 (the “Trademark
Licensing Agreement”), with effect from 1 January 2019.
Accordingly, China Datang agreed to grant the Group a
non-exclusive license to use any of certain registered
trademarks owned by China Datang for purposes of
the Group’s production equipment, products, services
and profile documents, as well as using such licensed
trademarks in the Company's business names, trade names
or domain names. The term of the Trademark Licensing
Agreement is three years, which can be renewed upon
agreement by the parties. The trademark license is granted
by China Datang at nil consideration.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not pay any
royalty fees to China Datang for the use of the licensed
trademarks.

On December 2021, the Company and China Datang
renewed the Trademark Licensing Agreement for a term
of 3 years with effect from 1 January 2022 on substantially
the same terms.

China Datang will remain as the Controlling Shareholder,
and therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules. The transaction above
is entered into on normal commercial terms. The Directors
currently expect that the applicable percentage ratios of
the above transaction for the respective years are nil.
By virtue of Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transaction above is exempt from the
requirements of reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected

Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from
Circular and Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

Framework agreement under which China Datang Group
leases properties to the Group

The Company and China Datang entered into a property
leasing framework agreement on 1 December 2015 (the
"Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which China Datang Group will lease certain properties to
the Group. The Property Leasing Framework Agreement
is for a term of 20 years and takes effect upon the Listing
and is subject to renewal.

The rental of any leased property shall be ascertained
through negotiation between the Group and China Datang
Group primarily based on the actual costs of the property
and taking into consideration the market price of similar
properties in the same region where applicable and the
relevant depreciation cost. The rental shall be provided as a
fixed amount in the separate lease agreement to be executed
in writing and between the Group and China Datang Group
under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement. If, due
to any change of national policies or market fluctuation that
affects the fairness and reasonableness of the rental of a
leased property under any lease agreement, the Group and
China Datang Group may adjust the rental based on arm'’s
length negotiations with reference to the new market price,
and ensure the compliance with relevant requirements of
the Listing Rules (if necessary).

The transactions under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement were negotiated on normal commercial terms.
China Datang remained as the Controlling Shareholder, and
therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement and the transactions
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The exempt cap for the year of 2021 for the aforementioned
property rent paid by the Group to China Datang Group and
its associate(s) as approved by the Board was RMB100
million. The actual total amount of property rent paid by
the Group to China Datang Group and its associate(s) under
the aforesaid agreement in 2021 was RMB32.7 million.

As the Company and China Datang will continue to conduct
transactions under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, on 3 December 2021, the Company discussed
with China Datang and determined on the proposed
annual caps of the transactions under such agreement for
2022 to 2024. Given that one or more of the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules) of the transactions calculated with reference to the
relevant proposed annual caps under the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement are more than 0.1% but all are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement and the relevant
proposed annual caps are subject to reporting, annual
review and announcement but exempted from independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the disclosure as set out
in the section headed "“Connected Transactions” of the
Prospectus and the announcement of the Company dated
3 December 2021.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
subject to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement
and Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The following transactions are or will be conducted on normal
commercial terms in the daily operations of the Group.
Save as otherwise provided, the Directors currently expect
that, each of the applicable percentage ratios of relevant
transactions calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules will exceed 5% on an annual basis, and
the annual transaction amount will exceed HK$10 million.
Accordingly, each of such transactions will constitute a non-
exempt continuing connected transaction of the Company
subject to reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Integrated Product and Service Framework Agreement
between the Group and China Datang Group

The Company renewed an integrated product and service
framework agreement (the “Integrated Product and
Service Framework Agreement”) with China Datang on
15 November 2018, which was approved at the general
meeting and took effect on 1 January 2019 with a term
of three years and can be renewed by agreement by the
parties. Either party may terminate this agreement by a
three-month prior written notice to the other party. The
Company had applied to the Stock Exchange and the Stock
Exchange had granted the Company, a waiver from strict
compliance with the rules regarding the announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, on condition that the
aggregate amount of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions in each of the years of 2019, 2020 and
2021 would not exceed the respective annual caps. For
further details, please refer to the announcement and the
supplemental circular of extraordinary general meeting of
the Company dated 15 November 2018.

Pursuant to the Integrated Product and Service Framework
Agreement, (a) the products and services to be provided
by the Group to China Datang Group include environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions, renewable
energy engineering services, EPC for thermal power plants
and other businesses, and (b) the products and services
to be procured by the Group from China Datang Group
include water and power supply, ancillary services under the
business model of concession operations (desulfurization
and denitrification), logistics services, procurement of
equipment, technology and information service and other
products and services. In respect of all the products
and services under the Integrated Product and Service
Framework Agreement, the Company and/or its subsidiaries
and China Datang and/or its subsidiaries can enter into
separate contracts under and in line with the Integrated
Product and Service Framework Agreement. If the terms
and conditions of similar products and services offered
by an independent third party to such party are no more
favorable than those provided by one party, priority shall
be accorded in the provision of products and services to
the other party.
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The pricing policies of various products and services are

as follows:

2021 Annual Report

For products and services to be provided by
the Group to China Datang Group, in most
circumstances, bidding procedures shall be applied
for the determination of such prices, and only in
exceptional circumstances, bidding procedures can
be skipped by China Datang Group. These exceptional
circumstances primarily include reoccurrence of lack
of sufficient number of bidders attending the bidding
procedure and urgent purchase by China Datang
Group that does not allow the bidding procedure
to be completed.

(a)

The price for the products, primarily
denitrification catalysts, and services
other than the concession operations
(desulfurization and denitrification), to be
provided by the Group to China Datang
Group will be determined based on the
bidding results, or if no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search
in its database for projects of a similar nature
and make reference to recent bidding prices
for comparable products. Usually, the price
is ascertained as the averaged amount of
these recent bidding prices with reasonable
fluctuations. However, if no recent bidding
prices for comparable products can be found
in its database, China Datang Group will
make reference to prices of products of the
similar nature published on official bidding
websites operated by the PRC's government
to ascertain the price.

The tariff for desulfurized and denitrified
electricity under the concession operations
services shall be determined based on
government-prescribed price. The price of
by-products shall be determined based on
market price.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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For products and services to be procured by the Group
from China Datang Group, in most circumstances,
bidding procedures shall be applied for determination
of the price, and only in exceptional circumstances,
bidding procedures can be skipped by the Group.
These circumstances primarily include reoccurrence
of lack of sufficient number of bidders attending
the bidding procedure and urgent purchase by the
Group that does not allow the bidding procedure to
be completed.

The products, primarily water and power
supplied by power plants under China Datang
Group to the Group, will be determined based
on the government-prescribed prices, which
are actual costs of water and power for the
supply of water and power by power plants to
third-party desulfurization and denitrification
concession operations service providers.

The price for ancillary services under the
concession operations (desulfurization and
denitrification) services shall be determined
based on cost of human resources involved,
the relevant management expenses and
the maintenance fees of the equipment
of relevant power plants after taking into
account the average level of the industry.

For procurement of equipment and
technology and information service, in most
circumstances, bidding procedures shall
be applied for determination of the price,
and only in exceptional circumstances,
such as urgent purchase by the Group,
bidding procedures can be skipped by the
Group where the purchasing price shall be
determined by experts of the Group based
on fair market value and historical records of
procurement price.

EEgwmE (&)

S AR E [ B AR
SERBREmERB M
FOZEBRT  ER
DEEEFEEER A
BEFKEBERT - NEHE
TREERBRERT - %F
BRETEREERELES
HEEEFNREEHE
TREAREEBEFRE
= BRETAFFERBER
B e

(a) FRAEEETE
BEREETEAE
EmERAKE
BhBE) B
B EEEE
e EMAE =
5 T e B R R R A
LIRS e
IKEBEEMERK
B o

(b) BB R AER
RETNE B IR
s ERIRE
HEARERP M
ANERKA -
BREEFAXIAR
R E R
WEBITEFHK
FMEE -

© BERERBEER
M K& & & AR m
FEHBR
T AEEBAX
FEEERBERE
B BRNAER
RFEEB®E -
ZERRTIRER
HOBRE - &
EAREERBERXK
ZZERRERT
TRET R B ARRE
FFrBEREEE
EEASENER
e R VN
T s SRAB(E R
1TEE -

I FFERSE

RERREXEERNDERAR

61



62

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SFETHEE)

(d) The price of the services other than the
ancillary services under the concession
operations (desulfurization and denitrification)
to be provided by the Group to China Datang
Group in accordance the Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement shall
be determined based on the following
policies: Prices for bidding services shall be
determined pursuant to the fee standards
prescribed by the PRC government. Prices
for other services, including conference
services and training shall be determined
based on market prices by making reference
to recent prices for comparable services
archived in the Group’s database; if no
comparable services can be found, the Group
will make reference to prices of services of
similar nature published on official bidding
websites operated by the government to
ascertain the price.

The transactions under the Integrated Product and
Service Framework Agreement were negotiated on
normal commercial terms. China Datang remained as the
Controlling Shareholder, and therefore a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Therefore, the Integrated Product and Service Framework
Agreement and the transactions thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The exempt cap for the year of 2021 for products and
services provided by the Group to China Datang Group
as approved by the Stock Exchange and independent
Shareholders was RMB12,348 million. The actual total
amount of products and services provided by the Group
to China Datang Group under the aforesaid agreement in
2021 was RMB4,738.4 million.

The exempt cap for the year of 2021 products and services
procured by the Group from China Datang Group as approved
by the independent Shareholders was RMB6,644 million.
The actual total amount of products and services procured
by the Group from China Datang Group under the aforesaid
agreement in 2021 was RMB1,518.9 million.

2021 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

d  AREERESES
2 on B AR B AE SR 1%
FREETHEX
& S E R BT
BRE AP T
& B AR50 2 IR 75
M ERS HE T 5
REETE : BIERS
B ERBEREDE
BRI E R BT
EBE - HMR
H(eRe® RS
RIF) W EEEA
ERMHERLS
ZAREEBIBET
AJ LB AR5 0 4T 1
EREE - ML
BRI LLEIRT
REBK2ERT
BENE T REH
uh EBRMEIEER
AR5 ) (B AR e FE
B -

RAEEMERBERBZETR
SRR —REERITGETE
e REKEMALEBREE B
gt - B LR BIZE 14A.07(1)
& BARRARBEAL - HL -
REERERBERDERER
SR EMRBET AR
BRER S -

2021 FEE B R FT R B R
HEREBMFRKNEEERHE
EmkRBENE#BE LR AARYE
12,348E BT ° 2021%F » A&E
RiE EllipER B REEER
HEMEBRBEHERRBEAAR

Jr—

#4,7384HETT °

202 FELBIRRIEREER
MR B KRR B E W R RS
MEE FRAARYG644EE
JC ° 20214 - ANEBERE Lilif
EARLC NS - g
BHERBEAARYE1,51898
BT -




REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

On 3 December 2021, the Company and China Datang
entered into a renewed integrated product and service
framework agreement (the “Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement”) which was approved
at the general meeting of the Company and took effect on
1 January 2022 with a term of three years and can be
extended or renewed for three years as agreed by both
parties. According to the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement, (i) the Group provides
China Datang Group with products and services including
service provision business such as environmental protection
facility concession operation, water treatment operation
and energy management contracting business, product
business such as the denitrification catalyst business, and
engineering business such as environmental protection
facilities engineering business, renewable energy
engineering and other services; and (ii) the products and
services procured by the Group from China Datang Group
include service procurement business such as operational
ancillary business, technology and information service, and
other services and equipment and raw material procurement
business such as supply of water, electricity and steam,
procurement of equipment and raw materials and other
products and services. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 3 December
2021 and the circular of extraordinary general meeting of
the Company dated 8 December 2021.

The pricing policies of various products and services are
as follows:

(a) Products and services to be provided by the
Group to China Datang Group

In most circumstances where China Datang Group
purchases products and/or services from the
Group, bidding procedures shall be applied for
the determination of prices. Only in exceptional
circumstances, bidding procedures can be skipped
by China Datang Group. These circumstances
primarily include (a) reoccurrence of lack of sufficient
number of bidders attending the bidding procedure;
and (b) urgent purchase by China Datang Group
that does not allow the bidding procedure to be
completed.

The pricing policy for service provision business
under the concession operations (desulfurization
and denitrification) services:
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2021 Annual Report

The tariff for desulfurized and denitrified electricity
under the concession operation services shall be
determined based on government-prescribed price,
which shall be formulated and adjusted by the
National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC (the “NDRC"). Provincial environmental
protection administrative department shall send
written document to the provincial pricing department
to implement environmental electricity tariffs
on the coal-fired generating companies installed
with environmental protection facilities from the
approval date of acceptance check on the facilities.
Benchmarking prices including environmental
electricity process issued by the NDRC are
implemented for the entities with synchronized
constructions of new coal-fired generating units and
environmental protection facilities. The price of by-
products shall be determined based on market price
(which is obtained through quotations from public
market and three independent service providers
through bidding process and other negotiated prices
through market mechanism in relation to provision of
similar types of services in similar industries, having
taken into account comparable conditions including
but not limited to the technology and quality of the
services).

The pricing policy for other service provision
business:

The price of the services other than the concession
operation (desulfurization and denitrification) to be
provided by the Group to China Datang Group in
accordance with the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement shall be
determined based on the bidding results, or if, in
exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
services. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no recent
bidding prices for comparable services can be found
in its database, China Datang Group will make
reference to prices of services of the similar nature
published on official bidding websites operated
by the PRC's government to ascertain the price.
Meanwhile, if no bidding process is conducted, apart
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

from making reference to prices on official bidding
websites, the Group will also make reference to
the price quotes offered by, or available from,
three third party customers so as to make relevant
comparison with the price quotes offered by China
Datang Group.

The pricing policy for product business:

In accordance with the Renewed Integrated Product
and Service Framework Agreement, the price for the
products, primarily denitrification catalysts, to be
provided by the Group to China Datang Group will
be determined based on the bidding results, or if,
in exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
products. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no recent
bidding prices for comparable products can be found
in its database, China Datang Group will make
reference to prices of products of the similar nature
published on official bidding websites operated
by the PRC's government to ascertain the price.
Meanwhile, if no bidding process is conducted, apart
from making reference to prices on official bidding
websites, the Group will also make reference to
the price quotes offered by, or available from,
three third party customers so as to make relevant
comparison with the price quotes offered by China
Datang Group.

The pricing policy for engineering business:

The price for the engineering business will be
determined based on the bidding results, or if, in
exceptional circumstances, no bidding procedure
is conducted, China Datang Group will search in its
database for projects of similar nature and make
reference to recent bidding prices for comparable
products. Usually, the price is ascertained as the
averaged amount of these recent bidding prices
with reasonable fluctuations. However, if no recent
bidding prices for comparable products can be found
in its database, China Datang Group will make
reference to prices of products of the similar nature
published on official bidding websites operated
by the PRC's government to ascertain the price.
Meanwhile, if no bidding process is conducted, apart
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from making reference to prices on official bidding L RIEF - (HEETTIRERE
websites, the Group will also make reference to Fr - BRIAE 5 BIRAum
the price quotes offered by, or available from, ERIELZEI - KEETR
three third party customers so as to make relevant BE2E=ZRE=FRPIR
comparison with the price quotes offered by China HLEFRRE - B
Datang Group. ANEEBRERREENR
BALLER o
(b) Products and services to be procured by the (b) #5 AN 2E [F] 1) R B K A
Group from China Datang Group B FRAE Y EE i R IR
In most circumstances where the Group purchases ZHIBERT  EAE
products and/or services from China Datang MPBRAEEBEEER
Group, bidding procedures shall be applied for N,/ SR B - FEERER
determination of the price. Only in exceptional RERFEEER - ER
circumstances, bidding procedures can be skipped BHRERT « NEEF#E
by the Group. These circumstances primarily include EEEBEZERF - ZZBER
(a) reoccurrence of lack of sufficient number of FERE@@BRLIESH
bidders attending the bidding procedure; and (b) RERFHOREEHET
urgent purchase by the Group that does not allow B Rb)ANEEZRE
the bidding procedure to be completed. B BETATTRBE
B o
The pricing policy for service procurement business: PR 75 X B 3 15 00 5 B X
%K
In respect of the ancillary services under the PR R R ETFLET
concession operations of desulfurization and MEBREmE @ EBRIR
denitrification, the price shall be determined based BHBESERSEAAN
on cost of human resources involved, the relevant ERRA - BRTEMAX
management expenses and the maintenance fees of AR BHEERY - E
the equipment of relevant power plants after taking RITEFIKFEMETE °
into account the average level of the industry. If no MEEITHRERRR - BRIA
bidding process is conducted, apart from making B BRALMERES
reference to prices on official bidding websites, the ZHN  REBNELEE
Group will also make reference to the price quotes ZHABEFPIRMSESHR
offered by, or available from, third party customers & - EpEAEEERE
so as to make relevant comparison with the price B REERBLLE -

quotes offered by China Datang Group.

The pricing policy for other service businesses: H IR 75 % 15 1) 7 (B K
%
In most circumstances where the Group purchases REZHBEALT - ~&
services from China Datang Group, bidding M BXESEERERS
procedures shall be applied for the determination FEKIRBERTFETE
of prices. Only in exceptional circumstances, bidding 1% o ERFHRERT - A
procedures can be skipped by the Group where the ERBERAIEEER
purchasing price shall be determined by experts of BBEBARTHEERKE
the Group based on fair market value and historical BRMELTREENE
records of procurement price. T - REE IR
EEF -
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The pricing policy for supply of water, electricity
and steam:

The price for the products, primarily, water,
electricity and steam, supplied by power plants
under China Datang Group to the Group, will be
determined based on the actual costs which reflect
the market price of water and power for the supply
of water and power by power plants to third-party
desulfurization and denitrification concession
operation service providers per the government'’s
prescribed requirements.

The pricing policy for procurement of equipment
and raw materials:

In respect of the procurement of equipment and
raw materials, in most circumstances, bidding
procedures shall be applied for determination of
the price. Such price is the bidding price provided
by the bid-winner. China Datang Group will charge
a fee (the "Service Fee") not exceeding 6% of
the purchasing price, which shall be determined on
the basis of the actual scope of services provided
by an independent third party service provider and
the pricing standard of the relevant services and
materials. The Service Fee shall be fairly agreed
between the parties and shall not exceed the fee
charged for similar services provided by China
Datang Group to an independent third party or its
affiliated entities. Only in exceptional circumstances,
such as in case of urgent procurement demand
of the Group, bidding procedures can be skipped
by the Group where the purchasing price shall be
determined by experts of the Group based on fair
market value and historical records of procurement
price.

Renewal of Financial Services Agreement between the
Group and Datang Finance

The financial services agreement entered into between
the Company and Datang Finance (the “Datang Finance
Financial Services Agreement”) on 15 October 2019
became effective after being approved by the Shareholders
at the 2019 first extraordinary general meeting, and valid
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2021, pursuant to
which Datang Finance will provide the Group with loan
services, deposit services and other financial services. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2019 and the supplemental circular of
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated
16 October 2019.
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Datang Finance has undertaken to provide the aforesaid
deposit services and loan services to the Group based on
the following pricing principles:

Deposit services — within the range for the floating deposit
and loan interest rates published by the PBOC and by
reference to the benchmark interest rates published by the
PBOC, the interest rate for the Group's deposits with Datang
Finance shall not be lower than the equivalent deposit
interest rate as provided by other financial institutions in
the PRC.

Loan services — within the range for the floating deposit and
loan interest rates published by the PBOC and by reference
to the benchmark interest rates published by the PBOC,
the interest rate for loans granted to the Group by Datang
Finance shall not be higher than the equivalent loan interest
rate as charged by other financial institutions in the PRC.

The fees charged by Datang Finance for the provision of
financial services to the Group other than deposit services
and loan services shall not be higher than the rate charged
by other financial institutions in the PRC for the same or
similar type of services.

Datang Finance was the subsidiary of China Datang, and
China Datang remained as the Controlling Shareholder.
Therefore, Datang Finance was a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of China Datang
pursuant to Rule 14A.13(1) of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Datang Finance Financial Services Agreement and the
transactions thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The proposed caps of the deposit services for the Group's
maximum daily deposit balance (including any interest
accrued therefrom) in Datang Finance for the year 2021 was
RMB4,000 million after being approved by the independent
Shareholders. For the year of 2021, the Group's actual
maximum daily deposit balance (including any interest
accrued therefrom) in Datang Finance according to the
aforesaid agreement was RMB2,593 million.

On 3 December 2021, the Company and Datang Finance
entered into a renewed financial services agreement (the
"Renewed Financial Services Agreement”) for a term from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, pursuant to which
Datang Finance has agreed to provide the Group with loan
services, the deposit services (the “Deposit Services") and
financial and financing consultation and training services,
transfer and settlement services, insurance agency
services, entrustment loan and entrustment investment
services, note financing services, guarantee services and
underwriting services for the issuance of corporate bonds
to the Group (except for the loan services and the Deposit
Services, together the “Other Financial Services”) subject
to the terms and conditions provided therein. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 3 December 2021 and the circular of extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 8 December 2021.

Datang Finance has undertaken to provide the
aforementioned financial services to the Group based on
the following pricing principles:

(1) Loan services — Datang Finance, based on the
interest rate quotation of the loan market and taking
into comprehensive considerations of the factors
such as the terms, classifications and industrial
policies, determines the pricing. Under the same
condition, the loan interest rate shall not be higher
than the applicable interest rate for the same type
of loan service provided by state-owned banks to
the Group;

(2) Deposit Services — Under the same condition, the
deposit interest rate provided by Datang Finance to
the Group shall not be lower than the interest rate
for the same type of deposit placed in state-owned
banks by the Group; and

(3) Other Financial Services — Datang Finance provides
other financial services to the Group at the rates
which shall not be higher than those charged by
other financial institutions in the PRC for the same
or similar financial services.
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The loan services to be provided by Datang Finance to
the Group constitutes financial assistance provided by a
connected person for the benefit of the Group. As such
services are on normal commercial terms which are similar
to or more favourable than those offered by independent
third parties for comparable services in the PRC, and no
security over the assets of the Group will be granted
in respect of the loan services, the loan services are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules.

As each of the percentage ratio(s) applicable to the Deposit
Services is more than 5%, the Deposit Services are
subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement,
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further, given
that one or more of the relevant percentage ratio(s) of
the Deposit Services is more than 100%, the Deposit
Services constitute a major transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

In respect of the Other Financial Services to be provided
by Datang Finance to the Group, each of the percentage
ratio(s) is below the de minimis threshold set out in Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules, therefore the provision of
Other Financial Services by Datang Finance to the Group is
exempt from the reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements of the Listing Rules.

Financial Services Framework Agreement between the
Group and Datang Capital

On 3 December 2021, the Company and Datang Capital
entered into a financial services framework agreement (the
“Financial Services Framework Agreement”). According
to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, Datang
Capital agreed to provide the Company with commercial
factoring service, financial leasing, entrusted loan service,
asset securitization service, sales and leaseback service,
operating lease, brokerage and consultation service in
relation to transfer of property rights and assets and
bespoke financial service solution. Such agreement shall be
effective from 1 January 2022 and expiring on 31 December
2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 3 December 2021 and the circular of
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated
8 December 2021.
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Datang Capital has undertaken to provide the commercial
factoring service, financial leasing, and entrusted loan
service to the Group based on the following pricing
principles:

(1) Commercial factoring service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The comprehensive interest rate relating to the
commercial factoring service provided by Datang
Capital to the Group shall be based on fair and
reasonable market pricing and normal commercial
terms. In particular, the rate shall not be higher
than the interest rate level provided via email by
independent third parties to the Group for the same
type of service during the same period or the interest
rate of the same type of service provided by Datang
Capital to third parties with same credit rating.

(2) Financial leasing service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The rent paid by the Group to Datang Capital includes
(i) procurement costs; and (ii) interests. The relevant
interests are determined based on the benchmark
interest rates for loan as implemented by the PBOC.

(3) Entrusted loan service under the Financial
Services Framework Agreement

The entrusted loan interest paid by the Group to
Datang Capital includes (i) procurement costs; and
(i) interests. The relevant interests are determined
based on the benchmark interest rates for loan as
implemented by the PBOC.

China Datang is the Controlling Shareholder while
Datang Capital is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Datang. Datang Capital is therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the Financial Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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2021 Annual Report

Given that one or more of the relevant percentage
ratio(s) of the transactions (including financial leasing
service and commercial factoring service) calculated
with reference to the relevant proposed annual caps
under the Financial Services Framework Agreement
are more than 5%, the Financial Services Framework
Agreement, the transactions thereunder and the
proposed annual caps thereunder are subject to
the reporting, announcement and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Further, given that one
or more of the relevant percentage ratio(s) of the
transactions (including commercial factoring service,
financial leasing service and entrusted loan service)
calculated with reference to the relevant proposed
annual caps under the Financial Services Framework
Agreement exceed 25% but less than 100%, the
Financial Services Framework Agreement and
the transactions thereunder constitute a major
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

In respect of the asset securitization service, sales
and leaseback service, operating lease, brokerage
and consultation service in relation to transfer of
property rights and assets and financial service
solution (the “Other FSFA Financial Services”),
each of the percentage ratio(s) is below the de
minimis threshold set outin Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, therefore the provision of the Other FSFA
Financial Services by Datang Capital to the Group
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
of the Listing Rules.
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Confirmation by Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
each of the above mentioned continuing connected
transactions conducted in the year of 2021 and confirmed

that:

(1)

the transactions stated in the section headed
"Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction” in
this annual report have been generated during the
Group's ordinary and usual course of business on
normal commercial terms (or more favorable than
normal commercial terms available for the Group),
and the terms governing the transactions under
the agreement are fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as
a whole; and

the transactions and proposed annual caps stated
in the section headed "“Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report have
been generated during the Group's ordinary and
usual course of business on normal commercial
terms (or more favorable than normal commercial
terms available for the Group), and the terms
governing the transactions under the agreement
are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
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Auditor’s Letter

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company, Ernst & Young, to
report on the Group's continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on its
work, Ernst & Young has provided the Board with a letter
confirming that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions conducted in the year of 2021:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board,

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
the auditor’'s attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to the auditor's attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the annual cap of each of the above disclosed
continuing connected transactions set by the
Company.
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6. Related Party Transactions

Please refer to Note 35 to the financial statements in this
annual report for details of the significant related party
transactions prepared in accordance with the IFRSs. For
the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the above
section headed “Connected Transactions” in this report of
Directors. Except for those disclosed in the section headed
"Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors, the
other related party transactions as disclosed in Note 35
are not considered as connected transactions, or are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

XXXll. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION

AGREEMENT

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement with
China Datang on 1 December 2015 (the “Non-Competition
Agreement”). Under the Non-Competition Agreement, China
Datang irrevocably undertook that, other than the Retained Business
(as defined in the Prospectus), China Datang and its subsidiaries
(excluding the Group and listed entities under China Datang and
their respective subsidiaries) did not, during the term of the Non-
Competition Agreement, and would procure their close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, individually or jointly, with
other entities, or assist to engage in or participate in any business
which competes with Our Principal Business (as defined in the
Prospectus). Furthermore, China Datang undertook to grant an
option to the Company to acquire new business opportunities that
may compete, directly or indirectly, with Our Principal Business,
an option to acquire and a right of first refusal with regard to the
Retained Business and/or the New Competing Business in the
future (as defined in the Prospectus).

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
reviewing and determining whether to accept such new business
opportunity provided by China Datang or its associates by taking
into consideration factors such as geography and compatibility of
business nature of such new business opportunity to the Group's
strategy and prospect.

During the Reporting Period, there was no new business opportunity
provided by China Datang or its associate(s) in accordance with
the Non-Competition Agreement.
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XXXIV.

XXXV.

XXXVI.

XXXVII.

The Company has received the confirmation letter from China
Datang, which confirmed that, in 2021, China Datang was in
compliance with all undertakings and provisions under the Non-
Competition Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the Non-Competition Agreement and confirmed
that China Datang has been in full compliance with the Non-
Competition Agreement and there was no breach by China Datang.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFIT
SCHEME

Details of the Company’s retirement and employees benefit
scheme are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

As a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company strives to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Save as disclosed in this annual report, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Please
refer to the corporate governance report as set out on pages 79-
112 of this annual report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far
as the Directors are aware, 21.04% of the issued share capital of
the Company was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable
Date, which was in compliance with the requirements and public
float waiver approved by the Stock Exchange under the Listing
Rules. For details of the public float waiver, please refer to the
section headed “Waivers from Strict Compliance with the Listing
Rules"” in the Prospectus.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements of this
annual report, as at 31 December 2021, the Group was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration. So far as the Directors are
aware, no such litigation or claims are pending or threatened
against the Group.
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XXxvil. AUDIT COMMITTEE

XXXIX.

XL.

XLL

The Group’s 2021 annual results and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in
accordance with the IFRSs have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDITORS

On 30 June 2021, Ernst & Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
were appointed as the international and domestic auditors of the
Company, respectively for the year 2021 at the general meeting
of the Company, with a term of one year.

Ernst & Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP were appointed to
audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
prepared in accordance with IFRSs and PRC GAAP, respectively.

Ernst & Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP will retire at the
2021 AGM and the resolutions for the re-appointments of auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2021 is set out on
pages 6-7 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except for the disclosure in Note 2.2 to the financial statements
of this annual report, there were no other changes in accounting
policies of the Company during the Reporting Period. Details of
the accounting policies are set out in Notes 2 and 3 to the financial
statements in this annual report.
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XLIl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as the above and as disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this report of Directors, none of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into material contracts
with the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries other
than the Group, nor was there any material contract between the
Group and the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
other than the Group in relation to provision of services in 2021.

XLIl. EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement was entered by the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2021.

XLIV. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 14 January 2022, the Company and China Datang Group
Overseas Investment Co., Ltd.* (FBEAXBEEEGIMNEEFRAR)
("Datang Overseas Investment”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to transfer,
and Datang Overseas Investment has agreed to acquire the 10%
equity interest in China Datang Overseas Power Operating Co.,
Ltd.* (FEAXESEEEINE HEZEFR AT held by the Company
for a consideration of RMB26,389,000. The above transaction
has not been completed as at the date of the report of Directors.

On 31 March 2022, the Board proposed to distribute the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.0298
per share (before tax) in cash to the Shareholders. The proposal
is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

Other than the above, as of the date of the report of Directors,
the Group had no significant events after the Reporting Period

that needs to be disclosed.

By order of the Board

WANG Yanwen
Chairman
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always been committed to improving corporate
governance since its establishment. According to provisions of the
Code, it has established a modern corporate governance structure
comprising a number of independently operated bodies including
the general meetings, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and
the Senior Management in order to provide an effective check
and balance. The Company has also adopted the Code as its own
corporate governance practices.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company was not involved
in any material litigation liable by any Director. Each Director has
the necessary qualification and experience required for performing
his duty. The Company has purchased liability insurance for the
Directors.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company had been in
compliance with the principles and code provisions contained in
the Code. Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are outlined as follows:

BOARD

The Board carries out its duties and exercises its powers in
accordance with the Articles of Association and in the best
interest of the Company and its Shareholders. It reports and is
held accountable to the general meetings, and implements the
resolutions thereof.

1. Composition of the Board

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board consisted of
nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors (including one employee representative
Director) and three independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out on pages 120-127 of this
annual report. There are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
between members of the Board. The structure of the
Board is well balanced, with each Director equipped with
profound knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the Company’s business operation and development.
All Directors are well aware of their joint and individual
responsibilities toward the Shareholders.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board had always
been abiding by the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and that independent non-executive
Directors shall represent at least one-third of the Board.

The qualifications of the three independent non-executive
Directors are in full compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A and 19A.18(1) of the
Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has received annual
confirmations dispatched by each independent non-executive
Director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules as
to their respective independence. Therefore, the Company
is of the view that each independent non-executive Director
is independent as provided in the Listing Rules.

Current members of the Board are listed in the following
table:

HEKEATHY  EFg—
HELTRAFHEZREEI =4
BIUFATEERMZENEYL
FRTESVEGEETIKREA
BEL=DZ—HEL -

CEBUIIRTESEHNERT
A EMARAES1001) K
F3.1002) - F310AKKRE
19AI8M IR AR E © BEoh + &K
ARE RN EGEBIIIERITES
$Eﬁ‘§imﬁﬁlJ%3.13ﬂ%?¢tﬁ%§
MBS ANFERRE -

b AR u«u%l%ﬁi#ﬁﬂﬁ
EEHAGBETRANERNBEL
Moo

EREREMEIRNOT :

Name Position Date of appointment
H®H Bz EEZEEEH
WANG Yanwen Chairman of the Board June 2021
FEX BER 202146 A
Executive Director October 2019
HITEF 20194104
TIAN Dan Executive Director October 2020
A WITES 20204104
General manager June 2021
b 202146 A
WANG Junqi Non-executive Director September 2021
TR FEMITES 202149 A
WU Daging Non-executive Director September 2021
RRE FEMITES 202149 A
CHEN Kan Non-executive Director September 2021
BRAT FEMITES 202149 A

SONG Yunpeng

Non-executive Director

September 2021

(Employee representative Director)

REMNS FHMITEEFRIAKESR) 202149 A
YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director June 2015
39 BUIHITES 201546 A
MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director June 2015
E5EZ BUIEHITES 201546 A
GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director April 2016
DR BUIEHITES 201654 A
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Board Meetings

According to the Articles of Association, the Board is
required to hold Board meetings at least 4 times each
year to be convened by the chairman of the Board. Notices
of regular Board meetings shall be dispatched at least 14
days in advance. A quorum for the Board meeting can be
formed by half or more than half of the Directors attending
the meeting. Directors may attend the Board meeting in
person or appoint other Directors as his proxy pursuant to
certain requirements. Except for the circumstance provided
in the Articles of Association where the Board considers
connected transactions, resolutions of the Board shall
be passed by more than half of all the Directors. The
secretary of the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping minutes of Board meetings and making sure that
such minutes are available for reference by any Director.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held ten meetings,
details of which are set out as follows:

o The 22nd meeting of the second session of the Board
was held on 19 March 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding, among others, (1) work report on the
Board of the Company for 2020; (2) work report on
the general manager of the Company for 2020; (3)
the independent auditor’s report, audited financial
statements, results announcement and the annual
report for 2020 of the Company; (4) report on the
final financial accounts for 2020 of the Company; (5)
financial budget report of the Company for 2021; (6)
the profit distribution plan for 2020 and the proposed
distribution of 2020 final dividend of the Company;
(7) the re-appointments of the international and
domestic auditors of the Company for 2021 and
grant of the Board to determine their remuneration;
(8) report on remuneration policy and structure of
Directors and Senior Management members of the
Company for 2020; (9) performance of duties by
Senior Management of the Company and annual
performance appraisal reward for 2020; (10) the
investment plan of the Company for 2021; (11) the
financing plan of the Company for 2021; (12) the
banks' comprehensive credit of the Company for
2021; (13) the report on the use of raised fund of
the Company; (14) the amendments to the Articles
of Association; and (15) the convening of the annual
general meeting of the Company for 2020 were
considered and approved.
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The 23rd meeting of the second session of the Board
was held on 31 May 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the establishment of ESG-related work
organization of the Company; and (2) the issuance
of the ESG Report of the Company for 2020 were
considered and approved.

The 24th meeting of the second session of the Board
was held on 15 June 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the amendments to the Administrative
Measures for the Connected Transactions; and (2)
the registration of super short-term commercial
paper, short-term commercial paper, medium-term
paper and issuance of super short-term commercial
paper with the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors (“NAFMII”) were
considered and approved.

The 25th meeting of the second session of the Board
was held on 30 June 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the election of the chairman of the
Board of the Company; (2) the appointment of
the general manager of the Company; and (3) the
adjustment to the members of special committees
under the Board of the Company were considered
and approved.

The 26th meeting of the second session of the
Board was held on 20 August 2021, at which,
resolutions regarding (1) the 2021 interim financial
statements, results announcement and interim
report of the Company; (2) the amendments to the
Articles of Association; (3) the merger by absorption
or liquidation of certain subsidiaries; and (4) the
convening of the first extraordinary general meeting
of the Company for 2021 were considered and
approved.

The 27th meeting of the second session of the
Board was held on 25 August 2021, at which,
resolution regarding the nomination of candidates
for Directors of the third session of the Board of
the Company was considered and approved.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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The 1st meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 9 September 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) the election of the chairman of the
third session of the Board of the Company; (2) the
appointment of members of special committees under
the Board (amendments to the Terms of Reference
of the Strategy and Investment Committee); and (3)
the adjustment to the depreciation policy for power
generation and heating equipment and other assets
were considered and approved.

The 2nd meeting of the third session of the Board
was held on 28 September 2021, at which, resolution
regarding signing of the post appointment agreement
and business performance responsibility letter with
the management members of the Company was
considered and approved.

The 3rd meeting of the third session of the
Board was held on 25 November 2021, at which,
resolutions regarding (1) renewal of the Integrated
Product and Service Framework Agreement with
China Datang Corporation Ltd.; (2) determination
of annual caps under the Land Use Rights and Real
Estate Leasing Framework Agreement with China
Datang Corporation Ltd.; (3) signing of the Financial
Services Agreement with China Datang Finance Co.,
Ltd.; (4) signing of the Financial Services Agreement
with China Datang Group Capital Holdings Co.,
Ltd.; (5) formulation of the External Directors and
Supervisors Duty Performance Guarantee Plan of
the Company; and (6) the convening of the second
extraordinary general meeting for 2021 were
considered and approved.

The 4th meeting of the third session of the Board was
held on 30 December 2021, at which, resolutions
regarding (1) renewal of the Trademark Licence
Agreement with China Datang Corporation Ltd.; (2)
three management systems of the Company including
the Implementation Measures for Implementing the
"Three Importance and One Large” Decision-making
System; (3) three management systems including
the Administrative Measures for the Authorization
of the Board of Directors of the Company (Trial); (4)
investment in the establishment of Datang Linzhou
New Energy Co., Ltd. (KEMMNFTEERERE TR F)

and changes in the use of proceeds from listing;
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(5) adjustment to the investment plan for large and

RAIRBELTEEES

medium-sized as well as small-sized infrastructure RAEER GERAR
projects in 2021; (6) transfer of 10% equity in China DREI2021FFERAE /)

Datang Overseas Power Operation Co., Ltd.; and (7)
provision for bad debts and estimated liabilities of
overseas projects were considered and approved.

WERERRENENE
Qe NN R LEP N
SEBINENELERA
A10% BAEHIFEER - (7)
FRFHREINARZ
fﬁ&?ﬁiﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ%% S

Attendance/Number
Name Position of meetings held
HE B HEERBITRE
QU Bo™ Former chairman of the Board and non-executive Director 4/6
R AEERMIENITES
LIU Quancheng? Former non-executive Director 0/6
el RIZEITES
LIU Ruixiang® Former non-executive Director 0/6
21 RIJEITES
LI Zhenyu” Former non-executive Director 0/6
FEFW RIZEITES
WANG Yanwen Chairman of the Board and executive Director 10/10
FEX EERLWTES
TIAN Dan® Executive Director and general manager 8/10
£ WITER KR
WANG Junqi Executive Director 4/4
FERR WiTE=S
WU Daging Non-executive Director 4/4
RRE FHITES
CHEN Kan Non-executive Director 4/4
BRAT FMITES
SONG Yunpeng  Non-executive Director (employee representative Director)  3/3
REN FPTEE(BIRKES)
YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director 10/10
39 BIUIEHITES
MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director 10/10
EEZ BIIFHITES
GAOQ Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director 10/10
DR B IFHITES
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Notes:

(1) Mr. QU Bo did not attend two of the
meetings as he was on a business trip.

(2) Mr. LIU Quancheng did not attend six
meetings as he was on a business trip.

(3) Mr. LIU Ruixiang did not attend six meetings
as he was on a business trip.

(4) Mr. LI Zhenyu did not attend six meetings as
he was on a business trip.

(5) Mr. TIAN Dan did not attend two of the
meetings due to work adjustment.

Powers and Responsibilities of the Board
and the Management

The powers and responsibilities of the Board and the
management of the Company are specified in the Articles of
Association, providing a sufficient balanced and restrained
mechanism for corporate governance and internal controls.

The Board shall be responsible for and shall have general
power to manage and develop the Company’s business.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the functions and
duties of the Board include, among other things, convening
general meetings and reporting the Board's work to the
general meetings, implementing the resolutions of the
general meetings, determining business plans, investment
plans, detailed annual business objectives of the Company
and financing plans other than by ways of issue of corporate
debentures or other securities and of listing, formulating

annual budget, final accounts, profit distribution plan and
plan for recovery of losses, proposals for increase or
reductions of the Company’'s registered capital and the
issue of corporate debentures or other securities and listing.
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The Board is responsible for the Company’s corporate
governance. The Company has formulated its corporate
governance policy pursuant to the requirements of
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board performed its duties according
to the corporate governance policy of the Company. In
2021, the Board mainly reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policy and practices, reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management, reviewed and monitored
the Company's policy and practices in respect of compliance
with laws and regulatory regulations, developed, reviewed
and monitored the code of conduct and compliance manual
for employees and Directors, and reviewed the Company's
compliance with the Code and the disclosures made in the
Corporate Governance Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Joint
Company Secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making a request to the Board.

The management of the Company, led by the general
manager of the Company, is responsible for implementing
all the resolutions issued by the Board and organising
management of the Company's day-to-day operation.

Chairman and the General Manager

The positions of the chairman of the Board and the general
manager of the Company (i. e. chief executive officer under
the terms of the Listing Rules) of the Company are held
by different persons in order to ensure independence,
accountability of their respective functions and balanced
distribution of power and authority between them. Mr.
WANG Yanwen and Mr. TIAN Dan served as the chairman
of the Board and the general manager of the Company
respectively, whose powers and responsibilities were
clearly divided.

2021 Annual Report
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In 2021, the chairman of the Board, Mr. QU Bo, who led
the Board, decided on the Company’s overall development
strategies, ensured the effective operation of the Board,
performed his bounden duties, and brought all important
matters to discussion in a timely manner, ensuring that
the Company had in place good corporate governance
practices and procedures and that the Board acted in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole. He resigned in and with effect from June
2021. On the same date, the Company appointed Mr.
WANG Yanwen as the chairman of the Board. In 2021, the
general manager of the Company, Mr. WANG Yanwen was
mainly responsible for the overall business operation and
management of the Company, who resigned in June 2021.
On the same date, the Company appointed Mr. TIAN Dan
as the general manager of the Company.

Appointment, Removal and Re-election of
Directors

As provided in the Articles of Association, Directors are
elected by general meetings for a term of three years
and are eligible for re-election and re-appointment. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
regarding the appointment of new Directors in the Articles
of Association. The nomination of new Directors is firstly
discussed by the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) which then submits its
recommendation to the Board, and is subject to approval
via the election in general meeting.

The Company has entered into service contracts with all
its Directors (including non-executive Directors) for a term
commencing from the date of appointment to the date of
the next general meeting for the re-election of Directors
and subject to termination in accordance with the terms
under respective service contracts.
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Board Diversity

The Company believes that the increasing diversity at the
Board level is one of essential elements in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Therefore, the Company formulated board
diversity policy in October 2016 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). While determining the composition of the Board,
the Company shall consider the diversity of the Board
from various perspectives, including, without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision of the Board will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will
report the composition of the Board at the diversity level in
the annual report each year, and monitor the implementation
of this policy. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

As a single gender board will not be considered to have
achieved diversity from 1 January 2022, we will review
the structure and composition of the Board, and appoint a
Director of a different gender on or before 31 December
2024.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration of Directors is reviewed by the remuneration
and evaluation committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration and Evaluation Committee”) and the
Board in accordance with criteria such as qualification,
working experience, working performance, positions and
market conditions, and determined by the general meeting
based on criteria such as qualification, working experience,
working performance, positions and market conditions.
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8. Training for Directors and Joint Company
Secretaries

(1)

Training for Directors

All Directors always attend to the Directors’ duties
and personal integrity, and the business activities
and developments of the Company. In 2021, the
Directors had been updated on a monthly basis
with information relating to the performance,
state of affairs and prospects of the Company. In
addition, the Company provided Directors with the
latest developments in the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory regulations, to make sure the
Directors were able to keep making contribution to
the Board with extensive information and appropriate
expertise.

Compliance training for Hong Kong listed company
was provided by Zhong Lun Law Firm LLP, the legal
advisor of the Company as to Hong Kong laws, to
Directors and management of the Company during
the Reporting Period (the “Compliance Training”).

In 2021, all Directors attended the continuous
professional development programme, developed
and refreshed their knowledge and skills to ensure
that they continue contributing to the Board with
complete information and expertise as needed.
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Trainings received by all Directors during the year

2021 are as follows:

Name

ek

Position

Bz

BER2021FEEITHE
HEBEMT

Training topics

ZHIEE

WANG Yanwen
FEX

TIAN Dan

A £

WANG Jungi

F &R

WU Daging
RRE

CHEN Kan
PR

SONG Yunpeng

Chairman of the Board and executive Director

EERAUTES

Executive Director and general manager

HITHE RABISIE

Non-executive Director

FEITES

Non-executive Director

FEHITES

Non-executive Director

FEMITES

Non-executive Director (Employee representative
Director)

Compliance Training
ARE
Compliance Training
aRE
Compliance Training
AR
Compliance Training
AR
Compliance Training
AR

Compliance Training

REMS FMTEE(RIRKES) aHREI

YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director Compliance Training

33 BWUIFHITES aHREI

MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director Compliance Training

EEEZ BUIEHITES aHREI

GAO Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director Compliance Training

DR WUIFHITES AL

Training for Joint Company Secretaries 2) 2 EJREIEH

The Company appointed Mr. LIANG Xiuguang as AR AR 20204F 11 ﬂ 3;

the Joint Company Secretary in November 2020. Tf%%fgﬁ*ﬁii%ﬂé‘v

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, ME o %E?iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ']%

Mr. LIANG Xiuguang, the Joint Company Secretary, 3.291% - %ii2021 E 12

had undertaken relevant professional trainings of not H31BIEFE - AL

less than 15 hours for the year ended 31 December M%%%Fﬁiﬂﬁiﬂ_

2021. PIGENE Z B EE
b=/ I

The Company appointed Ms. WONG Sau Ping AABMR2016FE8ART

(associate director of the listing services department
of TMF Hong Kong Limited) as another Joint Company
Secretary since August 2015. In compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. WONG Sau Ping
had undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
profession training for the year ended 31 December
2021. Her primary internal contact in the Company
is Mr. LIANG Xiuguang.

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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9. Directors’ Liability Insurance and the
Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company has always been in strict compliance with
the principles and requirements of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2021, the Company was not involved in
any material litigation liable by any Director. Each Director
has the necessary qualification and experience required for
performing his duty. The Company has purchased liability
insurance for Directors.

The permitted indemnity provisions of the Company are
set out in article 162 of the Articles of Association. The
Directors, Supervisors, general manager of the Company
and other Senior Management may be relieved of liability for
specific breaches of his duty with the informed consent of
Shareholders given at an annual general meeting except for
certain circumstances set out under article 59 of the Articles
of Association. Such permitted indemnity provisions are
currently in force at the time of approval of this annual
report.

PROFESSIONAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE
BOARD

There are four professional committees under the Board, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee and strategy and investment committee the
(“Strategy and Investment Committee”).

1. Audit Committee

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee
consisted of three Directors, including two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. GAO Jiaxiang and Mr. YE
Xiang, and one non-executive Director, Mr. CHEN Kan
(appointed in September 2021). Mr. GAO Jiaxiang currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. LIU
Quancheng resigned as a member of the Nomination
Committee in September 2021.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, the following:

° To examine the accounting policies and practices
regarding the preparation of financial statements
of the Company;

° To monitor the preparation process of periodic
financial reports and examine the periodic financial
reports, financial results and relevant information
disclosed in other announcements;
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To evaluate the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control framework, to consult with the
management level regarding the scope and quality
of the internal control system, and to ensure that
the management has performed their duties for
ensuring the internal control system being effective,
including whether the following are sufficient: the
resources required, qualifications and experiences
of such accounting and financial reporting staff,
and the training program and budget to relevant
employees;

To examine the internal investigation results and
responses from the management with respect to any
and all suspected dishonest acts, non-compliance
incidents, absence of internal control or suspected
violation of laws, regulations and rules;

To inspect and monitor the scope, effectiveness
and results of the functions of internal examination
and verification, to ensure the mutual coordination
between the internal and the external auditor(s), and
to ensure that the functions of internal examination
and verification can be provided with sufficient
resources and are in the appropriate position within
the Group;

To investigate the financial and accounting policies
and practices of the Group;

To consult with the external auditor(s) for examining
and verifying any recommendations arising from
audit works; to review such management proposal
regarding the status of examination and verification
whereas such proposal was proposed by auditor(s)
to the management; to check any material questions
regarding the accounting record, financial account
or control system put forward to the management
by the accounting firm, the feedback of the
management or other correspondence documents;
and to ensure effective communication between the
independent accountants and the management;

To ensure that the Board can timely respond to
the issues to be put forward in the management
proposal prepared by the external auditor(s);

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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To understand the internal control and related
process implemented by the management and
guarantee that such financial reports and statements
obtained from the existing financial system are
in compliance with the relevant standards and
requirements and are examined, verified and
approved by the management;

To check and examine the following arrangements
made by the Company: the employees of the
Company may secretly raise concerns in relation
to possible occurrence of inappropriate actions in
respect of financial reporting, internal control or other
aspects; to ensure that appropriate arrangements
will be made to conduct fair and independent
investigation and appropriate action will be adopted
regarding such matters; and

To report to the Board regarding the matters
concerning the provisions of the Code.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four WEHA - BiFZEgABHAM
N

meetings, details of which are set out as follows: REFE - BRAFBEEHINOT

The sixth meeting of the second session of the Audit
Committee was held on 19 March 2021, at which
resolutions, among others, (1) Resolution regarding
the Independent Auditor's Report and the Audited
Financial Statements, Results Announcement and
Annual Report for 2020; (2) Final Financial Accounts
of the Company for 2020; (3) Financial Budget
Report of the Company for 2021; (4) Resolution
regarding the Profit Distribution Plan for 2020 and
the Proposed Distribution of Final Dividend of the
Company for 2020; (5) Resolution regarding the
Re-appointments of the International and Domestic
Auditors of the Company for 2021 and Grant of
the Board to Determine Their Remuneration; (6)
Resolution on the Connected Transactions of the
Company in 2020; (7) Evaluation Report on the Risk
and Internal Control of the Company in 2020; and (8)
2020 Corporate Governance Report of the Company
were considered and approved.
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The seventh meeting of the second session of the
Audit Committee was held on 20 August 2021,
at which the Resolution on 2021 Interim Financial
Statements, Results Announcement and Interim
Report of the Company was considered and
approved.

The first meeting of the third session of the Audit
Committee was held on 25 November 2021, at
which the Resolution on the Work Plan of Internal
Control, Supervision and Appraisal of the Company
of 2021 was considered and approved.

The second meeting of the third session of the
Audit Committee was held on 30 December 2021,
at which the Resolution on the Provision for Partial
Asset Impairment, Bad Debts and Estimated
Liabilities was considered and approved.

The record of attendance is set out as follows:
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202112 A30H81TE
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B EEMBEERE  =E
EERETABENER -

HERERT

Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance
RE HEREEHERE
GAO Jiaxiang (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 4/4
BRE(BHEEGERE)

YE Xiang 4/4
39

LIU Quancheng™ 0/2
230

CHEN Kan 2/2
R

Note: Wiz -

(1)
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Mr. LIU Quancheng did not attend two meetings as
he was on business trips.
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Nomination Committee

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three Directors, including two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. GAO Jiaxiang and Mr. MAO
Zhuanjian, and one executive Director, Mr. WANG Yanwen
(appointed in June 2021). Mr. WANG Yanwen currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. QU Bo resigned as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in June 2021.

(1) The main duties of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things, the following:

° To put forward a proposal regarding the
structure of the Board, its scale and
constitution (including technique, knowledge
and experience) to the Board based on the
Company's operational activities, asset scale
and equity structure;

° To study the standards and procedures
for the selection of Directors and Senior
Management, and to put forward relevant
proposals to the Board,;

° To extensively identify candidates qualified
for Directors and Senior Management;

° To investigate the candidates for Directors
and the candidates for Senior Management
and submit relevant proposals;

° To review and make recommendations on the
appointment of other Senior Management
that needs to be brought to the attention of
the Board,

° To evaluate the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and

° To submit proposals regarding the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
and the succession plan of Directors (and
in particular the chairman and the chief
executive) to the Board.
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The process of the Nomination Committee to select
Directors and Senior Management is as follows:

The Nomination Committee shall
communicate with relevant departments
of the Company and study the demand for
new Directors and Senior Management and
present such information in writing;

The Nomination Committee may extensively
seek for candidates for Directors and
Senior Management within the Company,
its holding (associate) enterprises and the
human resources market;

The Nomination Committee shall gather
information as to the occupation, academic
qualifications, title of the position, detailed
work experience and all the concurrent
positions of the candidates and present such
information in writing;

The nominee shall not be deemed as the
candidate for Director or Senior Management
unless his/her consent for nomination is
obtained;

The Nomination Committee shall convene
a meeting to review the qualifications of
the candidates in accordance with the
requirements for Directors and Senior
Management;

The Nomination Committee shall make
suggestion to the Board regarding the
candidates for the Director and Senior
Management position and submit relevant
information to the Board ten days prior to the
election of new Directors and appointment
of new Senior Management; and

The Nomination Committee shall carry
out other follow-up work according to the
decision of and feedback from the Board.
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Nomination policy:

The terms of paragraphs (1) and (2) above are the
main standards and principles to be considered
in the nomination of Directors and constitute the
nomination policy of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings, details of which
are set out as follows:

° The fifth meeting of the second session of
the Nomination Committee was held on 19
March 2021, at which (1) the Resolution
on the Composition of the Board and the
Implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy of the Company for 2020; and (2)
the Resolution on the Independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company were considered and approved.

° The sixth meeting of the second session
of the Nomination Committee was held on
30 June 2021, at which the Resolution on
the Nomination of Candidates for General
Manager of the Company was considered
and approved.

° The seventh meeting of the second session
of the Nomination Committee was held on
25 August 2021, at which the Resolution on
the Nomination of Candidates for Directors
of the Third Session of the Board of the
Company was considered and approved.
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LEERRE(E)

The record of attendance is set out as follows:

G FREmT

Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance
RE HERE FEERERE
QU Bo (Former chairman of the Nomination Committee)" 0N
HE(AIRBEEEEF)

WANG Yanwen (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 2/2
FEX(REEEGER)

GAO Jiaxiang 3/3
[SER:

MAO Zhuanjian 3/3
EHE

Note: Kt -

(1) Mr. QU Bo did not attend the meeting due to (1) MRS AR T EH

work adjustment.

The Board Diversity Policy is set out in the section
headed “Board Diversity” under the corporate
governance report on page 88 of this annual report.

3. Remuneration and Evaluation Committee

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee consisted of three Directors, including
two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. YE Xiang and
Mr. MAQO Zhuanjian, and one non-executive Director, Mr.
WU Daging (appointed in September 2021). Mr. YE Xiang
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee. Mr. WANG Yanwen resigned as a
member of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
in September 2021.

The main duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee include, among other things, the following:

2021 Annual Report

With respect to the policy and structure of
remuneration regarding the Directors and Senior
Management and the establishment of such official
and transparent procedures for formulating such
remuneration policies, to propose a proposal to the
Board;

To investigate and approve the proposal on the
remuneration of the Senior Management based on
the corporate principles and goals set by the Board;
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To determine the specific remuneration of all
executive Directors and Senior Management,
including but not limited to basic salary, warrant
and non-monetary interests, pension and bonus, and
indemnified amount (including the indemnification for
the loss or termination of position or appointment);

To advise on the Board regarding the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

To take consideration of the remuneration paid
by comparable companies, such time required to
be spent by the Directors, scope of duties of the
Directors, employment conditions for other positions
within the Group, and whether the remuneration
shall be determined based on the performance
thereof;

To investigate and approve such compensation
required to be paid to executive Directors and Senior
Management due to the loss or termination of their
positions or appointment, in order to ensure that
such compensation shall be determined pursuant
to the relevant contractual terms. Should such
determination fail to be made pursuant to the
relevant contractual terms, such compensation
should be fair and reasonable and not excessive;

To investigate and approve such compensation
arrangements involving the termination of
employment or dismissal of the relevant Directors
due to the inappropriate act of such Directors, in
order to ensure that such arrangements shall be
determined pursuant to the relevant contractual
terms. Should such determination fail to be made
pursuant to the relevant contractual terms, such
relevant compensation should be reasonable and
appropriate;

To ensure that no Directors nor any associates would
determine their own remuneration by themselves;

To investigate the performance of duties by Directors
(non-independent Directors) and Senior Management
and conduct annual performance appraisal regarding
such Directors and Senior Management; and

To study Share incentive schemes.

Er2RITEERSR
EIRE B E B NS
&%EW@F EAREH
R HE R IES B A
= LW@&ﬁi LA
BESB(PEERNL
IFBE S s Emp MBS (E) :

IEH

RIFMTEZNTFMAE
EgREER

= BREAARX NGOG
B EEAMHOBER
EEWME - AEENED
Wiz 0B AR IR AR
REEERREMETH

B

BRI ERRITEER
BRERELFHEERR
WR ISR ETMAEX
NHEEE UHERZS
BERAENE Q&R E

HREERBBEE DK
REE  BETARFS
B AEBRE

B R EF AR EET
RREMBRERELEH
BEEMPRMEERS
ARERZF R TIIZERE
BRMRREE « BB
BHEAHNIGTEE  BH
BETAREREES

BRIATAESEHEM
MBBALTETETER
ek

EEEECEEVES)R
SREEENBITRERE
NN ETTEEERE
i R

ok AE Rt

I FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHAERAR

99



100

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RERWE (B)

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee held one meeting, details of which
are set out as follows:

o The third meeting of the second session of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee was held
on 19 March 2021, at which (1) the Report on
Remuneration Policies and Structure of All Directors
and Senior Management of the Company for 2020;
and (2) the Resolution on Performance of the Senior
Management Members of the Company and Their
Annual Performance Appraisal Incentives for 2020
were considered and approved.

The record of attendance is set out as follows:

BEHA - FMEEZRESE
M—R&#% EEFBEHI W
_F .

. 20214319 B1TEH -
EEHEMREXEESE =
ReF  BRRUESES
(1)2020F ERAIEE K
BREEAB R EH
BURREEERRE : &
(2R 2020 E R Al &
BEBABERBBERLE
EEREZERNER -

GEAFREIT

Number of attendance/required

Member

HE

number of attendance

R B e IR

YE Xiang (Chairman of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee)
A (HMEEZEEGEE)

MAO Zhuanjian

EEE

WU Daging

RKE

WANG Yanwen

FEX

A

11

0/0

A

4. Strategy and Investment Committee 4.

As atthe Latest Practicable Date, the Strategy and Investment
Committee consisted of one executive Director, one non-
executive Director and one independent non-executive
Director including Mr. TIAN Dan (appointed in September
2021), Mr. WANG Jungi (appointed in September 2021)
and Mr. MAO Zhuanjian. Mr. TIAN Dan currently serves as
the chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee.
Mr. WANG Yanwen and Mr. LIU Ruixiang resigned as the
chairman and member of the Strategy and Investment
Committee in September 2021 respectively.

The main duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee
include, among other things, the following:

o To study and advise on the strategic plans for the
long-term development of the Company;

o To study and advise on the material investment and
financing proposals required to be approved by the
Board pursuant to the Articles of Association;

2021 Annual Report
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o To study and advise on the material capital operation
and asset operational projects that are required to
be approved by the Board pursuant to the Articles
of Association;

o To consider the acquisition and investment
development strategies and the annual investment
plans of the Company;

o To consider the Company's project evaluation
system, which includes effective evaluation
institutions and professionals, complete evaluation
procedures, reasonable evaluation criteria, and other
factors;

° To consider and determine the acquisition and
disposal of projects within the scope as authorized
by the Board,

° To study and advise on the material issues that may
impact the Company's development;

o To carry out examination and checking over the
above-mentioned matters; and

° To carry out other matters authorized by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Strategy and Investment
Committee held four meetings, details of which are set
out as follows:

° The second meeting of the second session of the
Strategy and Investment Committee was held on
19 March 2021, at which, among others, (1) the
Resolution on the Investment Plan of the Company
for the year of 2021; (2) the Resolution on the
Financing Plan of the Company for the year of
2021; and (3) the Resolution regarding the Banks’
Comprehensive Credit of the Company for 2021
were considered and approved.

° The third meeting of the second session of the
Strategy and Investment Committee was held on 15
June 2021, at which, the Resolution on the Apply to
NAFMII for Registration for Issuance of Super Short-
term Commercial Paper, Short-term Commercial
Paper and Medium Term Note and for Issuance of
Super Short-term Commercial Paper was considered
and approved.
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PEER/RME(E)
o The first meeting of the third session of the Strategy o 202111 A25 B8 175
and Investment Committee was held on 25 November “EHREREZEEF
2021, at which, (1) the Resolution on Entering into —REFE - B RAEM)
of the Financial Services Agreement with China R EREKEEE S
Datang Finance Co., Ltd.; (2) the Resolution on BRAREFK 2R R
Entering into of the Financial Services Agreement WEIFER (2 BN HE
with China Datang Group Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. FREAEEEREAIERE
were considered and approved. RAF#ZECE B IRTE
FOMER -
o The second meeting of the third session of the o 202112 A30B #1758
Strategy and Investment Committee was held on T EEEEGEZESE
30 December 2021, at which, (1) the Resolution on ZREE  FBERAOE)
Investment and Establishment of Datang Linzhou RN E A R ST R AR
New Energy Co., Ltd. and Change in Use of Net REREREEAR ME
Proceeds from Listing; (2) the Resolution on TTTESESFERED
Adjustment of Investment Plans for Large, Medium EEQQBERAELQA
and Small-sized Infrastructure Projects of the 2021 F E KRR K/ NRUE
Company in 2021 were considered and approved. BIBHREENGER -
The record of attendance is set out as follows: SHEFELEOT
Number of attendance/required
Member number of attendance
j24= HEREFEHERE
TIAN Dan (Chairman of the Strategy and Investment Committee) 2/2
A (BB ELZEEEE)
WANG Yanwen (Former chairman of the Strategy and Investment
Committee) 2/2
FTEX(FIBKEEERZERERF)
MAQO Zhuanjian 4/4
EHE
LIU Ruixiang™ 0/2
2Fm0
WANG Jungi 2/2
F1ERS
Note: Hiet -
(1) Mr. LIU Ruixiang did not attend two meetings due to (1) EMAELERTIERARRS
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Supervisory Committee
comprised three Supervisors, one of whom is an employee
representative Supervisor, including Mr. HUANG Yuan, Mr. ZHANG
Xuefeng and Ms. LUO Li. Mr. HUANG Yuan has served as the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee, who has replaced the
position of Ms. HUO Yuxia, since 9 September 2021, Mr. ZHANG
Xuefeng has replaced Mr. LIU Liming as the Supervisor since 9
September 2021, and Ms. LUO Li has replaced Mr. CHEN Li as
the employee representative Supervisor since 25 January 2021.

The functions and duties of the Supervisory Committee include
but not limited to reviewing the Company's financial reports,
supervising the performance of the Company’s duties of the
Directors and Senior Management and proposing the dismissal
of the Directors and Senior Management who are in breach of laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association or the resolutions of
the general meeting, requiring Directors, the general manager of
the Company and other Senior Management to rectify any actions
which impair the interests of the Company, proposing to convene
the extraordinary general meetings, convening and presiding over
the general meeting in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and preside over the general meetings,
putting forward proposals to the general meetings and reviewing
the periodic report formulated by the Board and putting forward
written opinions on audit.

Each term of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she
may serve consecutive terms if re-elected. A Supervisor shall
continue to perform his/her duties in accordance with the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until
a duly re-elected Supervisor takes office, if re-election is not
conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of
office or if the resignation of Supervisors results in the number
of Supervisors being less than the quorum.
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During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee held three WMEHRRK BEEEHBIT=X
meetings, details of which are set out as follows: BT :

104

The seventh meeting of the second session of the
Supervisory Committee was held on 26 March 2021, at
which resolutions, among others, (1) Work Report of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company for 2020; (2)
Resolution regarding the Independent Auditor's Report,
Audited Financial Statements, Results Announcement and
the Annual Report of the Company for 2020; (3) Report on
the Final Financial Accounts of the Company for 2020; (4)
Final Budget Report of the Company for 2021; (5) Resolution
regarding the Profit Distribution Plan of the Company for
2020 and the Proposed Distribution of Final Dividend in
2020; (6) Resolution regarding the Re-appointment of the
Domestic and International Auditors of the Company for
2021 and the Authorization of the Board to Determine
Their Remuneration; (7) Resolution regarding the Connected
Transactions of the Company for 2020; (8) Work Report on
the Risk and Internal Control of the Company for 2020; (9)
Report on the Use of Raised Fund of the Company; and
(10) Report on the Remuneration Policy of the Company’s
Supervisors for 2020 were considered and approved.

The eighth meeting of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 25 August 2021, at which, the
Resolution on Nomination of Candidates for Supervisors
of the Third Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company was considered and approved.

The first meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 9 September 2021, at which,
the Resolution on Election of the Chairman of the Third
Session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
was considered and approved.
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The record of attendance is set out as follows:

rEER®RE (&)

SRHLFREET

Number of attendance/required

Member number of attendance

RE HEREEHERE

HUANG Yuan (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee) 11

BR(EEFERE)

HUO Yuxia (Former chairman of the Supervisory Committee)” 1/2

EMNE(AESFEERE)"

CHEN Li 0/0

il

LUO Li 3/3

EH

LIU Liming 2/2

IS

Note: BfsE

(1) Ms. HUO Yuxia did not attend one of the meetings as she (1) MEZTHEAQABLHERSMEF
was on a business trip. /’A"Q% °

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021. The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources
to continue its business for the foreseeable future, and are not
aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is
responsible for presenting a clear and understandable assessment
of the annual and interim reports, inside information, price sensitive
information and other disclosures as required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management of the
Company has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an assessment
of the financial information and status of the Group before giving
its approval. The Group is not exposed to any material uncertainty
that may exert significant impact on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.
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VL.

VII.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR DEALING IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY BY ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for dealing in the securities of the Company by all Directors,
Supervisors and relevant employees of the Company (as defined
in the Model Code). According to the specific enquiries of all
Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and Supervisors confirmed
that they had strictly complied with the standard set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Board will
examine the corporate governance practices and operation of the
Group from time to time to ensure that the Group is in compliance
with relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and that the
Shareholders’ interests are safeguarded.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company has established complete and stable risk management
and internal control systems, and has formulated a series of rules
to ensure that the Company's risk management and internal control
work are institutionalized and systematic. The Company has 9
functional departments responsible for works including financial
operation and monitoring, risk management, internal audit and anti-
fraud, in which the work related to risk management and internal
control shall be carried by the legal risk control department. The
Company has set up the comprehensive risk management leading
group and office, which are responsible for risk management
and internal control related work. The Company also establishes
full-time risk management positions. The general manager of the
Company holds the post of the group leader.

The Group will carry out risk assessment at the beginning of
each year, set objectives of risk prevention and control, revise
risk assessment standards, collect risk management information,
identify key risk sources, assess risk levels, develop risk prevention
strategies and improve measures for significant risks, ensuring
which are to be carried out by the functional departments. The
work report of risk control of the Company shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee of the Board for consideration in March
annually. The Company focuses on the prior control of major risks,
actively carries out comprehensive risk management, establishes
and improves the normalization mechanism of risk assessment,
and establishes special risk assessment system for important
matters such as significant domestic and foreign investment,
major capital operation and management of large amounts of
capital use in order to strengthen internal control. The Company
has formulated the “Information Disclosure Management System”,
which stipulates the duties and obligations of various departments
in the process of internal information processing, the procedures
for the disclosure of periodic reports and interim reports, and the
confidential measures and corresponding responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ( NTI D)

In case of inside information, all business management departments
of the Company shall fill in the inside information registration form
immediately and file it with the Company's inside information
management department. The registration and filing materials
of insiders should be kept for at least 10 years. The Company
should also make the memorandum on the progress of material
matters such as acquisition, major asset restructuring, issuance of
securities, merger, division and share repurchase, including but not
limited to the time of various key nodes in the course of planning
and decision-making, list of personnel participating in planning and
decision-making, and the means of planning and decision-making.
The relevant personnel involved in the memorandum should
sign on the memorandum for confirmation. If an insider violates
the system and discloses the Company’s inside information, or
uses the Company's inside information for insider dealing, or
suggests others to use the inside information for trading which
cause serious impact and losses to the Company, the Company
may, according to the seriousness of the circumstances, impose
disciplinary sanctions to the relevant responsible persons and
may investigate their corresponding legal liabilities. In the event
of causing material losses to the Company constituting a crime,
the responsible person shall be transferred to the judicial authority
for criminal responsibility according to law.

The Board is responsible for maintaining a proper risk management
and internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ investments
and Company’s assets and with the support of the Audit Committee,
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.
The risk management and internal control system is designed to
identify, assess and report on potential risks and implement control
measures, to mitigate rather than to completely eliminate the risks
associated with achieving our business objectives. These systems
provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group, including financial control,
operation control, compliance control, and risk management
system, and was not aware of any material problems or any
material mistakes. The Board believes that the current monitoring
systems of the Company are effective and adequate and that
the Company has sufficient experience and resources as to the
qualifications and experience of the staff, performing accounting
and financial reporting functions and the training programmes of
the Company as well as setting the budget of the Company.
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VIIL.

IX.

BoadmE (8

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young and Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (collectively,
"Ernst & Young") were appointed as international and domestic
auditors of the Company to audit the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in
accordance with IFRSs and the PRC GAAP, respectively. Aggregate
fees in respect of audit and audit-related services provided by Ernst
& Young payable by the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 were RMB3.23 million.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of individual Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management is in place. The Remuneration and Evaluation
Committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the
remuneration policies and plans of the Directors, Supervisors, the
general manager of the Company and other Senior Management,
and shall be accountable to the Board. Details of the remuneration
for Directors, Supervisors and top five employees in respect of

I\

h.

ZBEN &

LXEBETRAI BB R KERG RIS
BRR(EREBER) (BEIRX)H 5
EZAEARRRBEBRRENZEAM - 5
RBEHFTAARBE2021F12A318
IEFE R R iR 228 R B
XS ERNRRNMERE - R KR
BB RETEARE - A28 RE
F2021F12A31B L FEXHHEI& 42
BEAAREI2ZHET °

EE EERERTEEED
)

AR ETENEE EEkafk
EREEMNTHNEFEEE ERARERNRE
FFoSMEEREZESBERFTREN
BEE  EE  AQRALERHEMESH
ERENTHBRKTE  YRAEFE

B EENALEBROFMET
BN S F BT RAFERE 2R
K159 ~ 10%35(d) - EE2021F121

remuneration are set out in Notes 9, 10 and 35(d) to the financial NBLEFE  SREBENTHNEGES
statements in this annual report. For the year ended 31 December Fan
2021, the scope of remuneration for the Senior Management is
set out below:

Number of Senior
Scope of remuneration (RMB’000) Management
FHEE(ARE T ) SREEREAHY
0-500 3
500-1,000 8
Note: The number of the members disclosed above includes it NERBABBESRERRERE

the Senior Management and those who act as executive
Directors and Supervisors.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company held a total of three

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

rEER®RE (&)

GENERAL MEETINGS +. BREX®
WMEHRN > AR HEBITZABREK
g - ﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬁ%@ﬁ@laﬁﬁﬂ—l—-

general meetings, with attendance of Directors as follows:

Number of attendance/

Name Position number of the meeting
A Bt FERE,FEH R
WANG Yanwen Chairman of the Board and executive Director 3/3
FEX EERAWTES
TIAN Dan Executive Director and general manager 3/3
B PITES AR
WANG Junqi Non-executive Director 2/2
FHERR FEMITES
WU Daging Non-executive Director 2/2
RRE FEMITES
CHEN Kan Non-executive Director 2/2
BRAT HEMITES
SONG Yunpeng Non-executive Director (Employee representative 11

Director)
REMNS FMITEF(BINRRES)
YE Xiang Independent non-executive Director 3/3
=) BUERITES
MAO Zhuanjian Independent non-executive Director 3/3
EER BUERITES
GAOQ Jiaxiang Independent non-executive Director 3/3
BRF BUERITES
QU Bo Former chairman of the Board and 11

non-executive Director
i) AMEERMIENTES
LIU Quancheng™ Former non-executive Director 0/1
el RIFEITES
LIU Ruixiang? Former non-executive Director 0/1
22 RIFEITES
LI Zhenyu® Former non-executive Director 0/1
FEFO RIFEITES
Notes: Btet -
(1) Mr. LIU Quancheng did not attend the meeting as he was (1) B2t ERABHEERE2NE

on a business trip. & o
(2) Mr. LIU Ruixiang did not attend the meeting as he was on a (2) BEMETERABTEERE2 NS
business trip. & o

(3) Mr. LI Zhenyu did not attend the meeting as he was on a (3) FEFEERABEERE2NE

business trip.

& o
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Xl. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS +— R EE

The Company has highly appreciated Shareholders’ opinions and ARalmEERRERNERMESR &
advice, actively organised various investor relations activities BARSHEREERESD - HRER
to maintain connections with Shareholders and made timely HER  MFEERINEEERX -

responses to the reasonable requests of Shareholders.

The Company has also adopted a set of dividend policy, and the NABIEIETREBE - MERRAR
actual dividends declared and paid to Shareholders depend on a RE IR RIRT R /i\gﬁﬁﬁﬁ? £l
series of factors. For specifics of the dividend policy, please refer EEME - BRAARREBEN AL
to the Prospectus. AR - E%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ °

1.  Shareholders’ Rights 1.

The Board is committed to communicating with Shareholders
and makes disclosure in due course about the Company’s
major developments to Shareholders and investors of the
Company.

The general meeting of the Company provides Shareholders
and the Board with good communication opportunities. A
twenty business days' prior written notice for convening
the annual general meeting of the Company shall be given.
A ten business days or fifteen days’ (whichever is longer)
prior written notice for convening the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company shall be given. Business day refers
to the day on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is open
for securities trading. The date of the general meeting and
the date when the notice is dispatched shall not be included
in the calculation of the period for issuing such notice.

The Company's general meetings include annual general
meetings, which are held once each year within 6 months
from the close of the preceding financial year, and
extraordinary general meetings, which are convened in
compliance with the Articles of Association and whenever
the Board considers appropriate. Shareholders, individually
or jointly, holding a total of more than 10% (inclusive) of the
Company's issued and outstanding Shares carrying voting
rights are entitled to request in writing for convening an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to the procedures
set out in the Articles of Association. And such meetings
shall be held within 2 months after the requisition is
presented.

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals during the
general meetings may raise their hands and speak in the
order of registration at any time after the resolutions to be
considered at the meeting are announced. The Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management shall respond to the
questions and suggestions from Shareholders.

2021 Annual Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of all
committees under the Board (or, in whose absence, other
members of the committees) will answer question(s) at
the general meetings. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, any
vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken
by poll. Poll results are deemed resolutions of the meeting.

The Board encourages Shareholders to attend general
meetings to communicate directly concern(s) they may
have with the Board or the management of the Company.
Shareholders holding 3% or more of the Company’s Shares
with voting right have the right to put up ad hoc proposals
in writing to the Company, and the Company shall include
such ad hoc proposals into the agenda for such general
meeting if they are matters falling within the functions and
powers of general meeting. The ad hoc proposals raised
by Shareholders shall satisfy the following requirements: (i)
free of conflicts with the provisions of laws and regulations,
and fall into the terms of reference of the general meeting;
(i) with definite topics to discuss and specific matters to
resolve; and (iii) submitted or served to the Board in writing
10 days prior to the date of the general meeting.

Detailed voting procedures and resolutions being voted on
by way of poll are contained in the circulars dispatched to
Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Inquiries

If you have any query in connection with your shareholdings,
including Share transfer, change of address or wish to
report loss of Shares or dividend warrant, please write to or
contact the Company's H Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at:

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8555

Fax: (852) 2865-0990

Website: www.computershare.com.hk
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3. Investor Relations and Communications

The Company set up a website at www.dteg.com.cn,
as a channel to promote communication, publishing
announcements, financial information and other relevant
information of the Company. Shareholders are welcome
to make enquiries directly to the Company at its principal
place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner. The
primary contact of the Company is Mr. WANG Xiaofeng (at
email: ir@dteg.com.cn or tel: +86 10 5838 9858).

CHANGE OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

With the special resolutions passed at the annual general meeting
held on 30 June 2021 and at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 9 September 2021, the Company has amended the Articles
of Association, the amendments to which were effective from 30
June 2021 and 9 September 2021, respectively. For details of the
amendments to the Articles of Association, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 March 2021, 30 June
2021, 20 August 2021 and 9 September 2021, the circulars of the
Company dated 19 April 2021 and 20 August 2021, and the latest
Articles of Association.

On 30 June 2021 and 9 September 2021, the Company passed the
resolutions at the annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting to make amendments to the then applicable Articles of
Association respectively. The aforementioned versions of Articles
of Association have been published on the website of the Stock
Exchange. Save for the amendments to the Articles of Association
disclosed above, the Company has not made any significant
changes to the Articles of Association during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The significant subsequent events occurred after 31 December
2021 are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements in this
annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

EVENTS RELATING TO INVESTOR RELATIONS
IN 2021

1. Investors’ Routine Visits

During the Reporting Period, the Group always gave detailed
answers to the queries raised by investors and analysts in
compliance with the information disclosure rules. As at the
end of 2021, the Company had adequate communications
and exchange of ideas with investors and analysts from a
number of institutions via meetings, telephone calls, emails
and WeChat.

2. Participation in Investment Summits

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively participated
in major summits and investment forums in the PRC and
Hong Kong organised by world-famous investment banks,
at which we had one-on-one or group meetings to promote
in-depth communication with important global investors.

3.  Results Briefings

During the Reporting Period, the Company published its
2020 annual results and 2021 interim results. In March
2021, the management of the Company convened the
2020 annual results presentation and the conference call
with investors. In August 2021, the management of the
Company held the 2021 interim results presentation and
the conference call with investors.

OUTLOOK FOR MANAGEMENT OF
INVESTOR RELATIONS IN 2021

In 2021, the Company will focus more on demands of investors
and analysts, pay close attention to important policies of the
environmental protection and energy conservation industry, timely
make public disclosable information and continuously improve
the timeliness and completeness of data disclosure to provide
the public with timely access to complete business information.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EERHE

In 2021, all members of the Supervisory Committee earnestly
performed their supervisory obligations to safeguard the rights
and interests of the Group and the Shareholders in accordance
with the Company Law, the Articles of Association, the Rules
of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee and the relevant
provisions in the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN COMPOSITION

In January 2021, Mr. CHEN Li resigned as the employee
representative Supervisor with effect from 25 January 2021 due
to the expiry of the term of office. Ms. LUO Li was elected
and appointed as the employee representative Supervisor at
the employee representative meeting of the Company held on
25 January 2021 to replace Mr. CHEN Li and also served as
the member of the Supervisory Committee, with effect from 25
January 2021. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 25 January 2021 with respect to resignation and
appointment of the employee representative Supervisor.

In September 2021, Ms. HUO Yuxia and Mr. LIU Liming resigned
as the Supervisors with effect from 9 September 2021 due to the
expiry of the term of office. Mr. HUANG Yuan and Mr. ZHANG
Xuefeng were elected and appointed as the Supervisors at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 September
2021 to replace Ms. HUO Yuxia and Mr. LIU Liming. Mr. HUANG
Yuan was elected as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee at
the first meeting of the third session of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company held on 9 September 2021. For details, please
refer to the poll results announcement of the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company dated 9 September 2021.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period and as at the Latest Practicable Date,
the Supervisory Committee held three meetings, details of which
are set out as follows:

° The seventh meeting of the second session of the
Supervisory Committee was held on 26 March 2021, at
which resolutions, among others, (1) work report of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company for 2020; (2)
the proposal regarding the independent auditor’s report,
audited financial statements, results announcement and
the annual report of the Company for 2020; (3) the report
on the final financial accounts of the Company for 2020;
(4) the final budget report of the Company for 2021; (5)
the proposal regarding the profit distribution plan for 2020
and the proposed distribution of 2020 final dividend of the
Company; (6) the proposal regarding the re-appointments of
the international and domestic auditors of the Company for
2021 and grant of the Board to determine their remuneration;
(7) the proposal regarding the connected transactions of the
Company for 2020; (8) the report on the risk and internal
control of the Company for 2020; (9) the report on the use
of raised funds of the Company; and (10) the report on the
remuneration policy of Supervisors of the Company for 2020
were considered and approved.

° The eighth meeting of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 25 August 2021, at which the
resolution regarding the nomination of the candidates
for Supervisors of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company was considered and approved.

° The first meeting of the third session of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 9 September 2021, at which the
resolution regarding the election of the chairman of the third
session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company was
considered and approved.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
ESgws(E

V.

PRINCIPAL INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION
WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
IN 2021

Members of the Supervisory Committee carried out
supervision and inspection of the financial position of the
Company and its financial management, risk management
and internal control systems, including regular inspections
of the financial reports and financial budgets and irregular
reviews of accounting documents and books of the
Company.

Members of the Supervisory Committee attended all general
meetings and Board meetings without voting rights during
the Reporting Period, exercising supervision in respect of
the lawfulness and compliance of the procedures of the
matters considered by the Board meetings.

The Supervisory Committee made no objection to the
reports and resolutions tabled at the general meetings and
were convinced that the Board had faithfully implemented
the resolutions approved by the general meetings.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS ISSUED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT
MATTERS

Operation and Management of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained a
stable development in its general operation, and achieved a
breakthrough in the business segments such as denitrification
catalysts and water treatment. The management of the
Company attached great importance to safety management
and ensured smooth situation in production safety, actively
promoted technological innovation and achieved a series of
research outcomes, vigorously developed external markets
and expanded client bases significantly and continuously
improved the level of management in core business.
The management of the Company faithfully fulfilled their
duties and responsibilities as stipulated in the Articles of
Association and earnestly implemented the resolutions
approved by the Board.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Financial Position of the Company

Members of the Supervisory Committee monitored and
examined the financial management system and the financial
condition and reviewed relevant financial information of the
Company. Upon examination, the Supervisory Committee
concluded that the Company had strictly complied with the
relevant financial laws, regulations and financial policies,
and that the financial management system was sound and
implemented effectively and the accounting treatment was
in line with the consistency principles and the Company’s
financial reports gave an objective and fair view of the
financial position and operating results of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the standard and
unmodified audit opinion issued by Ernst & Young in respect
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, and raised no objection to such reports.

Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the connected
transactions between the Group and its respective
connected persons during the Reporting Period, and was
of the opinion that all the connected transactions complied
with the relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and
other applicable laws, and that the pricing of the connected
transactions was reasonable, open and fair and there was
not any matter prejudicial to the interests of the Company
or Shareholders as a whole.
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Implementation of the Resolutions of
General Meetings

The Supervisory Committee considered that the Board
earnestly implemented the resolutions approved by the
general meetings; the Company further perfected and
improved various risk management and internal control
mechanisms; significant information about the Company
was disclosed in a timely manner pursuant to the securities
regulatory requirements such that the information was
disclosed in a regulated manner and the securities trading
system for the informed parties of inside information was
conducted well; that the Directors and Senior Management
were able to implement conscientiously and thoroughly
relevant laws and regulations, the Articles of Association
and the resolutions of the general meetings and the
Board, performing the duties to the Company in a faithful,
and pioneering manner; and that no Directors or Senior
Management were found to have acts which violated laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association or harmed the
interests of the Company and the rights or interests of
Shareholders during the execution of their duties.

Internal Control of the Company

The Supervisory Committee made a special explanation
of the Company's internal control. It was of the view
that the Company abode by the basic principle of internal
control based on its development strategies and regulatory
requirements, and further improved the risk management
and internal control systems in line with its own actual
situation so that the Company was able to give a reasonable
assurance that the internal control objective would be
achieved. In addition, the Company has established a
complete internal control organizational structure to ensure
that its risk management and internal control systems will
be monitored and implemented effectively and its control
and management capability will continue to increase.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

e A+ ==
EEemE (&)
6. Use of Proceeds by the Company 6. XAFIFIEREHRE
The Supervisory Committee monitored the utilization of EEeWARRAFEHAERERN
the proceeds by the Company. It was of the view that the BRAETEE ESE€RE -
Company was able to manage and utilize the proceeds in NN A RE SR BRE A R AR E R
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations as AR AR B fE B AR EFE R AT 1R A
well as the commitments made by it in the Prospectus. o BENFERMEEIE  BES
The Supervisory Committee will continue to oversee and TRBEEEREMBRIEER
inspect the utilization of the proceeds. B e
By order of the Supervisory Committee AEE®H
Huang Yuan BR
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee EEXeTE
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
E5  ESEkEREEEMN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Yanwen

Born in November 1964, is the chairman, executive Director,
secretary of the Party Committee and the authorized representative
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree, and is a senior
engineer and a member of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Wang
successively served as an electrical technician of the engineering
department, the head of the microwave office, specialized engineer
and deputy director of the communication branch, as well as
director of the communication engineering office of the repair and
maintenance engineering division, the Party branch secretary of the
heating ventilation department and head of the fuel management
department of Shuangyashan Power Plant (28811125 & &%); head of
the general office of Heilongjiang Power Fuel Corporation (FE£&)T
HENREHEAT]); head of the Heilongjiang transportation office
of Datang Power Fuel Co., Ltd. (KEE MK BRAF); deputy
director of the fuel management center of Datang Heilongjiang
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (K/ERBE/LEHEARAF]) and deputy
general manager of Datang Heilongjiang Power Fuel Co., Ltd. (K&
BEEILE NMEIER A R)); director of the fuel management center
of Datang Heilongjiang Power Generation Co., Ltd. and general
manager of Datang Heilongjiang Power Fuel Co., Ltd.; vice chief
economist and director of the fuel management center of Datang
Heilongjiang Power Generation Co., Ltd., and general manager of
Datang Heilongjiang Power Fuel Co., Ltd.; vice chief economist
and director of the ideological and political department as well as
deputy secretary of the Party committee directly administrated and
director of the labor union office of Datang Heilongjiang Power
Generation Co., Ltd.; a member of Party committee, head of the
discipline inspection committee and the chairman of the labor
union of Datang Jilin Power Generation Co., Ltd. (KE S M3E
fR A \]); deputy director of the fuel management department of
China Datang; secretary of the Party committee, deputy general
manager, chairman and secretary of the Party committee of Datang
Power Fuel Co., Ltd.; secretary of the Party Committee and deputy
general manager of the Company; general manager and deputy
secretary of the Party Committee of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Mr. Tian Dan

Born in March 1965, is an executive Director, general manager
and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in engineering and a Master’s degree in
business administration. He is a member of the Communist Party
of China and a principal senior engineer. Mr. Tian successively
served as a shift supervisor and technician of the Shanxi Shentou
No. 2 Power Plant (LLIPG#B385 —3¢E®); an engineer at the
Thermal Power Simulation Training Center of Shanxi Electric Power
Company (LL75& T A 7)); an engineer of the Engineering and
Technology Department, manager of the Production Preparation
Department, manager of the Power Generation Department,
deputy chief engineer and deputy general manager of Yangcheng
International Power Generation Co., Ltd. (B EERE AR EER
7]); the deputy general manager of Yangcheng International Power
Generation Co., Ltd. and Datang Yangcheng Power Generation
Co., Ltd.; the secretary of the Party Committee and the deputy
general manager of Yangcheng International Power Generation
Co., Ltd., the deputy general manager of Datang Yangcheng Power
Generation Co., Ltd.; general manager and secretary of the Party
Committee of Yangcheng International Power Generation Co., Ltd.,
general manager of Datang Yangcheng Power Generation Co., Ltd.;
the secretary of the Party Leadership Group and the deputy general
manager of the Chongging branch of Datang International Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (KEEBBREERNBRARIEED A7), the
secretary of the Party Leadership Group and the deputy general
manager of Chongaing Yuneng (Group) Co., Ltd. (EERIREL(EE)A
[RE{E/27)); the secretary of the Party Leadership Group and the
general manager of the Chongging branch of Datang International
Power Generation Co., Ltd.; the general manager and the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee of the Chongging Yuneng
Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (EEREEEXEBR)GREEAR), the
general manager and the deputy secretary of the Communist Party
Committee, the chairman and the secretary of the Communist
Party Committee of the Ningxia branch of China Datang (f Bl A&
%= 89/ 7)); the director of the Ningxia Planning and Development
Center of China Datang (FEIAEEEZEE R EIZEF L), and the
chairman and secretary of the Party committee of Xiong An Energy
Co., Ltd. of China Datang Corporation Ltd. (FE K EEE KL EERE
fR A \]); the executive Director, secretary of the Party Committee
and deputy general manager of the Company; and the executive
Director, general manager and the deputy secretary of the Party
Committee of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
EF  EELSABTEERNE)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Junqi

Born in September 1968, is a non-executive Director. He holds a
Master's degree in engineering, and is a principal senior engineer
and a member of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Wang
successively served as a technician of the ontology team of the
steam turbine maintenance branch of Pingdingshan Yaomeng
Power Plant; a technician in the maintenance department, and
steam turbine engineer in the production department of Sanmenxia
Thermal Power Plant; deputy director, deputy chief engineer and
deputy director of production department, deputy chief engineer,
chief engineer, deputy general manager and chief engineer, and
a member of Party Committee of Sanmenxia Huayang Power
Generation Co., Ltd.; deputy general manager and chief engineer
of Datang Sanmenxia Power Generation Co., Ltd.; the secretary
of the Party Committee of Datang Luoyang Thermal Power Plant;
a Party member, deputy general manager, discipline inspection
team leader and chairman of the trade union of Datang Xinjiang
Power Generation Co., Ltd.; general manager of Datang Hutubi
Energy Development Co., Ltd.; secretary of the Party Committee
and deputy general manager of Datang Xinjiang Power Generation
Co., Ltd.; the general manager and deputy secretary of the Party
Committee of Shanxi Branch of China Datang; the general manager
and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of Datang Shanxi
Power Generation Co., Ltd.; chairman and secretary of the Party
Committee of Datang Henan Power Generation Co., Ltd.; a full-time
director of China Datang. He concurrently serves as a director of
China Datang Group Energy Investment Co., Ltd., and director of
Datang Huayin (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600744).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Mr. Wu Daqing

Bornin June 1964, is a non-executive Director. He holds a Master’s
degree in engineering, and is a principal senior economist and a
member of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Wu successively
served as a reporter editor, deputy director member, and
director member of the Editorial Department of China Electric
Power Newspaper Office; manager of Beijing Zhongdianxing
Art Development Company; manager and director of Exhibition
Office of Beijing Zhongdianxing Art Development Company; deputy
director of Ideological and Political Work Department of China
Datang Corporation; secretary of the Party Leadership Group and
dean of China Datang Corporation Institute of Technology and
Economics; dean and secretary of the Party Leadership Group of
the Cadre Training Institute of China Datang Corporation; director
of the School Affairs Department of the Party School of the CPC
China Datang Corporation; director of the Party School of the
CPC China Datang Corporation; deputy secretary of the Direct
Committee of the CPC China Datang Corporation; director of the
Political Work Department and director of the News Center of
China Datang Corporation; general manager, deputy secretary of
the Party Leadership Group, chairman and secretary of the Party
Committee of Datang Hebei Power Generation Co., Ltd.; leader
of the Party Group Inspection Team of China Datang; a full-time
director of China Datang. He concurrently serves as a director of
China Datang Corporation Energy Investment Co., Ltd..
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Mr. Chen Kan

Born in December 1964, is a non-executive Director. He holds
a Master's degree in engineering, and is a principal senior
economist and a member of the Communist Party of China.
Mr. Chen successively served as an assistant teacher in Water
Resources Teaching and Research Office of Wuhan College of
Water Resources and Hydroelectric Engineering; economist,
section chief, deputy director and director of the Operation
Management Office of Guangxi Yantan Hydropower Project
Construction Company; director and deputy general manager
of Planning Contract Department of Longtan Hydropower
Development Co., Ltd.; a member of Party Leadership Group and
deputy general manager of Longtan Hydropower Development
Co., Ltd.; director and deputy general manager (shareholding)
of Jinsha River Midstream Hydropower Development Co., Ltd.;
director of Guanyinyan Hydropower Project Preparation Office of
China Datang Corporation; general manager of Datang Guanyinyan
Hydropower Development Co., Ltd.; deputy secretary of the Party
Leadership Group and deputy general manager of Yunnan Branch
of China Datang Corporation; general manager and secretary of the
Party Committee of Datang Guanyinyan Hydropower Development
Co., Ltd.; secretary of the Party Leadership Group and general
manager of Yunnan Branch of China Datang Corporation; general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party Leadership Group of
Yunnan Branch of China Datang Corporation; deputy chief engineer
of Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd. and general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party Committee of Inner
Mongolia Branch of Datang International Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.; chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Inner
Mongolia Branch of China Datang; deputy chief engineer of Datang
International Power Generation Co., Ltd.; director of Inner Mongolia
Planning and Development Center of China Datang Corporation;
deputy director of Southern Business Department of China Datang;
a full-time director of China Datang. He concurrently serves as a
director of China Datang Corporation Energy Investment Co., Ltd..
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Mr. Song Yunpeng

Born in April 1967, is a non-executive Director (employee
representative Director). He holds a Master's degree, and is a
member of the Communist Party of China and a principal senior
engineer. Mr. Song successively served as designer, main
designer, deputy chief, chief and deputy director of First Section
of the Thermal Automation Department of Northeast Electric Power
Design Institute (1L &FTBR); project manager and head of
the Integrated Management Department of Shenzhen Branch of
Beijing Guodian (1t 7B % YI15 A F]); assistant to the dean and
associate dean of Jiangsu Nanjing Thermal Power Engineering
Design Institute of Datang Environmental Technology Engineering
Co., Ltd. (RERREHL T2 B2 7)); deputy general manager of
Design Center of Technologies & Engineering Company; deputy
general manager of the Environmental Protection Branch of China
Datang Corporation Environment Technology Co., Ltd. (FBIKE
BIERIMTAR A T); deputy general manager and member of the
Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch of Datang
Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERIBEXEEERAF);
deputy general manager, member of the Party Committee, deputy
secretary of the Party Committee (in-charge) and deputy general
manager of the Environmental Protection Branch of the Company
and concurrently served as deputy general manager and member
of the Party Committee of Beijing Datang Hengtong Mechanical
Transport Technology Co., Ltd. (At R AEEBEWRE A MR A
A)); deputy general manager (in-charge) and deputy secretary of
the Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch of
the Company (Beijing Datang Hengtong Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. bR AKEEBEHEBRAE]). From November 2020 to
present, Mr. Song has been serving as deputy head (in-charge)
of the Party and Mass Work Department, head of the Party and
Mass Work Department and head of the Party Construction Work
Department (Disciplinary Committee Office and Inspection Office)
of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
EF  EELSABTEERNE)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ye Xiang

Born in January 1964, is an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a Doctor’s degree and is a chartered financial analyst. Mr. Ye
has successively served as an economist of the People’s Bank of
China, a senior analyst at the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (&8
£ RIEIER), the executive director of Bank of China International
Holdings Limited (FRiREIFRIEAZBR A F]), the director of China
Affairs of the SFC, an independent director of UBS Securities LLC
(iR AEAREML A A]), a member of the Public Shareholders
Group of the SFC and the managing director of Vision Gain
Capital limited (FE{Z& AR A F]). He concurrently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Wuling Motors Holdings
Limited (R 258 £ B2 AXA R A 7)) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 0305), an independent director of Digital
China Group Co., Ltd. ({#MEEEBEHBBRAF]) (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000034), an
independent non-executive director of 51 Credit Card Inc. (5115
AR /A A (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
2051), and an independent non-executive director of Jinshang Bank
Co., Ltd. (EERITARMDBRAF]) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2558).
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(CONTINUED)

B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Born in June 1953, is an independent non-executive Director.
He holds a Bachelor's degree, and is a professor-level senior
engineer, a core professional of China Electricity Council (“CEC"),
and expert of environmental protection and energy conservation
professionals for the power industry (B H{TERRHEERER
%), and a member of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Mao
successively served as the engineer and director member head of
the environmental protection office of the planning department of
the Ministry of Water and Power Industry (B R 7K E £B); the deputy
head and senior engineer of the Environmental Protection and
Management Division (GRIZEREEEF) under the environmental
protection center for CEC (R EHIRIFIREHL)); deputy director
of the Ministry of Electric Power, State Grid Corporation of China
and the CEC General Office, director and consulting engineer of
the technical consulting office; the manager of environmental
protection division and the manager of climate change response
division of the industry development and the environment
and resources department under the CEC; the vice secretary
for the National Collaborative Network for Desulfurization and
Denitrification Technologies for the Power Industry (Z2BE J17%
BB B B AT 17 16 48); the deputy secretary and deputy secretary
general for the energy conservation and environmental protection
sub-division under the CEC; an senior expert of the energy
conservation and environmental protection sub-division under
the CEC; a member of the energy and environment professional
committee of China Energy Research Association; a member of the
electric power environmental protection committee of the Chinese
Society of Electrical Engineering; a member of the low-carbon
economy working committee of the China Equipment Supervision
Association (T BIREHEIZHE).

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

Born in January 1974, is an independent non-executive Director.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in accounting and a Master's degree
in business administration. Mr. Gao is a certified public accountant
and certified tax agent. Mr. Gao successively served as an audit
manager at Xinxiang Juzhongyuan Certified Public Accountants
(FHMEFRTTSHMEBMABMRETAR); the manager of audit
department at the Beijing branch of Nanfang Minhe Certified
Public Accountants; the department manager at Beijing Zhonghe
Dingxin Certified Public Accountants (3t 5 FME =& 5T A1 E ),
the department manager at Beijing Tianyuanquan Certified Public
Accountants (3t KB 2 & FHEIZ= A7), the chief financial officer of
Beijing Guanshi Foundation International Investment Management
Company Limited (It REREXBEREIEEEEBR A A, the chief
accountant of Risun Chemical Co., Ltd. (JBFZ{L THRAR]); an
executive director and the general manager of Beijing Huamai
Huizhong Technology Co., Ltd. Jt REZEREHER A A)).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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5%  EEkEH
IV.

BIRERZ (&)
SUPERVISORS
Mr. Huang Yuan

Born in June 1972, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee,
deputy secretary of the Party Committee and chairman of the labor
union. He holds a Bachelor's degree in literature and a Master's
degree in engineering, and is a member of the Communist Party
of China and a senior political engineer. Mr. Huang successively
served as assistant editor and reporter of News Department, editor
and reporter of Special Edition Department, editor and reporter of
the Agriculture and Electricity Department, editor, reporter and vice
chairman of the labour union, secretary to the president, and vice
chairman of the labour union of China Electric Power Newspaper
Office; second-level staff, deputy director and director of Publicity
Division of Ideological and Political Work Department, director of
Publicity Division of the Political Work Department, deputy director
of News Center, deputy director of News Center of China Datang
Corporation, and director of Preparation Group for Datang Culture
Media Co., Ltd.; general manager, deputy secretary of the Party
Committee of China Datang Group Culture Media Co., Ltd., deputy
director of the News Center of China Datang; deputy director of
the News Center of China Datang; and deputy secretary of the
Party Committee and chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Xuefeng

Bornin September 1968, a Supervisor. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in accounting, and is a principal senior accountant and a member of
the Communist Party of China. He successively served as an intern
in the Education Division and other divisions of Chifeng Thermal
Power Plant; an accountant in the Finance Division, a cashier of
Finance Division, general ledger statements and cost accountant,
and chief accountant of Hongshan Power Plant; deputy director
of Finance Division of related parent company of Chifeng Thermal
Power Plant; director of Finance Division of Donglong Industrial Co.,
Ltd.; manager of Finance Division of Auxiliary Industry Company;
director of Finance Division of Datang Chifeng Saihanba Wind
Power Co., Ltd.; deputy chief accountant and director of Finance
Division of Datang Chifeng Saihanba Wind Power Co., Ltd.; chief
accountant, chief accountant and director of Finance and Property
Management Department, deputy chief accountant and director of
Finance and Property Management Department of China Datang
Corporation Renewable Power Co., Ltd.; chief accountant, member
of the Party Leadership Group, chief accountant and member of
the Party Committee of Datang Guizhou Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.; chief accountant and member of the Party Committee of
China Datang Corporation Energy Investment Co., Ltd.; a full-time
supervisor of China Datang. He concurrently serves as a supervisor
of Zhongxin Energy and Chemical Technology Company Limited.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Ms. Luo Li

Born in August 1971, an employee representative Supervisor. She
holds a Bachelor's degree, is a member of the Communist Party of
China and a senior political engineer. Ms. Luo had previously served
as: publicity officer of the Party Office of China Hydropower Second
Bureau Construction Branch (FBI/KEZREEH ), officer of
the Party Office, deputy secretary and secretary of Communist
Youth League of China Water Resources and Hydropower Second
Engineering Bureau (R EIZKFI7KEE =T #2/3); assistant director,
deputy director (in charge of work), and director of the Supervision
and Audit Department (Department of ldeological and Politica
Work) of Datang Environmental Technology Engineering Co., Ltd.
(RERBERE T2 AR A F); director of the Supervision and Audit
Department (Department of Ideological and Political Work) of China
Datang Group Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (f B X E £ &R
BRMARAT); director of the Supervision and Audit Department
(Ideological and Political Work Department) and secretary of the
Party Committee of the Environmental Protection Branch of Datang
Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KEREBEXEEERATF);
secretary of the Party Committee of the Environmental Protection
Branch of the Company and secretary of the Party Branch of Datang
Electric Power Design and Research Institute (KEE HRTHAZT
Bt), secretary of the Party Committee of Environmental Protection
Branch, party secretary and vice president of Datang Electric Power
Design and Research Institute (K& E /1 :&X5H%EFR); and principal
of the Discipline Inspection Commission Office of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EF  EELSABTEERNE)

V.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chen Song

Born in May 1968, has been serving as the chief accountant and a
member of the Party Committee of the Company since July 2019.
Mr. Chen has nearly 30 years of experience in power industry.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chen consecutively served as
an accountant of financial division of North China Power Institute
(FE4LE N ETFE) from July 1991 to January 1993; an accountant
of financial department of North China Power Group Co., Ltd.
(FEALTHEBAQR]) from January 1993 to January 1998; senior
head of financial department, vice director of the funds division
and director of property funds division of the financial department
of Beijing Datang Power Generation Company Limited (1t K&
BB AR AR from January 1998 to December 2004; plant
manager assistant, deputy plant manager and concurrently chief
accountant of Beijing Gao Jing Thermal Power Plant (it R &3
ZAE ) from December 2004 to December 2006; vice manager,
vice general manager and vice director of the financial department
of Datang International Power Co., Ltd. (KEBEEZESIRMHER D
A]) from December 2006 to November 2009; general manager
and director of phase Il construction preparation department of
Yunnan Datang International Honghe Power Generation Company
Limited (EEAEBIBRALN EEHBRE(EAF) from November 2009
to December 2012; director of the financial department of Datang
International Power Co., Ltd. from December 2012 to December
2013; and chief accountant and a party committee member of
Datang Renewable from December 2013 to July 2019. Mr. Chen
graduated from Xiamen University (EF9XZ%) with a bachelor's
degree of economics in accounting in July 1991. He obtained the
qualification as a senior accountant in December 2002.
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B BEENSAEEEZDN(E)

Mr. Liu Chundong

Born in February 1970, is a member of the Communist Party of
China, and a senior engineer. Mr. Liu has served as the deputy
general manager of the Company since July 2020. Mr. Liu has
nearly 30 years of extensive experience in the power industry. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Liu served successively as a watch of
operation, chief watch of operation, deputy shift leader, specialist
engineer in operation, specialist engineer in electric operation
and maintenance of the Production Technology Department, shift
supervisor of the Production Technology Department, the director
(maintenance) of the Electrical Branch of Tongliao Power Generation
Plant (REFE B AT D) from July 1991 to January 2005. He
served as a senior engineering supervisor of the Power Generation
Management Department of CPIl Holingol Coal (& E K2 & &8
#B) from January 2005 to May 2008. He served as deputy director
of the Safety Division and Engineering Department of the Power
Generation Department of CPI East Inner Mongolia Energy (F &
SR RAEREEEEN L2 EEMTIEE) and the deputy director
of the Tender and Bid Management Center of CPl East Inner
Mongolia Energy Co., Ltd. (FEXRFREFREE ARG BREERES
L)) from May 2008 to February 2011. He served as the deputy
president of Datang Renewable Power Maintenance Co., Ltd. (X
EHERE HIREER AT as well as the deputy general manager
of Beijing Tanghao Electricity Engineering Technology Research
Co., Ltd. bR EVEE N TEBMAFA R A 5] from February 2011
to January 2012. He served successively as the deputy director
(in charge) of the Science and Information Department and the
director of President Office Department (International Cooperation
Department, Policy and Law Department) of Datang Renewable
from January 2012 to October 2015. He served as the dean of
Datang Renewable Energy Test and Research Institute (K& #7858
A IZERT) from October 2015 to December 2016, and the chief
engineer of Datang Renewable from December 2016 to December
2017. He served as the deputy general manager and member of the
Party committee of Datang Overseas Investment from December
2017 to May 2018. He served as the deputy general manager and
member of the Party committee of Datang Overseas Investment
as well as the director of the Preparatory Office of China Datang
Group Africa Co., Ltd. (FEIAESEEIEMAF]) from May 2018 to
March 2019. He served as the associate dean and member of the
Party committee of China Datang Corporation Renewable Power
Science and Technology Research Institute Co., Ltd. (FBIAESE
B3R B 2T 7T £ R A 7)) from March 2019 to June 2020.
Mr. Liu studied in Harbin Institute of Technology from July 1987 to
July 1991, and obtained his bachelor’'s degree majoring in electric
power system and automation.
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Mr. Zhou Ce

Born in September 1969, has been serving as a member of
the Party Committee, the secretary of the Discipline Inspection
Committee and chairman of the labor union of the Company since
March 2020. Mr. Zhou possessed approximately 20 years of work
experience in the power industry. Before joining the Company,
Mr. Zhou worked as an intern, technician and assistant engineer
in the power workshop of Shandong Heze Second Woolen Textile
Factory (LLERSRIEE —FE4EEM) from July 1991 to March 1993.
He served as the deputy general manager of Shandong Heze
Modern Office Equipment Company (LLIEREIR A B A RAE D 7))
from March 1993 to June 1995. Mr. Zhou served as the secretary,
judge of the fourth rank, judge of the third rank and chief judge
of Shandong Heze Intermediate People's Court (LLESEHR K AR
7&BT) from June 1995 to September 2000. He studied for master
of law (international economic law) in China University of Political
Science and Law (FBIBUEKZ) from September 2000 to August
2003. He served as the fourth-class employee of economy and
law department of State Grid Corporation of China (FIZR E#A 7))
from August 2003 to December 2006. Mr. Zhou served as the
deputy director and director of economy and law department of
State Grid Corporation of China from December 2006 to June 2013.
He served as the head of integrated administrative team, head
of party committee working group, director of office and director
of legal office of State Grid Integrated Energy Service Group Co,
Ltd. (B4EEFREARTE B PR A B]) from June 2013 to August 2017. Mr.
Zhou served as the deputy director of corporate management and
legal affairs department, the deputy director of monitoring division
(the office of disciplinary team of the Communist Party Committee
and inspection office) and the deputy director of inspection office
of the Communist Party Committee of China Datang Corporation
from August 2017 to March 2020. Mr. Zhou studied in Shandong
University (L3 KX2) with the major of Law from December 1997
to June 2002 and obtained the university degree. Mr. Zhou obtained
master’s degree in law of China University of Political Science and
Law in August 2003.
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B  BEENSAEEERDN(E)

Mr. Liang Xiuguang

Born in January 1979, has served as the secretary of the Board,
Joint Company Secretary and the authorized representative of
the Company since November 2020, a deputy general manager
of the Company since March 2018, responsible for the materials
management and market development of the Company. He has
about 20 years of experience in power industry. Before joining
the Company, Mr. Liang worked for Shandong Huangdao Electric
Power Plant (LI & &2 E /) from July 2000 to September 2009,
serving successively as boiler operator, secretary of the general
office, deputy director of the general office and director of the
politics department. When serving for Datang Shandong Renewable
Energy Co., Ltd. (K/ELLEFTEERAEMR 2 7)) from September 2009
to March 2012, Mr. Liang acted successively as head of the
general economics department, deputy chief economist, deputy
general manager and member of Party Committee. He served
concurrently as deputy general manager of Datang Shandong
Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. (KE LB 2 RMAZ AR
2~ a]) from November 2010 to March 2012, and acted as deputy
general manager and member of Party Committee of Datang
Shandong Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. from March 2012
to March 2013. From March 2013 to November 2013, Mr. Liang
worked for Shenyang Huachuang Wind Power Co., Ltd. (&5 &l
R EEHBR A F]) as member of Party Committee and deputy general
manager. He served successively as deputy general manager of the
automation department, deputy director of materials management
department (in charge of overall operation) and director of materials
management department of the Company from November 2013
to January 2017. From January 2017 to March 2018, Mr. Liang
acted as general manager and member of Party Committee of
Technologies & Engineering Company. Mr. Liang graduated from
the Power Faculty of Shandong Electric Power College (LLIE%&
BENEEERIER) in July 2000, with major in thermal power,
and took undergraduate courses on thermal energy and power
engineering from the School of Continuing Education of Harbin
Institute of Technology (¥ 378 T % X £2) from March 2010 to July
2012. Subsequently, he obtained a master’s degree in engineering
from Xidian University (F&2 & FEHEAZ) in June 2017. Mr. Liang
was granted the qualification of senior politic official by China
Datang in December 2016.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
ANER

PROFILE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, we had 1,042 employees, substantially
all of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has individually
established labor union branches. Currently, the Group has entered
into employment agreements with all employees, in which the
position, duties, remuneration, employment benefits, training,
confidentiality obligations relating to trade secrets and grounds
for termination are specified pursuant to the PRC Labor Law and
other relevant regulations.

The table below sets forth the number of employees as at 31
December 2021 by their functions:

ANTERER

7K2021F 128318 » FHATHLIER 1,042
ZEE  EFRBAZYEEEHDH -
REBHREBII SN - BAT * &

SECHEPHETILTHEHAR &
RS EE R EMBRERNRE

ARENE T RENBA - BE - #HE -
BETREAM Bl FEABENENRE
RERKRIERESR -

T&RFRA2021912 A31 Bz 2 H
BT ASK:

Percentage

of the total

Number of number of

employees employees

hEES

Function Bige BEAH AEBES T

Concession operation management personnel SR EERAR 328 31.48%

Engineering and technical personnel TEFMAE 222 21.31%

Sales personnel HEAB 71 6.81%

Research and development personnel MEAB 314 30.13%

Administrative and management personnel THEEAE 75 7.20%

Manufacture personnel E=PN = 20 1.92%

Others H 12 1.15%

Total CE 1,042 100.00%

STAFF INCENTIVES . BIHE

According to the development requirements, the Company further *E}J““%*)E%EH\Z RRBERAENM R
established and improved the overall responsibility management B  E—PEULNEEEEEER
system and the whole staff performance evaluation system on the %‘JF&EE\iF BEEHE - BT HEE
basis of clear position objectives. In order to inspire the potential EMEBELITIERG  T2EEREEN
and work enthusiasm of employees, to fully embody the incentive REITTHR - DA&?%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ’J%%
and constraint behavior, and to lay a solid foundation for the orderly BFRETEBERER  AXARDERERET

career development of all the employees, the Company divides
the specific task in development planning into each department
and position, objectively and accurately evaluates the achievement
of job targets of employees by building position performance
targets and performance standard, and realizes awards and
punishments according to the score that is formed by evaluation
results quantification.
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V.

HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

STAFF REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration package of our employees includes salaries,
bonuses and allowances. Our employees also receive welfare
benefits, including medical care, housing subsidies, retirement and
other benefits. We carry out employee performance appraisals,
establish diversified and dynamic appraisal mechanisms. The
department heads’ salaries and remunerations will be adjusted
corresponding to the results of their performance appraisals.
Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, we have contributed to
social insurance funds, including pension plans, medical insurance,
work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance, and housing funds for our employees.

STAFF TRAINING

In order to attract and retain high-quality employees and further
improve their knowledge, skill level and professional attainments,
we place a strong emphasis on the training of our employees.
We offer in-service education, training and other opportunities to
our managers and employees to improve their professional skills
and knowledge.

In 2021, the Group provided 30 training programs on business
management, professional techniques and production skills, and
the average training hours per employee was 94 hours with 100%
talents attending the trainings.

GUARANTEE OF STAFF RIGHTS

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC and the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC in all material respects and
makes contributions to social insurance and housing provident
fund for our employees according to the above laws, among which
the social insurance includes basic pension insurance, medical
insurance, occupational injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance.

ANER(E)

B I #FHB %R

HMWEINFMES RS &2
RERE - HFIMEBTRZHEH - 81
BE FEED RAREMER -
BFETRERERES R BX T TRAK
A BEMEFES - REEL T B
RBAEFIEE AN TEFHACEY
B - REBEERNTEDER - RIS
EESMERES(BREEEEHE - &
BRE  THBRE - KERBRRESR
) REFAEEHR

BT sEAN

RBMERESRENEEE—TR
SEEMME  REEKERBERE
BR+rEHEENEI - HMAE
BAEBREERHERHE - HIIRE
e  REEENFEERERAG -

MR20214F « REBFETIOELEER
1 BERMEREEREENEIIE
2l BB AVYERNE - ASTHIX
ZEE100% ©

BT #EARE

AEERABEERTHABDETTEEH
ENMPESBHARE  REREEHN
THERBRREEAES  HPHGR
REFEERNREZRR  BERR I
RER - KERBREEFRR -

I FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHAERAR

SRR o e

135



136

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TN Az R RS

Ernst & Young LXK ETEM B IEFT Tel B3E: +852 2846 9388
27/F, One Taikoo Place ERH AR 2EI795R Fax f£E: +852 2868 4432
979 King's Road AE—RE271¢ ey.com

EY:

To the shareholders of Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Datang
Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 142 to 275, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this
matter. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

RREEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEEF TR ELH

Revenue recognition on construction contracts
EiEE R A TR

Approximately 17% of the Group's total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was related to
construction contracts, which was significant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Revenue from
these fixed price construction contracts was recognised
over time, measured by reference to the completion
percentage of individual contracts of construction works.
The completion percentage was estimated by reference
to the actual costs incurred up to the end of the
reporting period over the total budgeted costs. Significant
management’s estimation was involved in estimating the
completion percentage and the total budgeted costs.
HEZZTZ—F+-A=1T—HILFE r 2EERKAEE
SEEXWABTENNIT% - HEEBEHUBHRETE
X o BEEEREESRMFRARREESER - 28
ERBREIETIAOLIHE - T TS EEHEZREH
RNATE AR AL TEFT B S RAATEE R AR AIEET - T8
SARIBSEMERBBEXNRN S RENERESE NG ©

The accounting policy, significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures about construction
contracts are included in note 2.4 SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, note 3
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES and note 5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
LOSSES to the consolidated financial statements.
BEESFRBENSHBER - EXGFHAEF(AE RIRERES
REHHBRERMF24EZGHBRBE - WHESEAES
FIETAEEI M LU - Bz R -

Our audit procedures included, among others, obtaining
an understanding of and evaluating the revenue
recognition process related to construction contracts
and testing the relevant controls that the Group has
put in place over its processes to record construction
costs, total budgeted costs and construction contract
revenue, and to calculate the completion percentage.
Besides, we gained an understanding of the construction
progress based on examination of the associated project
documentation and discussion on the status of projects
with finance and project managers of the Group. We also
discussed with management to gain an understanding
of their estimates for the total budgeted costs and
the changes, checked the nature and components of
the costs and revised the historical accuracy of such
estimates. Furthermore, we performed tests of details,
such as reviewing the key contract terms of significant
projects, checking actual costs and tax invoices of major
construction projects, and reviewing the calculation
worksheets for the completion percentage of the
construction works.
BPATTUATEANEF - BEETRR - BE - (P2
EERWAERRE - ARESEEE RN ECZSEESRK
KN ERBEERAE  BESRBRAUGETIE S LA
AR RBRE TRIBRMXE - HEEEMEE
MIRHPIREEESRAERBRLRBEFREEEE SR
PRSI EHBTEE R AR EZ TG - REK NS
MR - IR E S LA E AR ER o pboh - M
WATTAEMAIE - B EATIREE A RMBERIGK - &
EFERETREEBEREENKANRE - WEZEET
TAEDLEER -

We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures of the
Group’s construction contracts.

BPVEFE T EEERESRANBBRENT RN -

T —FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHARAR

137



138

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bz B RS (&)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bz B RS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Bennett S.H. Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MR EMES

VN

Year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HIFE

Wz

3R

2021 2020
—E2-—F —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
li0kz3 ARETT AR¥TT
Revenue WA 5] 5,288,416 6,821,071
Cost of sales SHER AN (4,946,985) (5,652,769)
Gross profit EH 341,431 1,168,302
Selling and distribution expenses SHER D R (18,151) (23,041)
Administrative expenses THFAX (478,694) (483,796)
Other income and losses H b zs R B K 5 80,436 82,240
Other expenses, net HipF 58 6 (42,145) (106,603)
Finance costs BB 7 (221,959) (270,291)
Impairment losses on financial and contract SREENAREERERXL -
assets, net FEE 8 (39,130) (44,153)
(Loss)/Profit before tax Bl (EE), 8 (378,212) 322,658
Income tax expense FrisfifF S 11 (65,058) (111,298)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER),/FE (443,270) 211,360
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HitiR & Wz
Other comprehensive income that may be RERBHEE TEF I EEER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent B E kRS W
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign HAEINEEH BHIE H =58
operations 1,066 (1,107)
Net other comprehensive income that may be REGBEETEN > EZER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent M E A ER A U F 5
periods 1,066 (1,107)
Other comprehensive income that will not be RERBREATEET I ERER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent B H A 4R A U
periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value BENARBEFEAZHA
through other comprehensive income: Hisr e Wamp RS
Changes in fair value DREEE (2,525) 1,256
Income tax effect FEHgE 379 (189)
Net other comprehensive income that will not RARBETEENTHIBEEER
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent MEME A KT
periods (2,146) 1,067

2021 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
aftEENHEMGEE R EER (8)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE-T-_—F+-RA=1+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E--F ZTCTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
li0kz3 ARETT ARKTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE SR HEf4ZE W (HIBRBiE)
YEAR, NET OF TAX (1,080) (40)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRGEAWRETE
FOR THE YEAR (444,350) 211,320
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: (B18) /FBSER
Owners of the parent [SYNSIETZEUN (208,332) 302,872
Non-controlling interests IR (234,938) (91,512)
(443,270) 211,360
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  ZAKBZEERBR
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZFEPN (209,881) 303,319
Non-controlling interests FEER S (234,469) (91,999)
(444,350) 211,320
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BEREBAREERSEAN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY BROEEB) BF
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXRAEE(ARET) 13 (0.07) 0.10
T —FFERSE

ARERREXEERNERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a5 R
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EF-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥TFT AR¥FT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - EMZE 14 6,828,008 7,294,595
Intangible assets | EE 15 252,900 273,478
Right-of-use assets PREEE 16(a) 312,776 329,146
Equity investments designated at fair value fEEUARBETEAE
through other comprehensive income FE)Et AHAMERE Wi
ERiRE 17 26,389 28,914
Deferred tax assets BEEFIBEE 18 51,840 46,191
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 19 385,752 429,632
Total non-current assets FRBEEALE 7,857,665 8,401,956
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 204,931 190,609
Contract assets GREE 21 263,765 735,407
Trade and bills receivables E S REWFIAMER = 22 8,169,933 8,628,443
Prepayments, other receivables and other TERFRIA - Efth fEURIE
assets RHE M & E 23 565,606 624,977
Restricted cash 2R HERE 24 121,604 67,727
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 24 1,244,882 1,531,739
Total current assets REEEMAE 10,570,721 11,778,902
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B SN FIBMERN & 25 4,579,064 4,904,475
Other payables and accruals H M ERSRIBAERT & A 26 982,683 1,789,559
Provisions B AE 27 123,931 6,320
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other s BIRITIERMEM E
loans 28 3,789,805 3,192,305
Income tax payable FERT RS AR 2,716 34,945
Total current liabilities REAEEE 9,478,199 9,927,604
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 1,092,522 1,851,298
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBERS
LIABILITIES 8,950,187 10,253,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

A3 B 7 U =
SHPBEARAER (B)
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H
2021 2020
B —E-FE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥Fir AR¥FT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Provisions B & 27 480 1,000
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other st ESRITHEARMEME
loans 28 2,162,981 2,878,584
Other non-current liabilities EMIEmEAaE 31,150 34,392
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAEE 2,194,611 2,913,976
Net assets EEFHE 6,755,576 7,339,278
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent  RFARIEA AJE(EREZ
Share capital &N 29 2,967,542 2,967,542
Reserves & 30 3,907,884 4,250,117
6,875,426 7,217,659
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A 2 (119,850) 121,619
Total equity RSB 6,755,576 7,339,278
Wang Yanwen Tian Dan
FEX H&
Director General Manager
3 ABAETE
T —FFERSE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—A= N\ 7/ =
¢ / N l%l:lm

EER

Year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_T-—F+-A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREARL
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Statutory  through other  Exchange Non-
Capital surplus  comprehensive  fluctuation Retained controlling
Share capital reserve* reserve* income* reserve* profits* Total interests  Total equity
NAREERER
 ERPNLE
hEnREEN
EARRET IREMGRE  OMEERE NERBREt  ARERE 88 EREE  BRLE
AMB100 RMB 100 RMB100 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB100 RMB 100 RMB 000
A :; /\Egif AR *j‘,: /\*‘ /AT “TTE:/:: A T‘J; T /\;?ji? ‘ T
At 1 January 2021 NE--F-4-H 2,967,542 1,315,483 406,481 3300 (627) 2,525,453 7,217,659 121,619 7339218
Profi or the year EmilE = e s = - (0sd%)  (2083%)  (493%)  (M3200)
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FAEMEANE
Changg in fair valus of equity WAL BEHEAERHHA
investments at fair value through other AR NENERREN
comprehensive income, net of tax MEEEIERE) - - = (2146) = = (2146) = (2146)
Exchange difference on translation of HENERRBNELZE
foreign operations - - - - 597 - 597 469 1,066
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERGANELE - - - (2,146) 57 (0833)  (200881)  (204469) (444,350
Aporopriation to statutory suplus reserve  AEETAREE = = 10915 = = (10,915) = = =
Final 2020 dividend declared (Note 12 BRCRCEERRERS (M
1) - - - - - mE) R®) )
Dividends declared by a subsidanytoits ~ HEATRATHEREREAA
non-gontroling shareholders ) = = - - - - - (7,000) (7.000)
At 31 December 2021 W-B--F1-f=1-B 2067562 1315483 417,396 1,181 (30) 2173854 6875426 (19,850) 6,795,576
At 1 January 2020 N-5-ZE-f-H 2,967,542 1,315,483 368,312 2,260 236109 7,014,643 29238 7233881
Profit for the year EmilR - - - - S /.17 B V. /] @52 21360
Other comprehensive income for the year: SR frkrAlRE :
Change in fair valug of equity WAAEEFEAREGIA
investments at fair value through other Bt ahanERRED
comprehensive income, net of tax ’B/‘M“ ﬁx@](ﬁlﬁ? #E) - - - 1,067 - - 1,067 - 1,067
Exchange diference on translaton of HENEREBNETZE
foreign operation - - - - (620) - (6201 487) (1,107)
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ERGANEEE - - - 1,067 (20 302872 303,319 01999 21132
Appropriation to statutory suplus reserve  BEETEBRE - - 38,169 - - (38,169 - - -
Final 2019 dividend declared (Note 12) ERCE-NERASRE
(it12) - - - - - (100303 [100.303) - (100303
Dividends declared by a stbsidiary tots ~ MEATRATHERES
non-controling shareholders EEANRE - - - - - - - (5,600 (5,6201
At 31 December 2020 i g o 2967542 1,315,483 406,481 3301 (627) 2,525,453 1217659 121,619 1339218
& These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBERPE /—\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂp K& BF

RMB3,907,884,000 (31 December 2020: RMB4,250,117,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EfEERER

2021 2020
s —E-FE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HieE AR¥TF T AR¥EFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax: BiAT (&E) /FE (378,212) 322,658
Adjustments for: WERER
Finance costs B 221,959 270,291
Interest income M EWA (6,978) (11,965)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEMRETE
equipment 14 509,722 527,638
Amortisation of intangible assets | &S 15 26,465 17,048
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 16 25,070 24,460
Amortisation of other non-current assets HEMIERB &= 123,596 217,775
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREWFE - MEMR
plant and equipment EOEIEES 5 21,904 145
Loss on disposal of items of intangible REBFEEEZRMBLX
assets 5 2,533 -
Gains on disposal of items of right-of-use REFAEEEZRNWE
assets ) (75) -
Amortisation of government grants BT # Bh A 85 (1,872) (1,872)
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net B oRKFORERE - F58 22 22,924 43,781
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) H b TR EEE, 7 CRl
on other receivables, net BEEE) - F&E 23 18,717 (120)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y% - BEMNREREEE
equipment 14 45,638 40,861
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss AREBECRERR) RE
on contract assets, net 518 - JFEE 21 (2,511) 492
Increase in inventories FEENm (14,322) (20,689)
Decrease in contract assets Aﬁﬁ?—:ﬁ’“ 474,153 147,940
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and bills %TW K TE A FE W ZE
receivables L/ () 432,942 (140,197)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables ?EH RIE - HAth pEUEAD
and other assets HAh & Em 48,053 624,734
Increase in restricted cash SZBR 2R 2 3N (53,877) (25,548)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B 5 A =R A (325,411) (84,800)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H b fE (SR IE RN FEET & B R > (200,925) (563,573)
Increase in provisions B AN 117,091 2,741
Cash generated from operations KEEBEENRS 1,106,584 1,901,800
Income tax paid EEFTSH (119,549) (63,001)
Net cash flows generated from operating KL BB RESREFE
activities 987,035 1,838,799
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
affRenER(E

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-_A=1T—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EF-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥TFT AR¥FT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BFLE 6,978 11,965
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEVE  BEMZME - &
equipment, intangible assets and other FEEREMIERBEES
non-current assets ES (403,566) (602,205)
Capital contribution in equity investments BERAABEFAEMEZE
designated at fair value through other IWARIBRAT A
comprehensive income = (20,000)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, RE¥H - MEMREERFT
plant and equipment 1FHIE = 24
Receipt of government grants for property, WREIBFEYE  MEMRE
plant and equipment BEREH - 1,311
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EHERRSREF5E (396,588) (608,905)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REIBHELENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings and other  $R{TE R R E M EHKFSHIA
loans 7,668,037 5,391,506
Repayments of bank borrowings and other (B2 RITIER M EMET
loans (7,775,155) (6,349,798)
Principal portion of lease payments TRNHEERE (20,208) (20,882)
Dividends paid to shareholders IRAS T AR A AR B (511,726) (20,627)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests &1 T I AAE 2SO AL 2 (14,080) (9,580)
Interest paid ERFLE (223,596) (267,269)
Net cash flows used in financing activites  BEEHERIR S RE F5E (876,728) (1,276,650)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REeENRESEEMEL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (286,281) (46,756)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ E¥EEMIREFEY
year 1,531,739 1,580,367
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [&RE &5 &F%5 (576) (1,872)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END S XBRENMBEESZEY
OF YEAR 24 1,244,882 1,631,739
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KEIRBEEEEBR
AR AR (the “Company”) was established on 25 July 2011 in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") with limited liability.
On 26 June 2015, the Company was converted into a joint stock
company with limited liability from a limited liability company.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) since 15 November 2016. The address of
its registered office is No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
involved in the following principal activities: environmental
protection facility concession operation, the manufacture and
sale of denitrification catalysts, environmental protection facility
engineering, water treatment business, energy conservation
business and renewable energy engineering business.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (“Directors”), the
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company is China Datang Corporation Ltd. (“China Datang”),
a company established and domiciled in the PRC and wholly
owned by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council.

1.

B 15 ¥R M ot

31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H
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ADEBR=-ZT——F+tA-+HAEF
EAREMB(THEDKINERA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B H5 Rk Y

(&)

31 December 2021

_=_

1.

— &2 ) = E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

1. LDFMKEFHGE)

FRRELATHEH

AREMEARNFELT

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

%)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ FRARKRRADL(%)
Company name * registration registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BEGE 1

ARER AL/ B Ra/iRER E# BE IZEE

China Datang Technologies & Engineering Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC RMB180,000,000 56.00 - Development of environmental protection
(FEAEEERRETIERERAR) HELR AE 180,000,007 technology and provision of engineering services
("Technologies & Engineering Company") in the PRC

HEAEEERMIEERAR ( [MRIBAF]) ERENERRRRE R TR

Datang Nanjing Environmental Protection Technology ~ Nanjing, the PRC RMB124,630,000 9.1 - Development and sale of catalysts;

Co., Ltd. (RERRBRAHBERELAR) HERR ARE124,630,0007 and provision of testing services in the PRC
(“Nanjing Environmental Protection’) B S AR ENAE N R RS

AEARBRAGARBEAR ( [HRER] )

Datang Technologies & Engineering India Private Mumbai, India Indian rupees - 100.00  Provision of engineering services in India
Limited (RERHIRAEERAA) HELE 1,000,000 REERIETRAH
(“Technologies & Engineering India’) DEEY

RERATRAEERAR ( [NHIRAEAR] ) 1,000,000

Datang Beijing Energy Saving & Technology Co., Ltd.  Beijing, the PRC RMB10,000,000 65.00 - Provision of project management, engineering and
(REQtRIBERTERAR) PELR AE%10,000,0007 technology services in the PRC
("Energy Saving & Technology’) ERENEEAEE  TRAKGRE

AE (bR) BERIERAR ( [HEEHAT])

Datang Beijing Water Engineering & Technology Co.,  Beijing, the PRC RMB337,976,000 100.00 - Provision of technology services, energy saving
Ltd. (RECERIKETRAMGERAR) HELR AR 337,976,007 technology promotion services and water
("Water Engineering & Technology") engineering services in the PRC

AE (LR) KB TRETARAR ERE SRS - HERERRRER

([kBIBAR]) KBIEMRH

Zhejiang Datang Tiandi Environmental Technology Ningho, the PRC RMBG60,000,000 65.00 - Development of pollution improvement
Co, Ltd. (RIAERHBRMRARAR HEZR AR 60,000,0007C environmental protection technology and
("Tiandi Environmental") provision of technology services in the PRC

MIAERRRRARAT ( [XWBRAR] ) B = ARERRR AR RS

& The names of these companies referred to in this report

represent management’'s best effort at translating the Chinese
names of the companies, as no English names have been
registered. The above companies are all limited companies.
Note 1:0On 28 July 2021, the Company approved the liquidation of Bl - R=ZFE=_—FtA=+/\A ' &R

Jiangsu Nanjing Thermal Electricity Engineering Design Institute
Co., Ltd. (T#fm REAE TRt AR EMTL AR, a subsidiary
of the Company. The liquidation has been completed as at 29

October 2021.
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Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

AHLEREAR TMTE”‘?;‘I%@
RABTRRAKAREER
/%E;CEE’\_Z:—i-Hﬁ_-HLEI
ST °



2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

Note 2:0On 28 July 2021, the Company approved the liquidation of
Beijing Datang Hengtong Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (3t
RAFEEBESARAE), a subsidiary of the Company. The
liguidation has been completed as at 31 December 2021.

Note 3:0n 23 June 2021, the Company approved the application for
Water Engineering & Technology absorbed Datang (Beijing)
Energy Management Co., Ltd. (KEQtR)EEREEGR A
7]), a subsidiary of the Company. The liquidation has been
completed as at 23 August 2021 which is the combination
date, and Water Engineering & Technology undertook its
assets and liabilities as at the combination date.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"), and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain trade and bills receivables and equity investments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group") for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is
an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

1.

2.1

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

LFMEERH (&)

AERREARNEF(E)
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A EEEA QBN B AR RA
EEBRRERAF - BHEER=
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W3 - R=ZB=Z—FA=Z+=H ' &2A
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AGPDNEERERE - BRTETES
UK BEMNEREERARABEFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R R Rt (48D

31 December 2021

—=

2.1

2021 An

—f#+—-_A=+—H
BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests; and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021 (early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described
below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR"). The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of
the interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity's financial instruments and risk management
strategy. These amendments had no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR M (&)

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the
practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the current
accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as there were no
lease payments reduced or waived by the lessors as a result
of the covid-19 pandemic during the year.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a
SingleTransaction?

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Amendments to IFRS
1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41°
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R R Rt (48D

31 December 2021
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2.3

2021 An

—f#+—-_A=+—H
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS
3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in
a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer
to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and apply prospectively. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The mandatory effective
date for this amendment is not yet determined but early adoption
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS
1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start
of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those
items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying IFRS 16.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

nual Report

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

24

FEERFREAE

tRaHREE

EBAHERKBEAR BRHEER
WHEBHNAABENE  ZAAEBE
RASEREBARMBEE  A5E
A R T 1) R A EER B EFAR
5 B b v B W B U FE I T B 1T RO PR
AERORAABENEN - REEER
AHME  AEBEEITUAAEBE
AR AR T Al R B E R E R A L
7 FHERRUEE T IR - Bl
ETHEAEBRRBRLASEEEF
ENREHBEER - JFEREEMNAT
BEEMEART DR A AEEE - K
BHRAKARELRSRRAX

EAEEBENEONEENESGASR
—EBRAMELERE LR ARRE
R REE RN  ARERER
HWRE T —HER -

AEBEREBEBRHRESBGER - 1K
5 B HA RO £ AR AN B8 R 4 RT A P A
ENERMEEMERE - WMEHEE SR
MEERE  BERERORUBIEIAR
HBRARITETE ©

i

HWEBAHSOBRER - TAIHE
HYRCHE PR 2 W BB B B R 2 (B{E B FTRT
B - fIEANEAEBENERNER

7 e W B 7 B R MR R s B B LAMRER
BN AR BEEER - NBEREEXE
BENHEHEARAEENE  2AE
BEEHFASHER

c DR HERAIK
BHETSENTE  MBREEAIRN
R PR

BBVFEKATE KA EEY
B ERIRFEREENSERNE
B8 P B B T AR 2 EE
B 48 AR P UBE TT SR B EE R E NPT
AEREFENEZE - IRZBERE
I8 B VAR FER T IB B EFEN A
nEE  AERKEMFEERRNEBERE
BB ERE R



24

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwiill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain trade and bills receivables and
equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iif)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(ii)

(iif)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

164 2021 Annual Report

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)
the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

(viii)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified
as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and other infrastructure TEFANE M E R L
Machinery Mg
Transportation vehicles BT HE

Office equipment and others WMARREREM

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction
and equipment under installation, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

nual Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Patents

Purchased patents are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 10 years.

Non-patent technology

Non-patent technology represents capitalised deferred expenditures
available for use and is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Development expenditures that have been recorded in profit or loss
in previous periods will not be recognised as assets in subsequent
periods. Capitalised development expenditures are included in
intangible assets as appropriate according to their nature.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ESBFEEHEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts the
practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s) and
to account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
component(s) (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 30 to
47 years

Buildings and 15 to
other infrastructure 30 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other loans.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted
for as finance leases.

2021 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

FESHRREEGE)

HEGR)
LEEBEEA ()
(c) KHHEMNEEELERR

AEEREMEERAREER
REMAT_@AxLI R+ =@
ABTEEBEEEENEMER
BREMEE - AMEPITERASR
ﬁF@E’]#Jﬁ’“‘“ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁFiﬂ
SHRAEHR

RHPHEMRKEEEEMENE
ENFEERERERSEES
2R -

KEESLHEA

EAEEEREAAR  EREMKH
(HEFEA %ﬁ%ﬁﬂ}ﬁﬁtlﬁiﬂf%
DREEHESRETEE

AEBEBEE LREEBREEMBRENS
e RRMEMOEERBEAEE
fﬁ‘z cBERBEHEEMIEEEEME

C AEEB AR OEEAEEE
iﬁ’ﬁﬁ’it‘ﬁ&“ REEEXRES -

SWAEREMARERERE - IR
HEZ2METARE - ERATLHL
M%ﬁ RELNTBEEER @ st AR
EEENREEE  UEHSEHNKRNE
HeWAEROERER - KFHEHSRN
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’\],ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁwﬁ%)\ °

ERAEARBEEMBREMNBENEX
MoREREDFBOEEARABMELS -



24

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for section “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are generally within 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies
as described above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables by the Group as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortied cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realizable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
industrial products and the provision of construction services for
general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Sale of industrial products

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale of
denitrification catalysts.

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial
products.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction contracts

The Group provides construction services with respect to
the engineering projects in relation to desulfurisation and
denitrification facilities at coal-fired power plants, wind
power plants, solar power plants, coal-fired power plants
and coal yards.

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportions of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Rendering of desulfurisation and denitrification services

The Group is engaged in providing desulfurisation and
denitrification services to power plants under the concession
operation contracts for a period of the life cycle of the
power plants.

Revenue from the rendering of desulfurisation and
denitrification services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

The considerations are stipulated by the relevant government
authorities and measured at certain amounts per kWh of
the electricity generated by the power plants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of these
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of an overseas subsidiary are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, pension insurance, social insurance and housing funds,
labour union fees, employees’ education fees and other expenses
related to the employees for their services. The Group recognises
employee benefits as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render the services and allocates the related cost of
assets and expenses based on different beneficiaries.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plans is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group primarily pays contributions on a monthly basis
to participate in a pension plan organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees payable under these plans. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations for further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to their current
and past services. Contributions made are charged to profit
or loss.

Other social insurance and housing funds

The Group provides other social insurance and housing
funds to the qualified employees in the PRC based on
certain percentages of their salaries. These percentages
are not to exceed the upper limits of the percentages
prescribed by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC. These benefits are paid to social
security organisations and the amounts are expensed as
incurred. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
for further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to their
current and past services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate the lease.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
leases of buildings and other infrastructure due to the significance
of these assets to its operations. These leases have a normally five-
year non-cancellable period and there will be a significant negative
effect on production if a replacement is not readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the probability of default approach to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets with related parties.
The probability of default is estimated on the published credit rating
of the related parties while the loss given default is estimated
based on 100%, as adjusted for forward-looking information.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets with third parties. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type,
customer type and credit rating). The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The
Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

If forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in
the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s contract
assets and trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 and note 22
to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group periodically reviews the
changes in market conditions, expected physical wear and tear,
and the maintenance of the asset. The estimation of the useful
life of the asset is based on historical experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way. The depreciation
amount will be adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed, at the end of the reporting period, based on
changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was nil (31 December
2020: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2021 was RMB655.9 million (31 December 2020: RMB224.1
million). Further details are contained in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Percentage of completion of construction contracts

Revenue from individual contracts is recognised to the progress
of completion of the project. The determination of the progress of
construction service is based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the
construction services. Due to the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction works, the date at which the activity is entered into
and the date at which the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods, hence, the Group reviews and revises
the percentage of completion of construction works based on the
regular review of estimated total costs for construction. Where the
actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual contract
costs are more than expected, a foreseeable loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay"”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was
RMB76.6 million (31 December 2020: RMB154.4 million).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group's operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to their nature. Each
of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that provides services which are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of the other operating segments.
Summary details of the operating segments are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Environmental protection and energy
conservation solutions

The environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions business mainly includes flue gas desulfurisation
and denitrification facility concession operation for coal-fired
power plants; the manufacture and sale of denitrification
catalysts; engineering for coal-fired power plants, including
the engineering of denitrification, desulfurisation, dust
removal, ash and slag handling and other environmental
protection facilities and industrial site dust management
related engineering; water treatment; and energy
conservation including energy conservation facility
engineering and energy management contracting (“"EMC").

Renewable energy engineering

The renewable energy engineering business mainly includes
the engineering general contracting for newly-built wind
power plants, biomass power plants and photovoltaic power
plants.

Thermal power engineering

The thermal power engineering business mainly includes
the engineering procurement construction (“EPC") services
for thermal power plants.

Other businesses

Other businesses currently mainly include various

businesses such as fiberglass chimney anti-corrosion and
air cooling system engineering general contracting.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that other income and losses, other expenses,
non-lease-related finance costs as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities mainly comprise operating assets
and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets exclude unallocated intangible assets, unallocated
deferred tax assets, unallocated prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other loans (other than lease liabilities) for daily
operation purposes and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Environmental

protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2021 solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
BE-E--SE+-A=t+-ALEE BRREEMBARR THLRRIR KEIR Hip#s fit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RIMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETR
Segment revenue (note 5) AW (HEES)
Sales to external customers ANFEFHE 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,694 5,288,416
Intersegment sales DEPEHE - - - 7,295 7,295
4,913,028 307,767 927 73,989 5,295,711
Reconciliation: b5 -
Elimination of intersegment sales PEFEEERS (7,295)
Revenue WA 5,288,416
Segment results AREE 37,670 22,550 (35) (17,884) 42,301
Reconciliation: i
Other income and losses Hiolfas RIER 80,436
Other expenses, net Htfx 58 (42,145)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease BB (TREREARE
liabilties) EINMNSER) (208,776)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses  ARIMEMF AR (250,028)
Loss before tax BEAIEE (378,212)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESEWBEMGE)
(CONTINUED)
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2021 solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
BE-Z--F1-A=t-HLEE BREOKBARR TBLERRIE KEIR At ait

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR  ARETZ  AREFx  ARETZ  ARETx

Segment assets PEHEE 15,940,093 1,488,684 36,432 90,167 17,555,376
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment receivables EDBEMERFTIEEE (1,974,394)
15,580,982
Unallocated intangible assets FEEFEE 21,794
Unallocated deferred tax assets FOMELEREEE 19,905
Unallocated prepayments, other FAMBRTE « Btk
receivables and other assets FEREMEE 232,839
Restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents ~ RB#IES - BENELS
&Y 1,366,486
Other unallocated head office and HERARAHNEEEE
corporate assets 1,206,380
Total assets BEE 18,428,386
Segment liabilities FHEE 9,662,489 1,338,619 59,941 138,630 11,199,679
Reconciliation: % -
Elimination of intersegment payables EDBREMENTIEEE (1,974,394)
9,225,285
Unallocated interest-bearing bank FRABG BRTEFTNEM
borrowings and other loans (other than ER(TREREAR)
lease liabilities) 2,141,859
Other unallocated head office and HERAREHNEEEE
corporate liabilities 305,666
Total liabilities Bk 11,672,810
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IS MYt (&)

31 December 2021

—F-_—F+-RA=t—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFPEMGE)
(CONTINUED)
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2021 solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
BZ-Z--F+-A=t-ALEE RRGERARR THLRRIR KEIR Hip¥w% ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RIMB 000 RIMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  AREFn
Other segment information HitHEH
Impairment of property, plant and 0% - BEMRERE
equipment 45,638 - - - 45,638
Impairment of trade receivables B RYGERE 11,295 11,629 = = 22,924
Reversal of impairment on contract assets ~ ARZERERKE (2,511) = = = (2511)
Impairment of financial assets included in ~ FATAFZUE « HitfEk
in prepayments, other receivables and FERAMEENER
other assets BERME - 18,717 - - 18,717
Impairment losses recognised in profit or NEGERRRERX -
loss, net e 54,422 30,346 = = 84,768
Depreciation and amortisation EMEH 663,600 62 51 21,140 684,853
Capital expenditure* BARREY 123,944 - - 5,060 129,004
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BEARTBEAREYME BMEMK
equipment, and intangible assets. BAREREE -
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2020 solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
BE-EZ-EE+-A=1+-RAItERE RRDERARR BERETR KETE e At
RMB000 /?MB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFTT ARETFTT AREFT
Segment revenue (note 5) AR (HzE5)
Sales to external customers FSNDE P E 4,878,775 1,861,317 1,135 89,844 6,821,071
Intersegment sales PEREE - - - 27,426 27,426
4,878,775 1,851,317 1,135 117,270 6,848,497
Reconciliation: iR
Elimination of intersegment sales PEHRHEERH (27,426)
Revenue WA 6,821,071
Segment results AHEE 817,672 (67,592) (546) 6,864 756,398
Reconciliation: i -
Other income and losses LG G LS 82,240
Other expenses, net 2Ry - 38 (106,603)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease BB H(TBEREEE
liabilities) BFIS) (256,624)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses  ARIFEMAAEEX (152,753)
Profit before tax BEAIAE 322,658
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESEWBEMGE)
(CONTINUED)
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2020 solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
BE_Z-ZFT_A=T-RILEE RREOGEANE ABEMRIE NEIR A% ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB000 AMB 000
ARETE  ARMTL  ARETT  ARMTL  ARETZL

Segment assets AHEE 16,869,285 1,880,096 34,307 243,953 19,027,641
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment EDBEMERFTIERE

receivables m

17,371,743

Unallocated intangible assets KARENAE 26,494
Unallocated deferred tax assets FARELEREEE 26,532
Unallocated prepayments, other FAARBENTE - HtEKTE

receivables and other assets REMAE 599,243
Restricted cash, cash and cash TRERE  ReANRELZEY

equivalents 1,599,466
Other unallocated head office and HERDRAHNEEEE

corporate assets 557,380
Total assets BEE 20,180,858
Segment liabilities AHEE 9,964,595 1,790,837 82,234 148,481 11,986,147
Reconciliation: %
Elimination of intersegment payables &7 EBfEIERFUERH (1,655,898)

10,330,249

Unallocated interest-bearing bank RO EBTEFMERER

borrowings and other loans (other (TBRREEE)

than lease liabilities) 2,006,186
Other unallocated head office and EthRPRBINLEEE

corporate liabilities 505,145
Total liabilities aaE 12,841,580
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021

—=

4,

—f#+—-_A=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

4. BESBEMGR)

Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Year ended 31 December 2020 solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
BEZZ-TET-A=T-HILEE RRSERAAE IBERETR NETHR HiZR% Azt
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT
Other segment information HbAHER
Impairment of property, plant and n% - BENZERE
equipment 40,861 - - - 40,861
Impairment of trade receivables B RYFERE 26,311 18,090 - 620) 43,781
Impairment of contract assets AREERE (155) 635 - 12 492
Reversal of impairment on financial assets ~ BEATFUE « EfEKIE
included in in prepayments, other REMBENSHEE
receivables and other assets AERE = = = (120) (120)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or RERRRNREEX -
loss, net #E 67,017 18,725 - (728) 85,014
Depreciation and amortisation FrEfm@E 770,669 63 56 16,133 786,921
Capital expenditure* BB 437,493 - - 2,265 439,758

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Geographical information

The majority of the non-current assets are located in Mainland
China, and the majority of revenue is generated from Mainland
China. Therefore, no further geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB4,478 million (2020: RMB6,160
million) was derived from the sale of goods and the rendering of
services to China Datang and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group)
(“China Datang Group”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 5.

ISR MIsE (&)
31 December 2021
=T m el

WA - Bl R iRk

An analysis of revenue is as follows: AR
2021 2020
—B=—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T ARMTFT
Revenue from contracts with customers E2EF > B4 RIEA B A 5,288,215 6,820,488
Revenue from other sources H A SRIRIBA
Gross rental income from operating LR E A A
leases
Other lease payments, including EMBEENK - BREEE
fixed payments HENREE 201 583
5,288,416 6,821,071
Revenue from contracts with customers HERZHMESRAEEMKA

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(i)  BAHERSE

B2 —F+-A=+—8H

IEFE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Segments solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
BERD RRGERARR TBLREIR KEIR Hip¥# &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RIMB’000 RIMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn  AREFn
Types of goods or services BmAREEL
Sale of industrial products WET®ED 317,464 - - 55,534 372,998
Construction services BER% 580,471 307,767 927 10,959 900,124
Desulfurisation and FAR B B RE PR
denitrification services 4,015,093 - - - 4,015,093
Total revenue from contracts ~ EEF2HAEELHKA
with customers @t 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
Timing of revenue recognition K AREZMEE;
Goods transferred ata pointin -~ EX—BHEBHAR
time 317,464 - - 55,534 372,998
Services transferred over time E-BERRNEONETE 4,595,564 307,767 927 10,959 4,915,217
Total revenue from contracts ~ EEFzHAEELHKA
with customers @t 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IS MYt (&)

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 5. BA - Rt K IREK (&)

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers HBERZHMESRAEEMNIKA(E)
(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) RAEH SR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_T-_TF+=-A=1+—H

IEFE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Segments solutions engineering engineering businesses Total
BENT RRSERANE IBERRIE KEIR T aat
RMB000 ARMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETrT  AREFT  ARETRT
Types of goods or services R R ER
Sale of industrial products HETXER 346,590 - - 43,663 390,153
Construction services RIERS 970,637 1,851,317 1,135 45,698 2,868,787
Desulfurisation and B R IR
denitrification services 3,561,548 - - - 3,561,548
Total revenue from contracts REFCHEARELNK
with customers gt 4,878,775 1,851,317 1,135 89,261 6,820,488
Timing of revenue recognition W ARRRL
Goods transferred at a point in EE-RHEROEm
time 346,590 - - 43,563 390,153
Services transferred over time E-BRENRONER 4,532,185 1,851,317 1135 45,698 6,430,335
Total revenue from contracts BEFZHAEEENK
with customers PN il 4,878,775 1,861,317 1,135 89,261 6,820,488

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts to customers with the amounts disclosed in the

segment information:
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

_=_

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RR M

(&)

31 December 2021
—&+=-A=+—H

5. WA « Rt RIAX (&)

HRERZREREEMIA (&)

(i)

WABH S B (1)

B2 —4F+-_A=+—H

IEFE
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Segments solutions  engineering  engineering  businesses Total
- Fan] RREEHBARR THERRIR KEIR Hiti% ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETZH
Revenue from contracts with ~ EZFzHARELHNKA
customers
External customers i 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
Intersegment sales DEFEHE - - - 7,295 7,295
4,913,028 307,767 927 73,788 5,295,510
Intersegment adjustments and 2 P EARALE
gliminations = - - (7,295) (7,295)
Total revenue from contracts ﬁﬁ%ﬁZFﬁ’\ﬂF@’M&)\
with customers b 4,913,028 307,767 927 66,493 5,288,215
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_FT=-TF+=-A=1+—H
Jtﬁf‘
Environmental
protection
and energy Renewable
conservation energy Thermal power Other
Segments solutions engineering  engineering businesses Total
mend BREGHEANE IBERELR NETRE HiZR% Azt
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANRETFT ARET AREFTL ARETT ARE T
Revenue from contracts BEFZEERELNKA
with customers
External customers P 4,878,775 1,851,317 1,135 89,261 6,820,488
Intersegment sales NEEHE - - - 27,426 27,426
4,818,775 1,851,317 1,135 116,687 6,847,914
Intersegment adjustments AEEAENE
and eliminations - - - (27,426) (27,426)
Total revenue from contracts BEP /HEREENRA
with customers &5t 4,878,775 1,851,317 1,135 89,261 6,820,488
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SRR M (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 5.

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

WA -~ Efblrs 5 iRk (&)

HBERZMEREEMIA (&)

WABHS B ()

TREF A RS R ER KA
8 ZEERBEBDEA
ARAELEBEKBENRERE

(ii)

the reporting period and recognised from performance ARG MFAMER
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Revenue recognised that was included st AREHVERE
in contract liabilities at the beginning BB ERBA :
of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETHEEMR 26,929 14,639
Construction services BiERTS 252,187 401,904
279,116 416,543
Performance obligations (i) EHEF

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the industrial products and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within one year
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment
is retained by customers until the end of the retention
period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment
is conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)
Desulfurisation and denitrification services

Under the concession operation contracts, the Group is
engaged in providing desulfurisation and denitrification
services to power plants for a period of the life cycle
of the power plants. The performance obligations are
satisfied over time as customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. The
payment is generally due within 30 days from the date
of billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

WA -« Efhllra R iRK (&)

BERZMSREENA ()
(ii) R4
B 5 R RS

ERFREART ARER#
BRUE 2R MM B FRIR LR
KBRS - BAOBRBEREN
HENREREER  BREF
RANESIHE T ASBERHN
e - NAEMBERERZARE
30KRIA °

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-EF+-_A=+—HHE
ERBBEHBRECRERSL I DK

follows: ERNRSERET
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR®T T
Amounts expected to be recognised TERTRERM AR £ 58
as revenue
Within one year —FR 472,428 683,350
After one year —FE = -
472,428 683,350

The amounts of transactions prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised after one year related to construction
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year.

BEEIARRBE—FF TAERH
RBEBOBERNZERBEMF
NT HERBEARS - BatHb
RARBOBEBRER —FNRER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

WA -~ Efblrs 5 iRk (&)

HBERZMEREEMIA (&)

(i) ¥R (&)

Desulfurisation and denitrification services (Continued) i e % B A R (42)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T

OTHER INCOME Hitb iz

Interest income FBUA 8,520 16,860
Government grants (Note) BBy (fEE) 100,564 75,507
109,084 92,367

Note: The amount mainly represents the income related to the
VAT refunds received by the Group. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, there were no unfulfilled conditions or
other contingencies attaching to the government grants
that had been recognised by the Group.

it ZeBEEABEANEBEAMKE AL
EFRRFREFMBRAANKRA - R=
T —FRZIZZTFFZA=T
— A AEECERNBTHEE
ISR ER A G E MR AE

I8 o
OTHER LOSSES, NET Hinigk » F5

Loss on disposal of items of property, BEEYE  BEM
plant and equipment BEEERMELR (21,904) (145)

Loss on disposal of items of BEEETEERE

intangible assets and right of use REEEMNEBX
assets (2,458) _
Exchange losses ERTR=PS (4,286) (9,982)
(28,648) (10,127)
80,436 82,240

2021 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OTHER EXPENSES, NET

BRI (48

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

HpAZ - B

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT NEE T
Compensation (gains)/losses (Note a) BEE (Wes ), Bk (Miska) (52,671) 102,103
Estimated Pending Litigation Losses fEarARARFAEBL (FIRED)

(Note b) 97,316 =
Other (gains)/losses Hh (W), 1Bk (2,500) 4,500
42,145 106,603

Note a:In November 2016, Technologies & Engineering Company, a Hiita: —T—XE+— A BEIEA

subsidiary of the Company, and two other third parties have
entered into an arrangement with Datang Hami 13th Division
Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd., (“Datang Xinjiang”)
to construct a wind farm. As required by the arrangement,
Technologies & Engineering Company purchased 33 wind
turbines from Jiangsu Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power Co., Ltd.
("Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power"). In March 2017, Jiuding Tiandi
Wind Power received a notice from Datang Xinjiang that the
construction of the wind farm may be suspended. After a
series of negotiation between the parties, Jiuding Tiandi Wind
Power brought an arbitration proceeding against Technologies
& Engineering Company in December 2018. In June 2020, the
arbitration authority ruled that Technologies & Engineering
Company shall compensate Jiuding Tiandi Wind Power for
economic losses in an aggregate amount of RMB98,865,000
(the “Ruling”).

On 21 June 2020, Technologies & Engineering Company
submitted an application to the Fourth Intermediate People's
Court of Beijing (the “Court”) to overrule the Ruling. On 6

A(ARRRIZHBRAR)MBINAR
ZHARERERE T =/EZR
RERFAZEAERA ﬂﬁt%%%b
HERQTTE i%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%é%"
m#m%gx ﬂ&IF“TW
IENRRBREEBR AR LR
KiERE DFEBE T =t =aREH
e —_T—LF=F " LEXi
REEEEE T RKEFEMNBAN - %A
BHEOREEER - KBZH—XK
HEHE  LWRERMEER=-Z
—\F+ZAHRE IR AFRE
HERERF ZZEZTFA
HMBHEERBEIRARERNSE
R b R BE B (B A B B AR R AR
98,865,0007C (&R ]) -

“ECEERAZT B BRI
BRI AL R E MR HARER
UE&D%&%%&%RW$%O

July 2020, the application has been duly accepted by the —=z= thﬂ /\E : E%Eﬁéﬁﬁf
Court. On 3 September 2020, the Court issued a civil ruling, ?&xﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ o ZEZ = iﬂﬁ =
dismissing the application for revocation of the Ruling by H  ZERHETREHTE

Technologies & Engineering Company. Subsequent to the
civil ruling, Technology & Engineering Company and Jiuding
Tiandi Wind Power reached an agreement regarding the above
compensation amount.

During this year, the two parties signed a settlement
agreement, and the penalty interest on Jiuding Tiandi Wind
Power was exempted from payment. Therefore, Technologies
& Engineering Company transferred the corresponding penalty
interest of RMB3,239,000 to other income, and the remaining
compensation was repaid as of 31 December 2021.

In addition, in August 2021, Datang Xinjiang signed a
compensation agreement with Technologies & Engineering
Company, which stipulated that Datang Xinjiang would pay
a total of RMB49,432,000 in compensation to Technologies
& Engineering Company for above matters and Technologies
& Engineering Company recorded the compensation in other
income accordingly.

@TMHIF”Thﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
BB @ Eb 2R - B TIEAR
BLALSR R BE Bt B (B 2 RRE
B

FR - AINEFEIINREBZE - N
#ﬁ%ii@ﬂ%ﬁﬁggf‘f%@%iﬁ A

R IRARBEENSIEA
E%3 239,000 08 = H fth U 25 -
BRTIBEFR_TE=_—F+=A=
+—HEE -

N RZTBEZ—FNA » KE
FEANMETRARRIEEDR
# o BHRETAAENEAM b=
EWM&I%”“TEZH:.,\/\EM
49,432,000 T BEEF BRI T
2R RIEES Z B ERE AR M
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m
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R R BT ot (48 )

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

6. OTHER EXPENSES, NET (CONTINUED) 6.

Note b:On 16 March 2019, the subsidiaries of the Group Technologies
& Engineering Company and Technologies & Engineering India
signed construction contracts for desulfurization and wet
chimney with Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited (the
“GSECL"). Due to the impact of COVID-19, the construction
progress was delayed and GSECL issued a formal notice which
stated that it might take measures such as terminating the
contract, redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
entrusting the work to others to complete. The Group fully
accrued provisions of RMB75,848,000 for the redemption of
the performance guarantee letter, and also considers that the
corresponding advance receipts of RMB25,835,000 will no
longer be obligated to be returned after the redemption of the
performance guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses of
RMB50,013,000 accordingly.

On 6 March 2020, Technologies & Engineering Company signed
a construction contract with NLC India Limited (“NLC India").
Due to the impact of the COVID-19, the construction progress
was delayed, and NLC India issued a formal notice to request to
terminate the contract and redeem the performance guarantee
letter amounting to RMB47,303,000. In addition, the claims
brought by the NLC India also include the costs incurred in re-
tendering and the arbitration progress. The Group fully accrued
a provision of RMB47,303,000 for the request of redeeming
the performance guarantee letter, and incurred other expenses
of RMB47,303,000 accordingly.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

HpAZ - BE(IR)

Wb - R—_ZE—-hNhE=A+RE ' &%
B2 KB A m B TR A | AR
K IR EE A 7 B Gujarat State
Electricity Corporation Limited
([GSECL) %] T it « BIER
BERBER  BAXFTEEBENZ
2 BRI THIER - GSECLEH
IEB AN - 3 2 AT A2 g BREUAR
LEAR - AARE - §ITEEFE
T AT ERE - REEEHY
HNRHUEBELHREBARE
75,848,0007T - MR IEFEHTEL
AR 25,835,000 0 7E X 7 B4
REETBEERBER - WAHEE
EHMFS ARKES0,013,0007T °

RZZE-TF=A/"H  BFIE
AR ENLC India Limited ([NLC
India ) EBRHABER - BEH
BEBVE FZEIRBRWER -
HINLC IndiaZ i EN@AT - 23K
WIEERT N NBEAORRIARE
47,303,0007T ° t4h + NLC India
RENFAEIRECEENRE
EEXENER HHEEFEENE

Lo AEEGHEHRKEE
R IR BB A R 47,303,000
T WHEEELAEMAIARE
47,303,0007T °

BT H

P H DT

2021 2020

—E_—£F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARKEFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNFE 13,183 13,667

Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITERMEMAERFE X H

and other loans 208,776 265,783
Less: interest capitalised o BRMERE - (9,159)
221,959 270,291

There was no interest capitalization incurred for the year ended
31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: the
capitalization rates were from 5.23% to 6.62%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

8. WAI(IAEX) FH

AEEBAEEX) /FBDE AR

(crediting): &,/ (GEA) AT RIBEEEE :
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥Fr ARMTF T
Cost of goods sold 72 am SHE A AR 277,915 266,635
Cost of services provided AR TSR A 4,669,070 5,386,134
Cost of sales (Note a) SHERA (Ff5ta) 4,946,985 5,652,769
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BEMNRETE
equipment 14 509,722 527,638
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EE 15 26,465 17,048
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 16(a) 25,070 24,460
Amortisation of other non-current assets Lt IE7EHE 7= # # 123,596 217,775
Research and development expenses HEER 59,891 44,089
Lease payments not included in the Rt AT EHEEENTHE
measurement of lease liabilities 3R 16(c) 15,014 18,385
Auditor's remuneration ZE R % 3,230 3,080
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERNFAZ(TBEEES
Directors’ and Supervisors’ MEEEH B (PI5E9) ) :
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages, salaries and allowances, social TI& - H&fEE: - (&
securities and benefits {RBEFNAEF 335,060 361,621
Pension scheme contributions (defined RBIREHEIHEIR(FREERI
contribution scheme) (Note b) FT8)) (Fd5Eb) 47,495 30,919
382,555 392,540
Impairment of financial and contract CREEMAEREERE
assets, net: AR
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment AREECRERRE),RE
loss on contract assets 21 (2,511) 492
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWGRIBRE 22 22,924 43,781
Impairment loss/(reversal of sTATERFRIE - EfbEUEK
impairment) on financial assets BREMEENSRIEE
included in prepayments, other WEEE, CRERE)
receivables and other assets 23 18,717 (120)
39,130 44 153
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BEMRERE
equipment 14 45,638 40,861

T —FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B75

KRR aE (48)

31 December 2021

_=_

8.

—F+-A=+—8
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Note a: Cost of sales include RMB482,993,000 (2020: RMB501,037,000),

RMB14,078,000 (2020: RMB7,706,000), RMB25,070,000 (2020:
RMB24,460,000), RMB123,347,000 (2020: RMB217,564,000)
and RMB112,017,000 (2020: RMB100,310,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2021, relating to depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of intangible assets,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, amortisation of other non-
current assets and employee benefit expense which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.

Note b:Pension scheme contributions

The Group is required to make specific contributions to the
state-sponsored retirement plan at rates ranging from 14%
to 20% (2020: 14% to 20%) of the specified salaries of the
employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible
for the pension liability to the retired employees. The PRC
employees of the Group are entitled to a monthly pension
upon their retirements.

In addition, the Group has implemented a supplementary
defined contribution retirement scheme in accordance with
China Datang's policy. Under this scheme, the Group is required
to make specified contributions at a rate of 8% (2020: 8%) of
the total salaries of qualified employees. These employees will
receive the total contributions and any returns thereon upon
their retirements.
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8.

RAT(IRK) FA(]E)

Hiita

Hiatb

CRREEE

HE_Z - —F+ZA=+—H1

FENBEERABENE - BE
MEBINE  BEEEEE &
REAENE  HMERBEE
BEURBERIFAISAAAR
# 482,993,000 L( Z T =T F :
AR #501,037,00070) + AR
14,078,000t (=T =T : AR¥
7,706,0007T) « A K ¥25,070,000
T(ZZE=ZF : ARK24,460,000
JL) ~ AR®123,347,0000( = F
—ZF : AR¥217,564,0007T)
AR#112,017,000t( =T = F
#F: AR®100,310,0007T) * &3
EIFFE AR EX 5 F#HE NS @R
TH/BEE -

AEBETERIBEEIRELIEMN
14%ZE20% (ZZE-_FF  14% =
20% ) B R IE XA F BIR 48 5F B9 B
TERAREE - FEBNRRXS
BREINEEZEEME - AEEH
Fﬁ*ﬁﬂtﬂl,al RIK1& AT 1% A SEEUR

b A - AN S @R 8RR B KRR A9 I
%E TRERTFHHAEZS
| o RBMFE - AEEFAFE
EHEHNBIHNEITENS% (=
ToTF 1 8%)HIFIA © %%EI
IR IR SRR ZA 2 B HR KR
FitELERN TR ER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISR MIsE (&)
31 December 2021
=T m el

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EFEMEEHM
REMUNERATION
The aggregate amounts of remuneration of the Directors and RAREEMESFATMERTEDT :
Supervisors of the Company during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Fees e 300 300
Other emoluments: HEMie :
— Salaries, housing benefits, other —FHe  FEEA - Et
allowances and benefits in kind ERLAE Y42 F) 3,103 2,032
— Pension scheme contributions — RIS EIHR(FER
(defined contribution scheme) KETElD) 243 144
Total &5 3,646 2,476

T —FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)

31 December 2021

- —&F+—-fA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

9. EFEMEEHH(E)

The remuneration of each director and supervisor of the Company RARSEFNEFHE_T-_—F+
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below: ZA=T+—HILEFENEFMNT
Salaries, Pension scheme
housing contributions
benefits, other (defined
allowances and contribution Total
Fees benefits in kind scheme) remuneration
¢
FRER - 2t BKSITHEEN
e RENENEN (REHFGE) B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AREFT AR®FT ARETFT ARETFT
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian Dan A EAE - 690 53 743
Mr. Wang Yanwen FENEE - 909 53 962
- 1,599 106 1,705
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Wu Daqing RRERE (i - - - -
Mr. Chen Kan BRI L (i) - - - -
Mr. Wang Jung TRREE (i) - - - -
Mr. Qu Bo R T A (i) - - - -
Mr. Li Zhenyu FEFRE (i) - - - -
Mr. Liu Ruixiang FEMEE (i) - - - -
Mr. Liu Quancheng M ELE (i) - - - -
Mr. Song Yunpeng RERBEE (i) - 685 53 738
- 685 53 738
Independent non-executive BYFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Ye Xiang HHLE 100 - - 100
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian EERELE 100 - - 100
Mr. Gao Jiaxiang BRELE 100 - - 100
300 - - 300
Supetrvisors: B=:
Mr. Huang Yuan "RLE (iif) - 251 31 282
Mr. Zhang Xuefeng REIELE (iif) - - - -
Mrs. Luo Li BALt (iv) - 568 53 621
Mrs. Huo Yuxia ERELT (iif) - - - -
Mr. Liu Liming WAL (iif) - - - -
Mr. Chen Li lydis (iv) - - - -
- 819 84 903
300 3,103 243 3,646
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr.Wu Daging, Mr. Chen Kan and Mr. Wang Jungi were
appointed as non-executive directors with effect from 9
September 2021, while Mr. Qu Bo, Mr. Li Zhenyu, Mr. Liu
Ruixiang and Mr. Liu Quancheng resigned the positions on the
same date.

Mr. Song Yunpeng was appointed as a non-executive director
with effect from 23 September 2021.

Mr.Huang Yuan and Mr. Zhang Xuefeng were appointed as
supervisors with effect from 9 September 2021, while Mrs.
Huo Yuxia and Mr. Liu Liming resigned the positions on the
same date.

Mrs. Luo Li was appointed as a supervisor with effect from
25 January 2021, while Mr. Chen Li resigned the position on
the same date.

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

EFNESHMGE)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RRELE - RIMEERERRRE
EEZERFNTES BT
—FAANBER - REA - #K
KA FETEE  FBMELER
BB EBHEIFRITES -

REBELEEZTEIENITES -
BE-ZE-—FAA-+=B4% -

BEREERRBEELEZERE
T -BE_—FhARAAAEHK-
RER - ENEXTRIZEALLE
BHEES o

BRZTREERESE BT
—F—RAZT+HEBEXN - RAIA -
BRAMSEAEBHEES -

T —FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IS MYt (&)

31 December 2021

—F-_—F+-RA=t—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EFEMEEHMGE)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

The remuneration of each director and supervisor of the Company ARARBSESNESBEE_ZT_TF+
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below: ZA=T+—HILEFENEFMNT

Salaries,  Pension scheme

housing contributions

benefits, other (defined
allowances and contribution Total
Fees  benefits in kind scheme) remuneration

e

(EFEBA - Eft RS FHEIER
e EENENEN  (REHREE) HEH
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

M AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Hou Guoli EBNRE (i) - 533 23 556
Mr. Tian Dan AAEE (i) = 230 25 255
Mr. Wang Yanwen FEEHE - 601 48 649
- 1,364 96 1,460
Non-executive directors: FBTES:
Mr. Hou Guoli RENEE (i) - - - -
Mr. Jin Yaohua SRERAE (iii) - - - -
Mr. Qu Bo HR LA (iii) = - - -
Mr. Liu Quancheng ElESpoits - - - -
Mr. Liu Ruixiang AEMEE = = = -
Mr. Li Zhenyu FETEE - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Ye Xiang HALE 100 = = 100
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian EEREE 100 - - 100
Mr. Gao Jiaxiang BRELE 100 = = 100
300 - - 300
Supervisors: BE.
Mrs. Huo Yuxia EMEXT (iv) = = = =
Mr. Wang Yuanchun IrEEE (iv) = = - -
Mr. Liu Liming WA - - - =
Mr. Chen Li BRF L - 668 48 716
- 668 48 716
300 2,032 144 2,476
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Hou Guoli was re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director with effect from 24 July 2020 and
resigned the position from 23 October 2020.

(ii) Mr. Tian Dan was appointed as an executive director with effect
from 23 October 2020.

(iii) Mr. Jin Yaohua resigned as a non-executive director with effect
from 23 October 2020 while Mr. Qu Bo was appointed the
position on the same date.

(iv) Mr. Wang Yuanchun resigned as a supervisor from 18 June
2020 while Mrs. Huo Yuxia was appointed the position on the
same date.

In 2020, the remuneration of Mr. Jin Yaohua, Mr. Qu Bo, Mr. Liu
Quancheng, Mr. Liu Ruixiang, Mr. Li Zhenyu, Mrs. Huo Yuxia, Mr.
Wang Yuanchun and Mr. Liu Liming was paid by China Datang,
and no remuneration was paid by the Company.

In 2021, the remuneration of Mr.Wu Daging, Mr. Chen Kan, Mr.
Wang Jungi, Mr.Qu Bo, Mr. Li Zhenyu, Mr. Liu Ruixiang, Mr.
Liu Quancheng, Mr.Zhang Xuefeng, Mrs. Huo Yuxia and Mr. Liu
Liming was paid by China Datang, and no remuneration was paid
by the Company. Mr. Chen Li did not receive remuneration from
the Company as a supervisor.

There was no arrangement under which the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

EFNESHMGE)

(i) BB R ERNITES AT RIS
TEE H-ZE-_ETFE+A=-1+NH
BAES  THR-_ZT-_ZTF+A=+
= HEHEIERTES -

) EAEEEEEARITES G-
FoE+ AT ALH -

i) SBEEREMEFNITES 5=
F-TETASTZEENR - KA
B dR R E AT
= o

(iv) ErELELERIESE AT -
FEXNATNBER - RAAB - EFN
ELtEZTAES -

“ToTF 0 pRERE  HKELE
FE2mELE  BEMRELE FEFE
£ EWNBLL EnESLERYA
REZHFNBEPRAEXN - ARFAL
ARASER B

T % RRERE  BRAKE
FERERELE - HKEE FEFEE -
FEMELE  BI2RELE  REBEX
£ ERBRTRIZASLEZHMA
REAREXN - NAR AR A H
B o BRAEERFERER/EETEARA
REHEA

F B T B R o R B R AT 1) B
K& HE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B H5 Rk Y

(&)

31 December 2021

_=_

10.

— &2 ) = E

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EREESFMER
The five highest paid employees included two directors (Mr. Tian BHE_Z-_—F+-A=+—AHL#F
Dan and Mr. Wang Yanwen) and three senior executives during g ﬁ%ﬂiﬁiﬁ@*\AE”?ﬁﬁﬁ%é%(Eﬂ
the year ended of 31 December 2021 (2020: one supervisor, one FNARERFEXAEE) R=EBRBITHRA
director and three senior executives). Details of directors’ and B(ZZ-ZFF: —REE  —EEF=ER
supervisors' remuneration are set out in note 9 of this section ZHEBRITHRAR) - BAEENESH
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the highest HEFIE S A I R R M9 - BEAWIEAR
paid senior executives who are not directors or supervisors of the AAEZFRESTNRa TN RITHRA
company are as follows: BMEEHFMNFBEIHIIAT :
2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
Salaries, housing benefits, other e EEEAN - AR
allowances and benefits in kind EmEi 2,257 2,080
Pension scheme contributions RS E B R (R EHRFETE])
(defined contribution scheme) 158 144
Total A&t 2,415 2,224

The number of non-director and non-supervisor highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is
as follows:

FEERFEENRSFMASZNN
TEFEAAZLT

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
—E-—fF =CEEe
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTF T
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
Total A&t 3 3
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FRfSMBEX
Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (FZE AR REChE AR EMBEI B ZETEFE)F
ME P EFSFE) and the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (REARFEAME BT EEKIGE
Implementation Regulations (2 A R F1 B 1 P15 A B HE GG, Bl) > RRARIMETHBRARER] A
the Company and its certain subsidiaries have been recognised B - RI5%NEBHR RGN E
as high-technology enterprises and are subject to a preferential FRS# o
corporate income tax rate of 15%.
Under the above tax law and regulations, except for preferential BE ERABEFTER - BRARRF « E
treatments available to certain branches and subsidiaries of the MmEFHSARMMB AR BEHAERFSE
Company as mentioned above, subsidiaries within the Group are SN - REBE R R E ALK B A [ EiR25%
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%. BYETE T R BN SEPTIS TR ©
The subsidiary of the Company in India was subject to corporate RARRENE R B A B 12 H829.12% B
income tax at a rate of 29.12% during the period from 1 January MEHM—_T—_—F—A—HE=_ZT=
2021 to 31 December 2021 (26% during the period from 1 January —F+-A=1+—"HHCEMSHUZER
2020 to 31 December 2020). 26% MM RGN _—_E_TFE—HA—HF
—E-_EEA+ A=+ HHEMRS
i) e
The components of income tax expense for the year are as follows: FANFSRASAKRE ST ¢
2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARKEFT
Current tax BUERFT1S X
Provision for the year FRNEE 64,795 84,366
Under provision in respect of prior years NEFEREREEDE 5,533 3,226
Deferred tax (note 18) RIEFTSHE(HIFE18) (5,270) 23,706
65,058 111,298

T —FFERSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIS Mot

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit
before tax using the statutory income tax rate applicable in the
PRC to the income tax expense at the Group's effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows:

FRISIRBAST (18)

¢W1§ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ:ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ£iﬁﬁ/eﬁﬁ¥%
BHORBAT(ER) /FIEEBNMEH

X EEARENERMENHEAE

HIPTSHFASHRNT -

2021 2020
—E-_—£F —=E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFTT
(Loss)/Profit before tax R AT (FBK),/FIH (378,212) 322,658
Income tax at the statutory income R25%HATE TS R &/
tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) FRiSH(ZZE_F%F : 25%) (94,553) 80,665
Effect of a different tax rate HbBERBEATRREA L
applicable in another country (1,890) (301)
Effect of the preferential income tax  FISFEEHR KA T E
rate 35,468 (33,399)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 1,868 1,677
Additional deduction of research and  #ff % & Fi B89N
development expenses (4,735) (3,629)
Adjustments in respect of current tax ¥ LA BAREI AT S R A0 A%
of previous periods 5,533 3,226
Effect of utilisation of unrecognised F AR R ERELEF SR EE
tax losses in prior years RIS E R R 2 - (1,648)
Reversal of deferred tax recognised AIEE ERELEMEHREENA
in prior years FEALTE - 22,220
Deductible temporary differences and 7 i 52 A AT K 40 BF ) 14 2= AR
tax losses not recognised THE 18 123,367 42,487
Income tax charge for the year FRAERZ T 65,058 111,298
The Group's effective rate AEBEMNEBRB R (17.20%) 34.49%
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

The dividends during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out below:

B2

R (8
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

BT - —®#r-_FT-_FTF+_A=
+—RHIEFEZREIRAT

2021 2020
e T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARETT
Dividends declared to owners of the parent TE TR A TIES AL S 132,352 N

(i)

(i)

During 2021, the final dividend of RMB132,352,000 at
RMB0.0446(2020: RMBO0.0338) per ordinary share (before
tax) in respect of the year of 2020, based on the issued
shares of the Company of 2,967,542,000 shares, was
declared to owners of the parent (2020: RMB100,303,000).

On 31 March 2022, the Board of Directors proposed to
distribute the final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 of RMBO0.0298 per share (before tax) of the Company
in cash to the shareholders. The proposal is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the 2021 annual general
meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’'s Republic of China (
ZEARKEMBPZEATSFE) ) and its implementation rules,
the Company will withhold and pay enterprise income tax
at the rate of 10% when it distributes final dividends to
non-resident enterprise holders of H shares (including any
H shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees
Limited).

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Individual
Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China ( &
= AR AMBIEAFTEHE) ) and its implementation rules
as well as the Tax Notice, the Company will withhold and
pay individual income tax at the rate ranging from 10% to
20% on behalf of individual holders of H shares.

(ii)

R-ZT——F » KRaIRE #1T
P& AN2,967,542,000R% B% 17 &k 3 —
T_EFEMREKRE @ §KRE
B A RE0.0446L(—F =
= : AR¥0.03387) (Fipl) -
At AR#132,352,0000( =&
—ZF: AR¥100,303,0007T)°

R-_ZE-_—_F#=ZA=+—8"
EFeERREHE-T=_—F
T AT HLEFENRBER
B UReRBREETRERGIKE
AR#0.0298 T (HiAT) - 2%
BEARABRRR-_ZT-_—FE
REBFEAE EHLERAES -

RSP EARKMBEEEMSHR
EYREBEREGEIZER G
ARREEERHKRIEERER
FEABRABEFREE(K
BANERAREBEZELZEMH
%) Ik B R HRAR B R 1R 10% Bt X
B R B ERETR

RIBCHE AR KA EAFTS 5
E) R BB R 52 B R RSUA K
MEEA - ARAEETERR
RHBEARFHEABAEHANT
F10% E20% T 2 8 A PriS i
2T e

T —FFERSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
- —&F+—-fA=+—H

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Accordingly,
the diluted earnings per share amounts are the same as the basic
earnings per share amounts.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

BATIRBERSAAEGS
B (E518) &F

BE_Z-_—Fr-_ZF_FTF+_-_A=
+—HIFE FREXR(EER) /&
SBLENE AR L ERIEE AENL (B
B) /FBEk A S F B3I TH L@ AR hnE
FHHETE -

HE_T - —FR-_F-_FF+-_A=
T—HLEFE  ARRWEEABEE
SERG  MEREERFCERSRE
REFSEMER o

BRERMES ZF 2 BE T IS IE
e

(Loss)/Earnings 2021 2020
(F5#8) BF —B-—f —E-TE
(Loss)/Profit attributable to ordinary STEBRER SR T T

equity holders of the parent, used MR RSB A ARG

in the basic/diluted earnings per (BX),/FBEARETIT)

share calculation (RMB'000) (208,332) 302,872

Number of shares

BRE

Shares 2021 2020
gy —E-—F —E-TF
Weighted average number of ordinary s+ ESIER 58 & | 558 B

shares in issue during the year, RFERNE FTE R INEFY

used in the basic/diluted earnings (%)

per share calculation (share) 2,967,542,000 2,967,542,000
Earnings per share 2021 2020
SRER —E-—F —TTF
Basic/diluted earnings per share (RMB) SIRER 58 EF| (A RET) (0.07) 0.10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - REMRE
Buildings Office  Construction
and other Transportation  equipment and in progress
infrastructure Machinery vehicles others (“CIP”) Total
BRRHEML
BRIt HE ERIA RORGBRIEM HRIE EE

RIMB’000 RIMB 000 RIMB’000 RIMB'000 RIMB’000 RIMB’000
ARETT ABETT ARETT ARBFR ARETT ARETT

Cost: A

At 1 January 2021 R-F-—F-f—H 1,330,883 8,519,673 30,334 130,365 512,167 10,523,422
Addition NE - 1,447 - 4,354 93,624 99,425
Transfer from CIP RERTRER 66,814 268,114 - - (334,928) -
Transfer from/to 1A hEVAEER = 14,912 = - (3,660) 11,252
Disposals RE (1,858) (35,100) (1,147) (1,167) - (39,272)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-A=1-H 1,395,839 8,769,046 29,187 133,552 267,203 10,594,827
Accumulated depreciation: i%ﬁé :

At 1 January 2021 RZB=-F—f—A (297,096) (2,681,547 (27,900) (68,160) - (3,074,703)
Provision &E (56,468) (447,901) (356) (4,997) - (509,722)
Disposals RE 552 12,338 1,147 1,061 - 15,098
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-A=1-H (353,012) (3,117,110) (27,109) (72,096) - (3,569,327)
Impairment: HE:

At 1 January 2021 RZF=-F—-f—A (13,508) (137,816) - - (2,800) (154,124)
Provision B - (45,638) - - - (45,638)
Disposals RE - 2,270 - - - 2,270
At 31 Decerber 2021 W-F-—F+-A=+-H (13,508) (181,184) - - (2,800) (197,492)
Net cartying amount: REFE

At 1 January 2021 WZE--%—-F-H 1,020,279 5,700,310 2,434 62,205 509,367 7,294,595
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—-F+-A=1-H 1,029,319 5,470,752 2,078 61,456 264,403 6,828,008

ARERREXEERNERAT



218

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IR ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. H% - BEMxME (&)

(CONTINUED)
Buildings Office Construction
and other Transportation  equipment and in progress
infrastructure Machinery vehicles others (“CIP") Total
BTN
AT Ha ERTE BAREREM FETE At
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFTT REFI ANREFT ANREFT NEEFT AREFT
Cost: ﬁﬂi :
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-FE-f—-H 1,123,503 7,546,391 30,334 127,729 1,452,616 10,280,573
Addition XT‘\E = 5,749 - 5,246 372,899 383,8%4
Transfer from CIP mERIRER 207,380 968,569 - 521 (1,176,470) -
Disposals BE - - - (3.131) = (3,131)
Other adjustment EfhRE - (1,036 - - (136,878) (137,914)
At 31 December 2020 R-F-TF+-A=1-H 1,330,883 8,519,673 30,334 130,365 512,167 10,523,422
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RifiE
At 1 January 2020 NZEZFTE-F—A (253,156) (2,205,489) (27,142) (64,240) = (2,550,027)
Provision i (43,940) (476,058) (758) (6,882) - (527,638
Disposals BE - - - 2,962 - 2,962
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE+-A=1-H (297,096) (2,681,547) 27,900 (68,160) - (3,074,703)
Impairment; B (13,508) (99,756) - - - (113,269)
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-FF-f—-H - (38,061) = = (2,800) (40,861)
Provision & (13,508) (137,816) = = (2,800) (154,124)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF+-A=1—H
Net carrying amount: BEFE:
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZ¥-A-A 856,839 5,241,147 3,192 63,489 1,452,616 7,617,283
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=1-H 1,020,279 5,700,310 2434 62,205 509,367 7,294,595

As at 31 December 2021,

the Group has been in the process

of applying for the ownership certificates of buildings with a
net carrying amount of RMB13,489,000 (31 December 2020:

RMB5,145,000).
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14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an impairment loss of
RMB45,638,000 was recognised for machinery of environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions segment as a result
of technical innovation during the year. The Group’s management
assessed that the recoverable amounts of those assets are minimal
and full amount of impairment loss was made.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an impairment loss of
RMB40,861,000 was recognised for machinery and construction
in progress of environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions segment as a result of technical innovation during the
year. The Group’'s management assessed that the recoverable
amounts of those assets are minimal and full amount of impairment
loss was made.

In accordance with the IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors, the Group adjusted the expected useful life of automobile
transportation equipment (“JREZEHEME"), power generation
and heat supply equipment and assets ("BERMHHFRME") to
ensure the adjusted expected useful life to meet the estimates
on the period that the future economic benefits by considering
actual useful life of the fixed assets accordingly. The expected
useful life increased by 4 years from 6 years to 10 years for
automobile transportation equipment (“;SEEE#H R "), and by 3
years from 17 years to 20 years for power generation and heat
supply equipment and assets (" ERMHEERME") respectively.
The new expected useful life came into effect from 1 July 2021.
The management adopts prospective application for the changes
in accounting estimates.

Based on preliminary calculation, if there were no changes in
accounting estimates, the accumulated depreciation would have
been approximately RMB3,617,240,000 as at 31 December 2021.
After the changes in accounting estimates, the accumulated
depreciation amounted to approximately RMB3,569,328,000 as
at 31 December 2021, which increased the total profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 by approximately
RMB47,912,000.

The above changes in accounting estimates were approved by the
board of directors of the Company during the first meeting of the
third session in 2021.

14.

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

W% - BEMEm(E)

BHE_T-_—+-_A=+—HLtHF
E - BRBRITES  RIREEMRF R
73 HF 1 1 28 7 SR A R #5 45,638,000 7T HY
WEBK  AEEAEEEBRARSEE
7 A] [B] 4 BEER ) 'z%iaﬂmt R B
Bx -

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLHF
B HRBINES  REDEMBERS
ROBHKBNEEZTIRERERARE
40,861,000 TR EEX - AEEEIE
BRAEZSEENIEKSFEE /N
R bR E Bk

RIFRR 2T ERIF 165 ME - @%&
BERER S ERFESR S FBUR
AT AT E&?fﬁﬁﬁ $E@7@T}%.
EEEMERERABR  $REEHR
- %éﬁ&@i\ﬁs‘“ﬁmﬁinﬂiﬁﬁém_
TR UBERAREHNETEASS®
ERHAEHHBRREENEZNGEE - 5
HEHSENEFERASGHRAFER
MEE+F - BEREARENTERE
ASmHTtFER=FE=_1+F - #
EifERASmE S —FtA—HiE
£ EREH S A EERAARK
WAE

BIBFIHETE - MERFEE S EE
E'_:_ffﬁL A=+— EIE’JE%Hr
e A AREES,617,240,0007T ° €5
HErEER%  —E_EF+-_A=1+—
Esﬁ?iuﬂﬁ 495 AN R#3,569,328,000

B A EERASERECT
_*EJr_ﬂer*EiJJ:EJEZ’"JTﬁ%%ﬁ
EINT HAREE47,912,0007T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021

—=

15.

—f#+—-_A=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15.

B RE

Non-patented

Development

Patents  technology expenditure Software Total
R EEFRM X B CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT ARETT AREFr ARETR
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=—%F—HA—H 82,005 108,168 154,420 28,666 373,259
Addition AE - - 28,617 962 29,579
Reclassification NN 69,755 2,751 (81,619) 9,113 =
Recognised in research and RIFE B AT #R
development expenses - - (9,907) - (9,907)
Disposals RE (5,798) - - (1,213) (7,011)
Transfer from/to PPE BYE - HENREERE - - (14,912) 3,660 (11,252)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-A=1+—H 145,962 110,919 76,599 41,188 374,668
Accumulated amortisation: ~ Zit#s :
At 1 January 2021 R=ZZE=—%—HF—H (30,091) (55,372) - (12,943) (98,406)
Provision BB (13,548) (9,425) - (3,492) (26,465)
Disposals BRE 2,375 - - 728 3,103
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+-A=+—H (41,264) (64,797) - (15,707) (121,768)
Impairment: WE
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=F—F—F—H (1,375) - - - (1,375)
Disposals RE 1,375 - - - 1,375
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F+-A=+—H - - - - -
Net carrying amount: BREHE
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=_—%—A—H 50,539 52,796 154,420 15,723 273,478
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_—&+-F=1+—H 104,698 46,122 76,599 25,481 252,900
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. E|EEFEE)
Non-patented  Development
Patents technology  expenditure Software Total
R EERIRMm e Edis G

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFRL

Cost: ﬁl?.zl& :

At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZZF—A—H 55,586 105,019 137,101 23,360 321,066
Addition NE - - 50,558 5,306 55,864
Reclassification ELiipak ] 26,419 3,149 (29,568) - -
Recognised in research and RIFEERH R

development expenses - - (3,671) = (3,671)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTF+-RA=1—H 82,005 108,168 154,420 28,666 373,259
Accumulated amortisation: ~ Zit#s :

1 January 2020 RZZZZF—A—H (24,024) (46,267) = (11,067) (81,358)
Provision B (6,067) (9,105) = (1,876) (17,048)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=1—H (30,091) (655,372) = (12,943) (98,4006)
Impairment: WE :

1 January 2020 R-T-_ZF—F—H (1,375) = = = (1,375)
Provision B = = = = =
At 31 December 2020 WZZEZZF+-A=+—H (1,375) - = - (1,375)
Net carrying amount: BREFE

1 January 2020 RZZ=ZF—A—H 30,187 58,752 137,101 12,293 238,333
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+-A=+—H 50,539 52,796 154,420 15,723 273,478
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no intangible assets REZEZ—FRZETF+A=+
of the Group pledged to secure bank borrowings and other loans. —HB  AEBEENENEEEALTER

RITERMEMEROER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SRR M (&)

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

16. LEASES 16. &

FREESEHEA

AEEBREEERBETEANSEET
MR ERERE - W - Ef TAMM
ARREHNEEAR - AEESREAEL
—RUENFAREIEABRE L - H
HA=tEmO+tF  RiFELtnR
WV - BB EE S ERAIE - 8
FHEMERRENEA-—KA—E8
Foter  BRIAMIAZERENE
H—RAT _EAXRNKT H MEREE
BIK - —RKFH - AEEFEHCEE
MEERAKEINERMEE o

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and
other infrastructure, machinery, transportation vehicles and office
equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 30 to 47 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings and other
infrastructure generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years.
Machinery, transportation vehicles and office equipment generally
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are individually of
low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEEE

AEEERAEEENREERF

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows: AR EF AT :
Buildings
and other
Leasehold land infrastructure Total
AT L it EFEH
HERE H BRI &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR¥FT AR¥TF
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-_FF—HF—H 18,601 337,442 356,043
Additions 0 - 2,370 2,370
Lease modification HEES - (4,807) (4,807)
Depreciation charge e (465) (23,995) (24,460)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE_ZTF
and 1 January 2021 +ZA=+—AK
—T-—9F—HF—H 18,136 311,010 329,146
Additions 0 - 9,813 9,813
Lease termination AE&RIE - (2,176) (2,176)
Lease modification HEES - 1,063 1,063
Depreciation charge e (465) (24,605) (25,070)
As at 31 December 2021 P
—A=1+—8H 17,671 295,105 312,776
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. LEASES (CONTINUED)

16.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans) and the

SRR E(E)
31 December 2021
=T m el

HE(E)
FREESREAHE)
(b) ERRAME

HERENREREE(BEETR
SRATAVEL Mt BF 2R I8 ) R 4E (R B

movements during the year are as follows: BERMAT :
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BNEREE 319,683 343,002
New leases e 9,813 2,370
Lease termination MERIE (2,251) =
Lease modification HEES 1,063 (4,807)
Accretion of interest recognised REEERFBEA
during the year 13,183 13,667
Payments 5% (33,391) (34,549)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-A=+—8BrEEE 308,100 319,683
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mEnEs o 35,106 32,160
Non-current portion JEmEN D 272,994 287,523

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

38 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

HEAENIBMASTEN KR
RITTEIBHHER -

(c) RIARBFPREHEEHEFHET

leases are as follows: mF:
2021 2020
B —F —_E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Interest on lease liabilities HERENE 13,183 13,667
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  FREEETE
assets 25,070 24,460
Expense relating to short-term H35S EATE EARRA R B R A
leases (included in cost of sales, HEMR =T _TF+=A
administrative expenses and =+ —RAEESNEMEE
selling and distribution expenses) A E R GTAHEEK
R ITHRY - HEM
SEEFET) 14,837 18,250
Expense relating to leases of HEESEREEEERENE
low-value assets (included in AGIATTEAX)
administrative expenses) 177 185
Total amount recognised in profit R AERNRE
or loss 53,267 56,512
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. HER)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) FEEEREEA ()
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note (d) BB £ 5w H =R %
32(c) to the financial statements. HEME32(c)PEE -
The Group as a lessor KEFERHHEA
The Group leases its buildings and other infrastructure in RIBLEHRERZ  AEBEF
China under operating lease arrangements. Rental income B A R AN H A B M o
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB201,000 AEFBEAFERRNES KA
(2020: RMB583,000), details of which are included in note BAR®E201,000( =%
5 to the financial statements. F: AR¥583,0007T) ' 1N
B 75 R M o 4 EE -
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments RZZE=Z—F+=ZRA=+—8 -
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- ANEEETEFFET A B
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: LS AR AR AR ITIR E
WHERIEMNT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Within one year —F LR - 583
17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 17. BEULAARBRENELRS

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Bt ARSI RaE R
"A

2021 2020
—E--F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB000
AEMTTT ARETT
Equity investments designated at fair value  #EENAABEEEES B AL
through other comprehensive income RERRNERRE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value EEMESRE - BAREE)
(Note)
China Datang Overseas Power Operating HEAEEEEIE HELSER AT
Co., Lid. (FEEAEEEBHNENELER (ZRA[HEAESEEIMNITR
AT)) (formerly known as “China Datang BERAA])
Overseas Electric Technology and O&M
Co., Ltd" (FEIREE BN RIS B IR
A7) 26,389 28,914

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

18. DEFERRED TAX 18. EIEIRIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the BEFTANERNELHEEEREEN
year are as follows: FE)NT ¢
Deferred tax assets EERIAEE
Impairment Elimination
of financial of
and contract Accrued Deferred  unrealised
assets  expenses income profit Total
SREERS RER
BEERE &R EEW Gilybik &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARRETR ARETT ARRETn ARETn ARETx

At 1 January 2021 WZE--F—-f—-H 31,479 423 5,159 9,718 46,779
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ ERztA/(HIK ) EREELFIE

during the year (note 11) (PzE11) 9,527 (234) (487) (3,536) 5,270
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021 ~ RW=ZE-—F+-A=+—B#HE

TERBEERS 41,006 189 4,672 6,182 52,049

t 1 January 2020 W-ZE-ZF—F—H h2,762 687 5,243 11,793 70,485
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ FREA /(1) BHMELHE

during the year (note 11) (PzE11) (21,283) (264) (84) (2,075) (23,706)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 W=Z-ZF+-A=+—HBMHE

uftlﬁﬁéi@%i 31,479 423 5,159 9,718 46,779

Deferred tax liabilities EERFAR

Fair value adjustments
of equity investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income Total
LAREEFEEHSBE
SFARMGRE RENER
RENDIABEES &t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARWFRT

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 588 588
Deferred tax charged to other FRFTAEMERS WEMIELE

comprehensive income during the year 118 (379) (379)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE=—F+=-A=+—H

at 31 December 2021 HIRIER 1A B B4 E 209 209
At 1 January 2020 R-_ZE_ZTF—H—H 399 399
Deferred tax charged to other FRFTAEMERS WEHIELE

comprehensive income during the year HE 189 189
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-_EBE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H

at 31 December 2020 Eﬁ;EURIEE%ﬁ@aE 588 588
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IR M ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

18. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 18.

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

EFETRIR (1R)
BERFA R (R)
BRI BIEA B R B B A BB B

AR ELVFEEIIR - A TRAASERAR
HE B HFIRERERIARN DT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKEF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the TE& P IE IR M &=
consolidated statement of financial position RERELEHIBEEE
FHER 51,840 46,191
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the EA{#ﬁﬁfRﬂﬁ)RﬁﬁE
consolidated statement of financial position REEERIEEE
/?%E - -
Net deferred tax assets BEETIBEEF58 51,840 46,191

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has tax losses arising in
India of RMB33,383,000 (31 December 2020: RMB27,945,000)
that will expire up to eight years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of Technologies & Engineering India, an overseas
subsidiary of the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
tax losses arising in the PRC of RMB622,555,000 (31 December
2020: RMB196,166,000). As at 31 December 2021, the Group
has deductible temporary differences of RMB507,269,000 (2020:
RMB233,883,000) in respect of impairment losses.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses or deductible temporary differences as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISR MIsE (&)
31 December 2021
=T m el

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19. HMERBDHFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBEFIT
Long-term prepaid expenses REGFEER 288,893 337,395
Deductible VAT FrEHIB E R IR T 45,531 45,508
Prepayments for equipment TEfF MK 15,512 19,021
Others HAth 35,816 27,708
385,752 429,632

INVENTORIES 20. &8

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARKEFIT
Raw materials R 99,867 84,604
Work in progress FE 0 12,129 7,482
Finished goods BIRK i 92,935 98,523
204,931 190,609
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FrR R M et (48)

31 December 2021

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—&+=-A=+—H
CONTRACT ASSETS 21. SREE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
R=TB=—H RZT_=F i
+=—HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr AREFT ARBFT
Contract assets arising from: THZBEEANEREE :
construction services BERS 240,005 712,625 889,309
sale of industrial products HETHEESR 27,186 28,744 -
267,191 741,369 889,309
Less: provision for impairment & : JB{E (3,426) (5,962) (5,470)
Total a=t 263,765 735,407 883,839

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
the sale of industrial products and construction services as the
receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of construction, respectively. Upon completion of construction
and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The decrease
in contract assets in 2021 and 2020 were both the results of the
decrease in the provision of construction services at the end of
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, RMB2,511,000 (2020:
RMB492,000) was reversed/(recognized) as impairment loss on
contract assets. The Group's trading terms and credit policy with
customers are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.
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21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets

SRR E(E)
31 December 2021
=T m el

21. SREEE)

R+-—HA=+—8 ' aRE&EEEKE

as at 31 December is as follows: SEERRNT
2021 2020
—B-—F —EC-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AERETT
Within one year —F LR 263,765 735,407
After one year —F LAk - -
Total contract assets AREERE 263,765 735,407

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

ARARAEZ BEEBHEBNT :

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

At beginning of year REH] 5,962 5,470
Impairment losses, net BIEBKR - FE (2,511) 492
Amount written off as uncollectible JsH AR U el 2 FRIE (25) =
At end of year RER 3,426 5,962

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to
measure expected credit losses on contract assets. The provision
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as
the contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. Similar to trade receivables, the contract assets
from related parties and third parties are assessed separately based
on their different credit risks characteristics, the detailed analysis
of which can be referred to note 22.

AEERESERERETAREERE
o UETEBRFHERBAESE - AR
EREERE S EWFAXRAHARNE
F  AREEBEMERBRRBHEERNUE
ZRRFIRTAERBRARRER - &
B RYGRIERU - BB RE =771
ABREEREETENEARRSES
BRHE - REONS R BRAME22 -
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21.

22.

230

— &2 ) = E

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. ERAEEE)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on NTENEBEAEEEREEERARR
the Group’s contract assets: AR ER :
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H
Related Third
Parties Parties Total
2}y B=7 &5t
Expected credit loss rate TEEAEREARER 0.303% 3.936%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) wEmE(ARETIT) 195,174 72,017 267,191
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHRERABXR(ARETT) 591 2,835 3,426
As at 31 December 2020 N—E-_TFE+=-A=+—H
Related Third
Parties Parties Total
B2kl F=h a5t
Expected credit loss rate TEHAE AR 0.157% 2.690%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BEEEARETT) 551,856 189,513 741,369
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHEREXR(ARKTIT) 866 5,096 5,962

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. EHEKRAMEWRRE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Trade receivables 2 5 WA 7,838,390 7,932,517
Less: provision for impairment B OREREE (292,965) (272,662)
7,545,425 7,659,855

Bills receivable FEW R 624,508 968,588
8,169,933 8,628,443
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on RFEPHBXNBEMKIN  REEER
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is FREFGRAETERERER - =HH

normally required. The credit period is generally within one year.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over the outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is

— = —

=

(#8)

(a) HRECHH

31 December 2021

—= - B =q—g
22. BHBKRAMERKRE

REREHR - B 5 EKRKM
e R IR IR R A A BRie AT

as follows: W
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr AR®TT
Within 1 year —FR 4,630,198 5,231,239
Between 1 and 2 years —EME 1,260,312 798,872
Between 2 and 3 years ZE = 435,405 890,505
Over 3 years BiE=F 2,136,983 1,980,489
8,462,898 8,901,105
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (292,965) (272,662)
8,169,933 8,628,443

Impairment of trade receivables

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

(b) WHEWRIFRE

B 5 UGB E B A EH

trade receivables are as follows: S 8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AE®TT
At beginning of the year REH 272,662 234,844
Impairment losses, net REEX - F8 22,924 43,781

Amount written off as SRSHE R EIM SRR

uncollectible (2,621) (5,963)
At end of the year RER 292,965 272,662

T —FFERSE

ARERREXEERNERAT
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables from the related parties are
RMB6,827,717,000 (2020: RMB6,677,115,000) which are
mainly due from China Datang Group and certain associates
and joint ventures of China Datang Group. The Group has
assessed the expected losses for trade receivables from
related parties by reference to the published credit rating
of China Datang Group and the corresponding probability
of default of 0.303%. The loss given default was estimated
to be 100%.

For the trade receivables from third parties, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by product type, customer type and credit rating). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ISR MIsE (&)

31 December 2021

—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. EHEKRAMEWRRE
(CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) BHEUKREEEGE)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 —T-—&#+-A=+—AH

Third parties

E=h
Individually
Between Between assessed
Related Within1 1and2 2and3  Over3 trade
parties year years years years Subtotal receivables Total
EEHEM
BEs —Eh -ERE WEZF BB=E% hat EWEE ait
(Note a)
(Hiita)
Expected credit loss ~ BHERBAR
rate 0.303% 1.33% 8.09%  12.25%  26.65%  13.96% 86.87% 3.74%
Gross carrying amount  BREIEE
(RMB'000) (AR#TTT) 6,827,717 197,158 244,263 70,635 318,655 830,711 179,962 7,838,390
Expected credit losses  TBHAERBX
(RMB'000) (ARBTT) 20,688 2,623 19,752 8,652 84,911 115938 156,339 292,965
As at 31 December 2020 —E-FF+—-A=+—H
Third parties
F=h
Individually
Between  Between assessed
Related ~ Within1 ~ fand2 2and3 Over 3 trade
parties year years years years  Subtotal  receivables Total
ERFENE
BEs -Fn -EmE WEZF BBz It e ait
(Note a)
(Hiita)
Expected credit loss ~ BEERBAE
rate 0.157% 1.54% 9.07%  1761%  33.54%  13.10% 70.75% 3.44%
Gross carrying amount  BREE(E
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 6,677,115 398,951 109,355 424,069 153,469 1,085,844 169,558 7,932,517
Expected credit losses  BBHIERBR
(RMB'000) (ARBTT) 10483 6155 9920 74675 51468 142218 119,961 272,662
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SRR M (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)
Note a:

An overseas third-party company in India (the “Indian
Company”) of which a subsidiary is a customer of the
Group (the “Indian Customer”) is undergoing a proceeding
of bankruptcy and reorganisation. The Group received the
preliminary restructuring plan approved by National Company
Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (the “Local Court”) during
the year. According to the restructuring plan and considering
the present value, the expected accumulated credit loss is
estimated to be RMB140,863,000.

An overseas third-party company in Thailand (the “Thailand
Company”) which is a customer of the Group (the “Thailand
Customer”) had a dispute over the receivables with the Group
due to construction delay and some project performance factors.
During this year, the Thailand Customer issued a letter stating
that the Group’s construction progress had been delayed and
filed a reverse claim to the Group accordingly. Considering
the current situation, management of the Group believes that
the receivables are less likely to be recovered, and therefore
a full impairment provision of RMB10,228,000 was made as
at 31 December 2021.

In addition to above two impairment provisions, there are
three third-party receivables with the amount of RMB5,248,000
that are fully made impairment provision due to their low
possibilities of recovery as at 31 December 2021.
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Hiita
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((PEQARA D FEETREME
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(TNEEF]) - £ ALEKE
FEEERARE AR Ei
EBR ) BEM Y S EHEETE o BRI
BHEEIRERBEE  BHEER
KA E A AR 140,863,000
=
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Transferred financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB163,645,000 (2020: RMB73,712,000)
(the “Derecognised Bills”).

The derecognised bills receivable had a maturity of one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the derecognised bills receivable have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the derecognised bills receivable.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the derecognised bills receivable and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised bills
receivable and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these derecognised bills receivable is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group's Continuing Involvement in the derecognised
bills receivable are not significant.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the derecognised bills receivable. No gains or
losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement,
both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.

BRI (48

31 December 2021
—&+=-A=+—H

_=_

22. BHBKRAMERKRE

(#%)

(c)

THEEEE

BRI BB LHEE

F_§:—¢+:HE+—Ev

AEESETETHEREHRE
EEEIKRRE - AE S E M

EENESREMNRIE  HEAS
4R A AR 163,645,0007T
(ZE=ZF : AR¥73,712,000
T ([#HRILLRRAERE]) -
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Hé*WAMHWUﬂ R 15 F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ISR M 5 (48)

31 December 2021

T —H+-A=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Transferred financial assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks and financial institutions
of certain large central enterprises in Mainland China
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of
RMB91,708,000 (2020: RMB81,456,000) to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to
such suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
Endorsed Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise
the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the
associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
Endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on the
use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer or
pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables settled by
the Endorsed Bills during the year to which the suppliers
have recourse was RMB91,708,000 (2020: RMB81,456,000)
as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, trade and bills receivables
amounting to RMB5,981,000 were pledged for bills payable
granted to the Group (31 December 2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

BRI ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

23. RAMRE - RtERRITER

OTHER ASSETS Ht1FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Prepayments TEfTFIR 100,769 133,734
Deposits REE 52,441 59,443
Other receivables H fh pE U GRIE 151,828 62,226
Other current assets HEMRe&E 288,828 379,117
593,866 634,520
Less: provision of impairment B ORE R (28,260) (9,543)
Total A& 565,606 624,977

Deposits and other receivables are mainly related to the guarantee
deposits for auction and the funds held by employees, and an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default. Except the separate item
of prepayments for certain terminated projects already impaired,
as the financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default, no
impairment was provided during the year.

As at 31 December 2021, a provision of RMB28,260,000 (2020:
RMB9,543,000) has been made for the prepayments for certain
terminated projects.

As supplier of the Group has not returned the prepaid construction
payment after the completion and settlement of the project, the
Group made a provision for impairment at 24.24% of expected
credit loss rate, which resulted in an increase in impairment
provision of RMB18,717,000.

REE S K E A EYGRIAE B2 EBIZIRR
EeLEEFHASHEMY  NEERE
BIEZERENOBEDETREST &
HR LR PR B R BENFRIRHRBEE
B AR LABETREENEREE
B R W SRIRARRE - Tk B WO IR AT BN
BROESL - RUAFARRRBESE
(I

RZE-_—4F+_A=+—H BEAZE
L4 FIE B BN FUBRT IR IR EE A
EMzsmooooE(_?_?i AR
9,543,0007T) °

HRAEBENHERTEEERILAHE
B EREEMNIRR  HAEBIR
24.24% )T AR E FRIE R AR E RS -
BEURER L NARE18,717,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, A TIME

DEPOSIT AND RESTRICTED CASH

24.

BeMieSRY EUF

REZREH &

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBT T

Cash and bank balances REMIRTTHE 1,366,486 1,599,466

Less: restricted cash (Note a) B XPRFIRE (B ta) (121,604) (67,727)

Cash and cash equivalents REMBEEED 1,244,882 1,531,739
Cash and bank balances REFIBITEFRIA TN EETHE:

denominated in:

- RMB —AR# 1,358,014 1,568,278

— United States dollar —E7T 842 17,484

— Hong Kong dollar — BT 6,283 6,698

— Indian rupee —HEEL 1,347 7,006

1,366,486 1,599,466

Note a: Restricted cash mainly represents deposits held for issued bills

payable and performance obligations for engineering services,
property maintenance and frozen deposits for construction
contract disputes.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
to be settled within one year.

MR RRM ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

25. RHEMARAMEFRE

BHRNRENENEEIAELBE
R—FREE -

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFTT
Bills payable (note) FERT IR (A1 5%) 115,091 122,600
Trade payables B SN FIA 4,463,973 4,781,875
4,579,064 4,904,475
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables, based on the REREHR ERNBEAHBEENE

invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

%F@H Iﬁﬁcﬂfgﬁmﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ DATAAT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ET-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR®TT

Within 1 year —FR 2,329,536 2,379,678
1 year to 2 years —EMFE 579,393 605,142
2 years to 3 years ME=F 354,407 679,509
More than 3 years BiE=F 1,315,728 1,240,146
4,579,064 4,904,475

Note: Part of the above bills payable are secured by trade and bills
receivables with a net carrying value of RMB5,981,000 (31
December 2020: Nil) (note 22).

Bt itﬁﬂﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ/‘mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\
R#5,981,000L( ZE=2F+=
A=+—8 : &)0E 5 ERIEHM
FEMEBAER (HzE22) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HthEFRIEEER
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR%Fr ARMTFr
Contract liabilities ERAE (a) 145,420 338,123
Taxes payable, other than income tax  BRFTERIIMFE B IE 41,163 26,415
Interest payables FEATAILE 13,232 15,467
Dividends payable FERARE 30,920 417,374
Other payables H b fET FRIE (b) 751,948 992,180
982,683 1,789,559
Notes: HtaE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) ARAEEPMAZIROT :
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
—E-—fF —ETF —T-TF
+=—BA=+—8 +=-A=+—8H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARMFT AREFT
Short-term advances received FTEIFEINE P
from customers
Sale of industrial products HETXEm 3,533 27,484 25,995
Construction services BIEARTE 141,887 310,639 494,782
Total contract liabilities aRAEE 145,420 338,123 520,777
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to ERBERENE TXERRREHR
deliver industrial products and construction services. The BERBKINERERR - =%
decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly T EFER-T_TELERABENR
due to the decrease in short-term advances received from D EE R BN FIEEEERR AR
customers in relation to the provision of construction services K52 HRTE IR P BB R P& o

at the end of the year.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms (b) EMENRBESAEMNEARER
of repayment. TEEFRE] o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27. PROVISIONS

27. B0\

SRR E(E)
31 December 2021
=T m el

Warranties Other losses
(note a) (note b) Total
RESE Hitrig &
(FizEa) (PfzEDb) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥ETFT AREF T
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE——4%—Hf—H 2,820 4,500 7,320
Additional provision BINEE - 123,151 123,151
Amounts utilised during the year B ARG (1,560) (4,500) (6,060)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-Z—F+-HA=+—H 1,260 123,151 124,411
Portion classified as current HERREAGHS
liabilities (780) (123,151) (123,931)
Non-current portion EVER=YET 480 = 480
Note a: Htita:

The Group provides one to three years of maintenance service to
its customers for certain industrial products sales related to the
prior year sales. The amount of the provision for the warranties is
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the level of
maintenance service. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.

Note b:

Other losses of provisions mainly represented the accrued liabilities
recognized for the provisions for the litigations or contract disputes
mainly related to the issues of the Indian construction projects
mentioned in note 6(b).

AEBEEBEFEHETELONAD TEE
et — 2 = FOEERTE - AEEER
HE M RTKFRBELRGEEREDR
MEESHE -  ARES TEEMZGR R
HERIRR - WHEEERERT ©

Btatb:

H A B 18K = B3t £ P RE6(b) Pt

EEERERR EEAMNFARSRF
EAERNEAE o

T —FFERSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B H5 Rk Y

(&)

31 December 2021

_=_

28.

— &2 ) = E

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

AND OTHER LOANS

28. FHRSEBITEZRMAMER

Effective 31 December 31 December
interest rate Maturity 2021 2020
—E--& “ZCTF
(S WA  +=A=+-B FZA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFL AREFT
Current BNER
Bank borrowings: RITHER
- unsecured — IR 3.10%-4.35% 2022 2,676,495 1,590,560
Other loans: HfER
- unsecured —EER 3.90%-4.50% 2022 78,080 =
- secured —HHEH - 70,000
- short-term bonds (Note a) —RHRES(Hiza) 2.69% 2022 500,000 500,000
3,254,575 2,160,560
Current portion of long term bank  RESRTERMEMER

borrowings and other loans B R ER
Bank borrowings - unsecured RITIER — IR 3.85%-4.41% 2022 404,574 461,232
Bank borrowings - guaranteed RITER—BERHZD)

(Note b) 4.41% 2022 9,000 35,167
Other loans - unsecured Hip &5 — g 5.15%-5.70% 2022 86,550 153,186
Other loans - secured Hip &5 —HiEH - 350,000
Lease liabilities (Note 16b) HEAE(HF16b) 4.41% 2022 35,106 32,160

535,230 1,031,745
3,789,805 3,192,305
Non-current FERE
Long term bank borrowings REABRITEFRREMER :

and other loans:

Bank borrowings - unsecured BTN — EER 3.25%-4.41% 2023-2027 1,275,587 1,948,661
Bank borrowings - guaranteed RITER—BERHZD)

(Note b) 4.41% 2026 5,500 27,700
Other loans - unsecured ﬁiﬁg?y\ EI 5.15% 2023 8,900 14,700
Other loans - bonds HER-EH 3.65% 2024 600,000 600,000
Lease liabilities (Note 16b) HEAE(HiF16b) 4.41% 2023-2038 272,994 287,523

2,162,981 2,878,684
5,952,786 6,070,889
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERTERNEMER

and other loans denominated in: AN ESEHE -

- RMB - AR 5,952,786 6,070,889
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

Note a:

On 11 January 2021, 9 April 2021 and 5 July 2021, the Company
issued three tranches of short-term bonds at a par value of RMB100
amounting to RMB500 million each. The bonds had annual effective
interest rates of 2.65%, 2.64% and 2.69% respectively. The first and
second tranches of short-term bonds were already matured in April
2021 and July 2021, respectively, and the third tranche of short-term
bond will be matured in April 2022.

Note b:

The above secured bank borrowings were guaranteed by the Company
for certain subsidiaries.

28.

SRR E(E)
31 December 2021
=T m el

FFRRTERMAMER
(#8)

Htita:

RZB-—F—HA+—H ZZ=—FMK
ANBE=ZF=-_—FtAAA ' ARAZF
217 A R 500,000,000 7T K i 52 HA gt &
%  ZEELBEHAAREI00T - ZEAE
DAl £2.65% * 2.64% }%2.69% ° £ —H
E—HBEREFEEN T —F N
AR—ZE-—FtHAEH  F=-HBEH
BEFBNR_T__FMARHE -

Hiath:

ERIRITREKARNRARE THE QAT
ER o

T —FFERSE
AERFEEXRERNHARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—F-—Ft+-RA=1—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28.

AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other loans as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

FFRRTERMAMER

(#%)

FRRITERMEMERR T RS HR

EEIBIERAT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AR®T T
Analysed into: DI ¢
Bank borrowings repayable: FEIRITER
Within one year —FR 3,090,069 2,086,959
In the second year F_4F 781,294 579,784
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZFhF(BREEEMRF) 494,711 1,298,331
Beyond five years AFE 5,082 98,246
4,371,156 4,063,320
Other loans repayable: FEREMER
Within one year —FR 699,736 1,105,346
In the second year F_F 38,993 35,289
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE=ZELF(DEERWE) 682,836 690,073
Beyond five years AF% 160,065 176,861
1,581,630 2,007,569
Total a5t 5,952,786 6,070,889
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &
Shares 2021 2020
&y —B-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTT
Issued and fully paid: BEITHNEE :
2,967,542,000 2,967,542,000f% ( —Z =—F4F :
(2020: 2,967,542,000) ordinary 2,967,542,000% ) & i@ A%
shares 2,967,542 2,967,542
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

RESERVES 30. f#fE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein BEZZ-—FR=ZFTTF+=ZRA=
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are presented +T—BLEFE  AEENRHEERESHS
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. HEYEEHESEHERA °
PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 31. BEEXERERESNIER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BB AT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling HEERIEERESNAEENBA
interests are set out below: FEHINAT
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
Percentage of equity interests held IR R A R AR I
by non-controlling interests:
Technologies & Engineering Company B TREAR] 44% 44%
Nanjing Environmental Protection R IERIR 7.89% 7.89%
Tiandi Environmental R IRIR 35% 35%
2021 2020
—E——F —TE-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARMTF T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable iWEﬁ?EEAj}H fix e 2 9
to non-controlling interests: = VAE =S
Technologies & Engineering Company %«H@ZIF“ (247,994) (107,958)
Nanjing Environmental Protection R IR IR 1,621 3,872
Tiandi Environmental R IRIR 10,651 11,928
Dividends declared to non-controlling EXfMFIEERESRE
interests:
Technologies & Engineering Company R TEAA - 3,520
Nanjing Environmental Protection M RIRR = -
Tiandi Environmental RHBIR IR 7,000 1,785
Accumulated balances of non-controlling A ¥R& B EiFEIEfRE S ) 25t
interests at the reporting date: BR%E ¢
Technologies & Engineering Company BHETRRA A (240,687) 6,838
Nanjing Environmental Protection B RIRR 36,841 35,220
Tiandi Environmental RHIRIR 79,318 75,667
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BT Rk M o

31 December 2021
—&+—-_A=+—H

_=_

31.

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Technologies & Engineering Company, Nanjing Environmental
Protection and Tiandi Environmental. The amounts disclosed are

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

before any inter-company eliminations:

31.

BREIFHERERMNIER
BRELT (&)

TEREAMKIREAR BREREX
WRERNPBEERAMS - ARENSER
REBERRFEEHERTNEHE -

Technologies & Nanjing
Engineering Environmental Tiandi
2021 Company Protection Environmental
—E=-—F BMEIEAR ARERR RIBRR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TF T ARHETF T AREFT

Revenue WA 560,923 423,317 91,321
Total expenses HRE (1,124,546) (402,777) (60,889)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFIHE (?590 (563,623) 20,540 30,432
Total comprehensive income  FR4RE W EE 4858

for the year (562,557) 20,540 30,432
Current assets mEEE 2,594,057 1,208,082 93,522
Non-current assets FEMEEE 310,670 464,305 169,483
Current liabilities REEE (3,310,953) (968,571) (35,624)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (140,790) (236,883) (759)
Net cash flows from KEEBFSR e RS FE

operating activities 105,838 44,022 312
Net cash flows used in KERSMAREREFE

investing activities (5,442) (4,877) (15,552)
Net cash flows used in BEEBFTAR SRS FE

financing activities (24,621) (41,463) (20,073)
Effect of foreign exchange PE =SB R 8H

rate changes, net (388) - -
Net increase/(decrease) in Be RS EE YL M,

cash and cash equivalents (R )F58 75,387 (2,318) (35,313)
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31.

32.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RRM ()

31 December 2021

—®=—#+=A=t-A
PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 31. BBEEXIERRESMNIER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BMEBAT(E)
(CONTINUED)
Technologies & Nanjing
Engineering Environmental Tiandi
2020 Company Protection Environmental
—ETHF B TR R ER IR RHBIR IR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARMTFT ARBTFT
Revenue WA 2,156,213 455,896 87,349
Total expenses BHE (2,401,573) (406,818) (53,270)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(BX) (245,360) 49,078 34,079
Total comprehensive income  FR4RE W EE4A58
for the year (246,467) 49,078 34,079
Current assets mEEE 3,627,253 1,183,360 70,216
Non-current assets EREEE 342,697 487,514 161,302
Current liabilities mEBAE (3,835,721) (964,555) (14,529)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (18,689) (259,925) (800)
Net cash flows (used in)/ EEEN(FTA), FTBER SR
from operating activities 255 (43,240) (88,314) 49,953
Net cash flows used in KEEBFABRSR
investing activities (3,377) (13,299) (7)
Net cash flows (used in)/ BEREN(FTA), FT3ER SR
from financing activities 255 (83,757) 108,201 (45,949)
Effect of foreign exchange FERF B LR
rate changes, net (1,390) - -
Net (decrease)/increase in BeMESEEMORD),/
cash and cash equivalents HEANFRE (131,764) 6,588 3,997

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash reductions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB8,700,000
(2020:RMB2,437,000) and RMB8,625,000 (2020:
RMB2,437,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings and other infrastructure. The
difference is due to the early termination of two leases
during the current year, with the amount of RMB75,000
for gains on disposal of right-of-use assets.

32. attRKRERME

(a) EBFREXH

AEE FERBEMZREHR
ER2H AEENERELE
MEEEEIEBRESRLSED R
B ARG 700,000 (ZE=F
& AR#2437,0007T) FIAR
#8,625,000 L(ZT=FF : A
K¥2,437,000T) - 22X ZR
EAAFEMMHBAES RIRATHK
I EERSFERAEEENRE
AR#75,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021
—F-_—F+-RA=t—H

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

32. AHBRKRERMEGE)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) WMEFDSIEBHARER
activities
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings and
other loans
(other than Lease Other payables
2021 lease liabilities) liabilities and accruals
TESRITERM
Hit &% H At TRER
—EB-—F (BRiEEEEMN) HEAE FEsTE R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARKETT
As at 1 January 2021 RN—ZE-_—%—HF—H 5,751,206 319,683 1,789,559
Changes from financing cash REEFBRRNTE
flows (107,118) (33,391) (736,219)
New leases MEHEE - 9,813 -
Lease modification HEZTE = 1,063 =
Lease termination MERIE - (2,251) -
Interest expenses ﬂ 8 EZHj 598 13,183 208,178
2020 final dividends —E=-Z E*Hﬁ g = - 132,352
Dividends declared by a MIB ARSI T IHERAE S
subsidiary to its non- EJ\E’JHQE
controlling shareholder - - 7,000
Changes from operating cash REFBHRRNTE
flows - - (200,925)
Exchange gains and losses B 5 UWeas M E518 - = (4,286)
Changes from investing cash REEHREMNTE
flows - - (212,976)
As at 31 December 2021 —%+-f=+—H 5,644,686 308,100 982,683
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

MR RRM ()

31 December 2021
—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H

32. AHBRKRERMEGE)

MR D5 ENARED
(¥%&)

(b)

(other than lease

Interest-
bearing bank

borrowings and

other loans

Lease Other payables

2020 liabilities) liabilities and accruals
s ERITIE HA
HiBE® Hfth e R IB AN
—TEF (BRHEEEEMN) HEERE fEETEHR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 —T-FF—F—H 6,702,876 343,002 1,852,722
Changes from financing cash ﬁﬂéﬁ@ﬁ@mﬁ’\]?&%
flows (958,292) (34,549) (283,809)
New leases MEHEE - 2,370 =
Lease medication HEZTE - (4,807) -
Interest expenses FEZH 6,622 13,667 259,161
2019 final dividends :?E*jﬁﬂ&‘ = - - 100,303
Dividends paid by a subsidiary to KB 2 75K T I Ak i stk
its non-controlling shareholder BEARRE - - 5,620
Changes from operating cash REFBReRNTE
flows = = (54,456)
Exchange gains and losses [ 5 Was g 18 - - (9,982)
Changes from investing cash REEHREMNTE
flows = = (80,000)
As at 31 December 2020 —E-THE+-A=1+—H 5,751,206 319,683 1,789,559
Total cash outflow for leases (c) BHaRHEEHR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement HenerPNHEERSERD
of cash flows is as follows: g
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Within operating activities KEEEED 13,133 6,453
Within financing activities BEEH 33,391 34,549
46,524 41,002
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 75 R 5 BT o

(&)

31 December 2021

_=_

— &2 ) = E

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

India Gujarat Project

As mentioned in Note 6(b), on 16 March 2019, the Group's
subsidiaries of Technologies & Engineering Company and
the Technologies & Engineering India signed construction
contracts for desulfurisation and wet chimney with GSECL.
Due to the impact of COVID-19, the construction progress
was delayed and GSECL issued a formal notice which
stated that it might take measures such as terminating the
contract, redeeming the performance guarantee letter, and
entrusting the work to others to complete. The Group fully
accrued provisions of RMB75,848,000 for the redemption of
the performance guarantee letter, and also considers that
the corresponding advance receipts of RMB25,835,000 will
no longer be obligated to be returned after the redemption
of the performance guarantee letter, and incurred other
expenses of RMB50,013,000 accordingly, but the likelihood
of occurrence of other compensations about these contract
disputes cannot be estimated reliably.

India NLC Project

As mentioned in Note 6(b), on 6 March 2020, Technologies
& Engineering Company signed a construction contract
with NLC India. Due to the impact of COVID-19, the
construction progress was delayed, and NLC India issued
a formal notice to request to terminate the contract and
redeem the performance guarantee letter amounting to
RMB47,303,000. In addition, the claims brought by the
NLC India also include the costs incurred in re-tendering
and the arbitration progress. The Group fully accrued a
provision of RMB47,303,000 for the request of redeeming
the performance guarantee letter, and incurred other
expenses of RMB47,303,000 accordingly, but the likelihood
of occurrence of other compensations about these contract
disputes cannot be estimated reliably.
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(a)

(b)

ENEGujaratlB B

A Ei B 6 (b) Pt - R =T —
NFE=RA+RAE AEEHBR
AR TRRAR MBI IRNE
NR)EAGSECLEE A B B R &

RIEEE R - ARNHTEMARE
WEE BZETIRWIER WK
GSECLEHIEEAM - RABK
BEIEER - AAELORERE
FEEAM T TR TIESH M - A&
B gt 5N B AR AR B HR R
AR #75,848,0007T * JRRAHE
JE /) TE U KA R 6 25,835,0007T
EANBHREEINBEELS
B WHEHEEMASX AR

50,013,0007T * BEMEEESTE
SRR S (HET ©
EPENLCIEH

mn E e ATt - R=ZF =
TF=ZANA  BHE TR S
NLC |ndlaix uTLﬁ' H ° EE
FEMARENTE  EETR

WHEFR - MINLC IndiaZ$ H 1
B BERKRIEAERY RN EL
R A R ¥ 47,303,0007T ° It
4N - NLC Indiaf2FEH RN
ENBERMEEEMELENK
AN o NEE R E KA BARK
BB GHR BB AR 47,303,000
7T WHHERHR MR AR
47,303,0007T ' BEMEFESEE
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

COMMITMENTS 34. #*&i
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (a) REERSMEAREBNTE
end of the reporting period: AREIE
2021 2020
B —F —ET—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARBTFr
Contracted, but not provided for EEEEGESE T
Buildings BgF 827 8,613
Plant and machinery R B A 34 155,018 187,792
Equity investment (Note) IR E (M aE) 15,048 =
170,893 196,405
Note: On 30 December 2021, the Company has entered Kt RZZTE=Z—F+=-HA=+
into the joint venture agreement with Datang Henan H AAREPBEKEZ
Power Generation Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary 2EWBRARIANEEESE
of China Datang, in relation to the proposed formation BRABIEREZKILEE
of the joint venture company with a registered capital NAEFIMVEE W - £l
of RMB30,096,000. Pursuant to the joint venture &R B AR 30,096,000
agreement, the Company shall make a capital T o BREAERE  AA
contribution of RMB15,048,000, representing 50% A & A R ¥ 15,048,000
equity interest in the joint venture company. The capital JC - B ERAEI50% K iR
contribution has not been paid as at the reporting date. o BERER ZEE
ARSI o
(b) The Group had no lease contracts that have not yet (b) N-_EBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H -
commenced as at 31 December 2021. ANEFEWEAM W REXNHEE
Wi o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. RHAXZH

The Group is part of China Datang and had significant transactions
with China Datang Group during the year.

The related party transactions in respect of the sales and purchase
of goods, the rendering of and receiving of services to and from
China Datang Group and certain associates and joint ventures
of China Datang Group, and loans from/to and interest expense/
income to/from China Datang Group as detailed in note 35(a)
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In addition to the related party transactions disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions entered into the ordinary
course of business between the Group and its related parties
during the year.

AEESTEAEHKE QR » RAF
TEAEEEREREEANRS °

RPEAEEEREE TABE AR H
ENBEEEY  REIEZRBABH
BT R 5 - LAKPEE35(a) Ty B H
BAEEEESENR MHEAERE
RUEEREATEAEEREXNOFE
/WA BHEREEEESOHN
B MWABEK ETRBNE14AZFH
EBENHERZFIFERERD °

BR A B 75 R EL A BB 0 R RO R 5 XX
ZO8 0 TXB AL E R ERE TR
REEBEEBBRETI LA E AN
RS °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SRR M (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. FABEAGEH(I])

(CONTINUED)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXRBAEEH
2021 2020
—E--F 2%
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Sales of goods and rendering of services to China OPEAEREEEENRRMRSE ()
Datang Group
Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions — BRERRLEEAH R 4,142,999 4,376,813
Renewable energy engineering pELS 334,714 1,773,369
Thermal power engineering KETR - 1,135
Others Hity 126 9,177
4,477,839 6,160,494
Sales of goods and rendering of services to the OPEABRSEAHEARNHELD ()
associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group RIERE
Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions ~ BREEEANZ 217,575 61,974
Purchases of goods and receiving of services from China EHEAEEERSENRESRE ()
Datang Group
Water supply and electricity supply HKREE \ 708,703 767,726
Ancillary services under the concession operations R AR IRIE TS B ARAS 91,577 82,678
Logistics services LS 69,328 65,018
Wind power electricity and other products REENRENER 564,980 1,346,098
1,434,588 2,261,520
Purchases of goods and receiving of services from the ~ EHEAEEEAKEAABELY ()
associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group REZ RS
Water supply and electricity supply HARES ‘ 84,289 29,182
Ancillary services under the concession operations R £ THE B RIS - 2,123
Wind power electricity and other products R ENRENER 274 -
84,563 31,305
Loans from subsidiaries of China Datang Group OREAEEENBARER (ii)
China Datang Finance Co, Ltd. (*Datang Finance”) (Note a)  FELAERHARAA ([ AEMH )
(Miita 1,408,080 1,200,000
Datang Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. ("Datang RERFREARAF ([ AEEER
Commercial Factoring”) (Note a) B|)(Mizta) 70,000 70,000
1,478,080 1,270,000
Interest expense on loans from subsidiaries of China AREAEEENHBARERNFIE (if)
Datang Group it
Datang Finance RE#H . 2,776 7,233
Datang Financial Lease Co., Ltd. (" Datang Financial REREHEERARA(XEME
Lease”) ) 15,398 21,922
Datang Commercial Factoring AEBERE 3,163 2,671
21,337 31,826
Interest income from a subsidiary of China Datang Group FHEAEEENBARERDEN (i)
FIEHWA
Datang Finance AEET 5,195 10,640
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a)
(Continued)

(i)

All transactions with related parties were conducted at
prices and on terms mutually agreed by the parties involved,
which are determined as follows:

Sales of goods and rendering of services to China (i)
Datang Group and its associates and joint ventures,

purchases of goods and receiving of services from

China Datang Group and its associates and joint

ventures (excluding property leases)

a. Pricing policies for products: The pricing policies
for products are as follows:

(a) the bidding price where the bidding process
is required; or

(b) where no bidding process is involved, the
market price.

b. Pricing policies for concession operations
(desulfurisation and denitrification) services: The
desulfurisation and denitrification tariffs under the
concession operation services are determined
based on the government-prescribed price, while
the prices for by-products are determined based on
the market price. In respect of the auxiliary services
offered to the Group by China Datang Group under
the desulfurisation and denitrification concession
operations, the price is determined in accordance
with the costs of human resources in connection
with the auxiliary services and related management
expenses as well as relevant maintenance expenses
for the equipment of power plants and with reference
to the industry average level.

C. Pricing policies for services other than concession
operations services: The pricing policies for these
kinds of services are as follows:

(a) the bidding price where the bidding process
is required; or

(b) where no bidding process is involved, the
market price.

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

35. FABEAGZH ()

EXRBAZS

BB IR SZESRETRE
HREMERIERFETT - B
TRIAERE :

FPEXERERRESHELF
HERYRIEHER  FAREX
EREHRERELFBRERNE
EZRE (TEBEMERER)

a. B EEBRK  EmA
EBBRRMT

SN

7B SR AR
FF o Bl #7175 A
& 8

(a)

()  WAYREEE
F BIsiTH 5
-

b. FatAS & (i R e ) IR
BREEBR « FrgE
ARAE TR T B B B A B (B
R REEREE - &8
EmEBNATSEREE
MEE - PEREEE
1) 7N 6% [ 42 A0 5 A N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SRR M (&)

31 December 2021

—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BBEAZH ()

(CONTINUED)

(a) Significant related party transactions (a) EXRBAXH(#E)
(Continued)

(i) Sales of goods and rendering of services to China (i) FBREXERERRESHE LA
Datang Group and its associates and joint ventures, HERYRIEHRET - IPREX
purchases of goods and receiving of services from BESfERSWELEBREEYER
China Datang Group and its associates and joint EZRE (T BEMEHRE) (&)

(ii)

ventures (excluding property leases) (Continued)

d.

Pricing policy for procurement of equipment: In
respect of equipment procurement from China
Datang Group, in most circumstances, bidding
procedures shall apply for the determination of the
price. Only in exceptional circumstances, such as
urgent purchases by the Group, bidding procedures
can be skipped by the Group where the purchase
price shall be determined by experts of the Group
based on the fair market value and historical records
of the procurement price.

Financial services

Datang Finance provides loan services, deposit services
and other financial services to the Group.

Pricing policy: The pricing policies for financial services
are as follows:

(ii)

d. RIGIRBIEEHE © B
hERESEENRERE
MmE - ZEIFHN T EIRER
HRIEREFETEER - #F
AEBRBFELRRSEFR
WIBR T T e TR AR
B BERBEBRHAE
SENERZ2BMEAA
ERAMELRBERET
BE -

2R

KIE B A A & B 1R 12 3R
% FRREG R EG SRS o

EBBER A LSRR E B
RIAE

(a) the interest rate for the Group's deposits with (a) waEREARIRITAM
Datang Finance shall not be lower than the BEERNE - REBEK
equivalent deposit interest rate as provided by other & B 5 17 SRR ) B AN
financial institutions in the PRC by reference to the AP B E M s P iR
benchmark interest rates published by the PBOC; HEOREGFRFE

(b) the interest rate for loans granted to the Group (b) K2EPBARRITAM
by Datang Finance shall not be higher than the HEEFE - KEFEI KM
equivalent loan interest rate as charged by other REBETHERFEAD
financial institutions in the PRC by reference to the SRR B E A4S Bl
benchmark interest rates published by the PBOC; F U R 9 [B] 5 B R A =&
and K&

(c) the fees charged by Datang Finance for the provision (c) KB A AN 5 B R

of financial services to the Group other than deposit
services and loan services shall not be higher than
the rate charged by other financial institutions in the
PRC for the same or similar type of services.

China Datang Group Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Datang
Capital”) provides financial leasing and commercial

17 SRS B B SRR TS LA SN
F) EL b < 8 AR 75 P OB
ERTSaNTEEMS
B S B R AR SR R R
B ARFE AT UEREY B 2K o

TEAEEEEAERBERAR
(TKEEXRMAEERHERE

HEMEERERS

factoring services to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial services (Continued)

Pricing Policy: Datang Capital has undertaken to
provide the aforementioned financial services to
the Group based on the following pricing principles:

(a) financial leasing service — the rent paid
by the Group to Datang Capital includes
(i) procurement costs and (ii) interest. The

relevant interest is determined based on the
benchmark interest rates for borrowings as
implemented by the PBOC;

(b) loan service — the interest rate for loans
granted to the Group by Datang Financial
Lease and Datang Commercial Factoring
shall not be higher than the equivalent loan
interest rate as charged by other financial
institutions in the PRC by reference to the
benchmark interest rates published by the
PBOC. During this year, all the loans granted
form Datang Financial Lease and Datang
Commercial Factoring are unsecured.

The above services are provided by Datang Financial
Lease and Datang Commercial Factoring, the
subsidiaries of Datang Capital, respectively.

Purchases of lease services from China Datang
Group

Pricing policy: The rental for property leases is
determined via negotiations between the parties
with reference to the market rental for properties
with similar conditions.

1 75 R R P ot (4B

31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H

35. FABEAGZH ()
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(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. RARAZH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) RABKSREEREER
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial B BHmERPIEEN RZF
statements, the outstanding balances with related parties T FERZEZEFF+ZA=F
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: —H - BB REBERET
2021 2020
“E--F “Z-%
RMB'000 AMB1000
AREFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents HeNBLEEY
Datang Finance AEHG 1,115,765 1,361,014
Trade and bills receivables g RWTENEKERE
China Datang Group HEAEEE 6,632,222 6,431,807
The associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group ~ FEIAESEABE AR 547,274 471,401
7,179,496 6,903,208
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets EARE  HtERRERAEE
Prepayments EEFE
China Datang Group FEAEEE 17,356 18,827
Other receivables H i I RIE
China Datang Group mEAEEE 51,116 63,995
The associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group ~ FEAEEEAKL AT 866 947
51,982 64,942
69,338 83,769
Other non-current assets HihERHEE
China Datang Group FEREEE 33,545 28,228
Contract assets REEE
China Datang Group REAEEE 173,777 543,535
The associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group ~ FEIAESEBEABE AR 21,397 8,321
195,174 551,856
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans AERTRERNEMEN
(other than lease liabilities) (FEEHEER)
Datang Finance RENTH 22,780 20,500
Datang Financial Lease AEREHE 80,750 369,305
Datang Commercial Factoring ABHERE 70,000 70,000
173,530 459,805
Trade and bills payables B RAREANENR
China Datang Group TEAERE 1,283,103 1,297,813
The associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group ~ REAEEEAKL AT 28,449 55,418
1,311,552 1,353,231
Other payables and accruals Hith e E R R E A
China Datang Group HEAEEE 115,070 625,295
The associates and joint ventures of China Datang Group ~ REAEEBAKE AT 10,354 8,257
125,424 633,552
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Transactions with other government-
related entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government and numerous government authorities and
agencies (collectively referred to as “government-related
entities”). China Datang, the parent and ultimate holding
company of the Company, is a PRC state-owned enterprise
and these government-related entities are also considered
the related parties of the Group in this respect.

Apart from the transactions with China Datang Group
mentioned above, the Group also conducts some business
activities with other government-related entities in the
ordinary course of business. These transactions are carried
out on terms similar to those that would be entered into
with non-government-related entities.

The Group prices its services and products based on
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established
its approval process for the sale of goods, provision of
services, purchase of products and receiving of services
and its financing policy for borrowings. Such approval
process and financing policy do not depend on whether
the counterparties are government-related entities or not.

Having considered the possibility for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group's approval
processes and financing policy, and what information would
be necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of
the relationship on the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors are of the opinion that further information
about the following transactions that are collectively
significant is required for disclosure:

— Deposits and borrowings

Except for the cash and cash equivalents deposited
in Datang Finance and Wing Lung Bank in Hong
Kong, the Group deposits most of its cash in
government-related financial institutions, and also
obtains short-term and long-term loans from these
financial institutions in the ordinary course of
business. The interest rates of the bank deposits
and loans are regulated by the PBOC.

R (8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
—E_—%+-A=t+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. FBAXR(E)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Compensation of key management (d) FREETEETEABBOH
personnel of the Group A
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMF T
Short term employee benefits G HifE B &7 6,810 6,100
Post-employment benefits BEER 18 1R A 503 437
Total compensation paid to YRNFEEEEAEN
key management personnel Exa ks 7,313 6,537
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EENESHEAE—FTFHBH
are included in note 9 to the financial statements. ARG SRR 9 o
(e) Property leases (e) PMEHE
As a lessee, the Group leases buildings for desulfurisation ERBETA - REBRKERGHE
and denitrification facilities from Datang Financial Lease HEXTRRKEEETBEER
and some power plants from the China Datang Group, with HEMERRBHEKENEF -
a general lease term of 20 years. The related right-of-use THEHRBE A20F - @A F
assets and lease liabilities, payment of lease liabilities as at RAEEENHEERE - RIEH
the end of the reporting period and the related expenses AENNHEES ERRFAER
recognised during the year are as follows: KRB AT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 289,940 308,214
Lease liabilities HEAE 304,180 318,255
2021 2020
—E-—F —EC-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMFT
Depreciation charge ERHE 24,190 23,714
Interest expense FEERA 12,976 13,606
Payments (N 32,702 34,394
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36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISR MIsE (&)
31 December 2021
=T m el

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. EaEBoMNEMTIR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the Group's RBEHR AEESEIeRTARN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BREEWT :
follows:
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
“§--E{Zf=t-§ “E-TE-f-1-f
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
Financial assets at through other Financial {hrough other
amortised  comprehensive assels at amorfised ~ comprehensive
Financial assets cost income Toal cost income Total
WAAEETEAE
RERANHENS SBHARMEAN it AT TR
SHEE FEE aleREE ait BEE At
FRIIB'000 FRIIB'000 RIB'000 AMBO00 AMBO00 AMBO00
AEETT AEETT AR NEETT (F&F1 NEETT
Equity investments designated at fair value BRMAR BRI EAERAL
through other comprehensive income e YatEERE - 26,309 26,309 - 28914 28914
Financial assets included in other non-current TARREREEENSRAR
assets > > = 9,263 - 9,263
Trade and bils receivables BRRUGERRIZE 7,980,440 180,493 8,169,933 7,659,885 968,588 8,628,443
Financial assets included in prepayments, other T ATAEUE - AMEUGIEAL
receivables and other assets EEtopis 176,009 - 176,009 112126 - 112126
Restricted cash XRale 121,604 S 121,604 61707 5 61707
Cash and cash equivalents BETELSEN 1,244,882 - 1,244,882 1,531,739 - 1,631,739
9,531,935 206,82 9,738,617 9,380,700 997,502 10,378,202
31 December
+=HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBBRRATEN  RERAED

cRAE SRIAE TRIEME

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥FT AREFT

Trade and bills payables B S FIEMEN T 4,579,064 4,904,475
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE e IR A E ST &

payables and accruals NerRtBE 776,886 1,384,583

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITERMEMER
and other loans 5,952,786 6,070,889
11,308,736 12,359,947
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021

—=

37.

—f#+—-_A=+—H
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments are as follows:

EMTRARRENMLRR
EER

LRRE

AEEMERTAREEMNAAEED
2 (N

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE DAEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEB--F —TTE S %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETFT ARMTT AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets included SAEMIERBEER
in other non-current assets CREE - 9,253 - 8,807
Financial liabilities cREE
Long term interest-bearing REFTBRITERNE
bank borrowings and other WER(TBEHESR
loans (other than lease &) (ffiF28)
liabilities) (note 28) 1,889,987 2,591,061 1,879,888 2,568,420

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets , trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, and the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings and other loans, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value disclosure of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to management. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the corporate finance team analysed the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determined the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation was reviewed and
approved by management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SR M T (&)
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H
37. EMIRALAARENMLAR
EF®GE)

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

LRKREGE)

Fair value (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets included in other
non-current assets have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The fair values of the non-current portion of long term
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans (other
than lease liabilities) have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair values as a result of the
Group’s own non-performance risks for interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other loans as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of the bills receivable which are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using the one-year bank loan interest rate published
by the People's Bank of China.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income had
been measured based on valuation multiples of enterprise
value (“EV") to sales (“EV/sales"”) multiple, adjusted by
a discount for lack of marketability. The discount for lack
of marketability represents the amounts of premiums and
discounts determined by the Group that market participants
would take into account when pricing the investments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e

31 December 2021
—&+—-_A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

_=_

37.

(&)

Fair value (Continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

37.

EMTRARRENMLRR
EERGR)

LRMEGE)
E/\\\—z:_ﬂzﬁ—7—7ﬂz+ H +

—B HERTAGENEATATER
BAERREESRRMEDTOBELT :

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input Input Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EARTAEHER
fRER & AEH A RABEHBAEN ZHRE
Unlisted equity  Valuation Average 2021: Nil* Nil* (2020: 10%)
investments multiples EV/SALES (2020: 4.0x) increase/decrease in multiple would
multiple of result in increase/decrease in fair
peers value by Nil* (2020: 6%)
JEETMRIERE (HERH AL hEEES —TZ—F: T THZZEZTF : 10%)
B E WA B (_g_gi : 4.0x) FEILM, R HEBA R EEE
B FEEL nomPE(ZEFF : 6%)
Discount 2021: Nil* Nil* (2020: 10%)
for lack of (2020: 25%) increase/decrease in discount would

marketability

RZREENT —E-—F:E*

10 (ZZE_FF : 25%)

result in decrease/increase in fair
value by Nil* (2020: 3%)

TH(ZF_FF : 10%)
WM, ED - BERD R EER
D EME(ZTZFF : 3%)

*

In January 2022, the Group and China Datang Group Overseas
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Datang Overseas Investment”) entered
into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, the
Group has agreed to transfer, and Datang Overseas Investment
has agreed to acquire the 10% equity interest in China Datang
Overseas Power Operating Co., Ltd. held by the Group with the
amount of RMB26,389,000, and the fair value of the unlisted
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income was measured with the contract price
accordingly as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B AR R M e ()

31 December 2021

2 —F#+—-A=+—H
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 37. EMTALARKREMAOARAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HEHR(E)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy LREEFR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRERAESESHMTAENRAAEER
of the Group's Financial Instruments: SER
Assets measured at fair value DARBEHEMNEE

Fair value measurement using

RANTARBESHTR

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTENEE ETUBRGAEN ETTUBRHAEH
(#-8) (#=%) (%=%) At
RIMB’000 RIMB'000 RIMB000 RMB000
AREFR AREFR AREFR AREFT
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=—-F+ZA=1-H
Equity investments designated at fair BEANAABHEIZAHEHH
value through other comprehensive NEfira E BRI A
income = 26,389 - 26,389
Trade and bills receivables B ENERE R - 180,493 - 180,493
As at 31 December 2020 RZFZFFFA=1—H
Equity investments designated at fair EEANL A BEFEEEEHH
value through other comprehensive MNEMEr A RE N ERRE
income - - 28,914 28,914
Trade and bills receivables BHRNFENERRE - 968,588 - 968,588

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

the year are as follows:

AEANE=RAABEAENESHN

T~

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARFT
Equity investments at fair value through 8EANAABEFEBEE
other comprehensive income — Bt AR fhAR S Uas B0 2
unlisted: WE—R L :
At 1 January R—A—H 28,914 7,658
Total gains recognised in other EAthfr e WA TR W 25 4258
comprehensive income (2,525) 1,256
Addition HE - 20,000
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 26,389 28,914
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B H5 Rk Y
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31 December 2021

— = —

—=

37.

—Ft-A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed

37. eMIAARREMARE
HER(E)
LDREBEEFRE)
BEAREEMEE

Fair value measurement using

FANTANEESRHE

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMENEE EEZVERBAER EETUERRAER
(%-#) (%=#) (B=4) fif
RIB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ABETR AEETT
As at 31 December 2021 e S e oy Sl
Financial assets included in other non- AR ERBEENEREAE
current assets = = = =
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZEF+-A=1-H
Financial assets included in other non- SARMIERBEENEHEAE
current assets - 8,807 - 8,807
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed BEARBEENAR
Fair value measurement using
RANTANBESHHE
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERMENEE ETVRZBAER EZTUBRRAER
(F-§) (5=4) (£=4) CH
RIB’000 RIB’000 RIMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2021 RZFZ—F+ZA=1—H
Long term interest-bearing bank R EHIERNELER(F
borrowings and other loans (other AENEER)
than lease liabilities) - 1,879,888 - 1,879,888
As at 31 December 2020 RZFZFTFFZA=1—H
Long term interest-bearing bank RE BRIEFNELLER (R
borrowings and other loans (other AERERR)
than lease liabilities) - 2,568,420 - 2,568,420
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38.

NCWESTOFWNANCVH_SUWEMENTS(CONﬂNUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings and other loans, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Generally, senior management of the Company meets regularly to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure
to these risks. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Management of the Company reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term
debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed
and floating interest rate borrowings in order to manage
its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other loans, restricted cash, and cash and
cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income
and expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as
earned/incurred.

As at 31 December 2021, if there had been a general
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 10
basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's consolidated pre-tax profit would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB2,041,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,641,000) and there had been no impact on
other components of the consolidated equity, except for
retained profits, of the Group. The estimated 10 basis
points, increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in market
interest rates over the period until the next annual year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain significant
foreign currency deposits, trade receivables, and trade
payables denominated in United States Dollars (“USD"),
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD"), and Indian Rupee (“INR").
The treasury management department of the Group closely
monitors the international foreign currency market on the
change of exchange rates and takes this into consideration
when depositing foreign currency deposits and borrowing
loans. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had significant
exposures to USD and INR.

The Group has transactional currency exposures which arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The exposure
was insignificant for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 80% (2020:
71%) of the total trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, and contract assets were due from China Datang
Group, the Group's largest customer. As the Group's
major customers are China Datang'’s subsidiaries or other
state-owned enterprises, the Group believes that they are
reliable and of high credit quality, and hence, there is no
significant credit risk with these customers. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Senior management of the Company keeps reviewing and
assessing the creditworthiness of the Group’s existing
customers on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

R (8
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B iR MY e ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+-_A=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MERBEERBEMEE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (#8)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) {EFARBR(IE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BABRBEHOLIREBE (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=—%+=A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 AR5
Bx RERMEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
L K82 K&3 EENpS fif

RMB000  RMB'000 RMB00  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTL  ARBTZ  ARETR  ARETr  AREFx

Contract assets* AREE - - - 267,191 267,191
Trade and bills receivables* E SR ENE LSS 180,493 - - 8,282,405 8,462,898
Financial assets included in STAEAZE - At REERE
prepayments, other receivables and HEENSRAE
other assets
- Normal** ~-E&* 117,510 58,499 - - 176,009
- Doubtful** [l - - - _ _
Restricted cash ﬂﬁ%ﬂfﬁé
— Not yet past due —(iR3H 121,604 - - - 121,604
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEN
- Not yet past due ~REH 1,244,882 - - - 1,244,882
1,664,489 58,499 - 8,549,596 10,272,584
As at 31 December 2020 R_B_TF+-_A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EABSER
BX RERBEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
2y k2 &3 BHAE At
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
ANREFT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFfT  AREFT
Contract assets* aREAE" - - - 741,369 741,369
Trade and hills receivables* BSRUENRURE 968,588 - - 7932517 8,901,105
Financial assets included in STABAZE - At REERE
prepayments, other receivables and HEENSRAE
other assets
- Normal** —-E&* 112,126 - - - 112,126
- Doubtful** —TE - - - - -
Restricted cash XEHERE
- Not yet past due ~AR3IH 67,727 = = = 67,727
Cash and cash equivalents BeNRLEEN
- Not yet past due ~{hR3E 1,531,739 - - - 1,531,739
2,680,180 - - gT3886 11,354,066
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

* %

For contract assets and trade receivables to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements,
respectively.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed
in note 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
to meet its debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability
to obtain external financing to meet its committed future
capital expenditure.

s R MR ()
31 December 2021
T —®#+—_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IS MYt (&)
31 December 2021
- —&F+—-fA=+—H

38.

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MEREEEBEMBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEETERBE($E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as KRB —FR-_ZT_FTF+=
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, based on the contractual A=+—08 AEEMNEHAE
undiscounted payments, is as follows: R HE & [ AR 53R A R &9 21 A7
ARRIAT
31 December 2021
ZE--5+ZA=+—H
Within 1to 2 2to 5 More than
1 year years years 5 years Total
—£xn -—-E@MF WEREF IZFEUE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
Lease liabilities nEam 34,962 34,962 104,887 271,612 446,423
Trade and bills payables B o EMNFIBRENZE 4,579,064 = = - 4,579,064
Financial liabilities included &t AE o & SN FE St
in other payables and ERMCRAE
accruals 776,886 - - - 776,886
Short term interest-bearing & Bzt BRITEZME M
bank borrowings and ER(BRBEEEEMN)
other loans (excluding
lease liabilities) 3,754,699 - - - 3,754,699
Long term interest-bearing K SSRITHE T E A
bank borrowings and EF(BRAEAEN)
other loans (excluding
lease liabilities) 242,986 873,769 1,154,553 5,308 2,276,616
9,388,507 908,731 1,250,440 276,920 11,833,688
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SE e

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

_=_

(&)

31 December 2021
—&+=-A=+—H

38. M¥EPEEEHRMER

(#8)
(d)

e En P B (48)

31 December 2020

—ECEEF_A=+—H
Within 1102 2105  More than
1 year years years 5 years Total
—FR —ZME WERE  AfENE At
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
EETT ARETT ARMFT AREFr ARETT
Lease liabilities HEEE 33,938 33,938 101,815 298,455 468,146
Trade and bills payables BHRMFENENRE 4,904,475 = = - 4,904,475
Financial liabilities included in STAR MM TR ERT
other payables and accruals BRmMeRAEE 1,384,583 = = - 1,384,583
Short term interest-bearing bank Hﬂuirgﬁfﬂ FAEA
borrowings and other loans ER(BREEREN)
(excluding lease liabilities) 3,160,145 - - - 3,160,145
Long term interest-bearing bank  REFHBHRITETMEM
borrowings and other loans é?ﬂ(ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?l\)
(excluding lease liabilities) 262,572 711,544 2,075,320 103,021 3,152,457
9,745,713 745,482 2,177,135 401,476 13,069,806
Capital management (e) BFEER

The Group's primary objectives for managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratio in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debts. No change was made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIS Mot

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

38. MHEREEHEMBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (48)
(e) Capital management (Continued) (e) BEXEE(HE)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBENEEEBLREETE
is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt KRB FERUER
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals jJD%ﬂ‘&i%g‘ AT H - EHFEEE
and interest-bearing bank borrowings and other loans, less B O RENRIBMENER « B
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash. Capital includes F’Eﬁ RIEFNFERT B A LA RET B4R
the equity attributable to owners of the parent and non- TERMEMEFRIR S ME €
controlling interests stated in the consolidated statement %f‘i%fﬂxﬁﬁ%‘lfi@ EENOE
of financial position. B EARR KT G RARER
AL MR A o
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a REENEBABHEEAELL
healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. The RIERERERKE - AZIFHE
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, but are % o NEBEFRIAEZEHREE
not limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and BARRABRTRRBSREFK
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they fDEMEﬂW FIHAR IR R R B A
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking CHERTIERRITRELES
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing IEK@M&M%&ﬁ{IEHMﬂé
plans, if necessary. The gearing ratios as at the end of the AE(MBERE NEHREER
reporting periods were as follows: MEEBBLERMOT :
2021 2020
—E——fF T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Trade and bills payables (note 25) E SN ZIBMEN 2T
(Htst25) 4,579,064 4,904,475
Other payables and accruals E M sRIBEFERT & B
(note 26) (Kfzt26) 982,683 1,789,559
Interest-bearing bank borrowings and 5t B RITE M EAM E
other loans (note 28) (Kix28) 5,952,786 6,070,889
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BENMREEEY
(note 24) (Kfzt24) (1,244,882) (1,631,739)
Less: restricted cash (note 24) B RIREIIRE (ffat24) (121,604) (67,727)
Net debt ERFE 10,148,047 11,165,457
Total equity Py 6,755,576 7,339,278
Capital and net debt B ARFETS FEE 16,903,623 18,504,735
Gearing ratio BEAMGBHE 60% 60%
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 January 2022, the Company and Datang Overseas Investment
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, the
Company has agreed to transfer, and Datang Overseas Investment
has agreed to acquire the 10% equity interest in China Datang
Overseas Power Operating Co., Ltd. held by the Company for a
consideration of RMB26,389,000. The above transaction has not
been completed as at the reporting date.

On 31 March 2022, the Board of Directors proposed to distribute the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.0298
per share (before tax) of the Company in cash to the shareholders.
The proposal is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
2021 annual general meeting of the Company.

Apart from above, as of the report date, the Group had no other
significant events after the reporting period that need to be
disclosed.

39.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IR M ()

31 December 2021
—E-—F+=ZRA=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company is as follows:

FLFMERRA R

ARBFHRRARERAT

2021 2020
ZEZ-F —ECEE
RMB'000 AMB'000
AREFT ABEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment %% - BEANZE 5,588,149 5,960,730
Intangible assets WEE 167,424 169,993
Right-of-use assets ﬁ)ﬂ?’éé}z ‘ 302,734 315,578
Equity investments designated at fair value EE /Rﬁﬂ 2 AHEEA
through other comprehensive income iR e W AR A 26,389 28,914
Investments in subsidiaries NG jﬁf]?xé“ 585,010 687,810
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE 42,677 33,621
Other non-current assets HioenedeE 518,592 639,363
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 7,230,975 7,835,909
CURRENT ASSETS ROEE
Inventories FE 80,175 64,444
Contract assets ARBE 64,732 197,808
Trade and bills receivables %%JEH%AIETHJEWTB? 5,514,102 5,308,399
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets ~ TENZUE - At EKFIE R E i EE 1,641,142 1,166,938
Restricted cash xﬁE%‘Jﬁi 32,316 6,140
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEFEN 1,010,998 1,086,585
Total current assets TBEELE 8,343,465 7,830,314
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables Z S EMNZUBNERZE 2,378,748 2,295,747
Other payables and accruals H it TN E B R 1,116,876 1,597,938
Provisions BB - 4,500
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERTER 2,980,627 1,944,393
Income tax payable ERFMEH - 31,200
Total current liabilities REBRELRE 6,476,251 5,873,778
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,867,214 1,956,536
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ EE&ERTBHAR 9,098,189 9,792,445
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES QF}EEJEF
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITIER 2,057,621 2,724,372
Other non-current liabilities Hipensak 20,327 22,487
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELR 2,077,948 2,746,859
Net assets BEFE 7,020,241 7,045,586
EQUITY R
Share capital R 2,967,542 2,967,542
Reserves (Note) FRfE (P EE) 4,052,699 4,078,044
Total equity EREE 7,020,241 7,045,536
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41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SE e

31 December 2021

(&)

—E_—F+=ZRA=+—H
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. FAFMBERAFT(E)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: BsE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RAvlFEERZNT
Statutory
Capital surplus  Fair value Retained
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
EAfE ZERHFEE AAEERE  AIRAE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT AEMFrn AREFrT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-FTH—F—H 1,299,413 368,312 2,260 2,125,602 3,795,587
Total comprehensive income RENEEE - - 1,067 381,693 382,760
Appropriation to statutory surplus BT BEHE
reserve - 38,169 - (38,169) =
Dividends declared to owners of MEAREEATIRRE
the parent = = = (100,303) (100,303)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H 1,299,413 406,481 3,327 2,368,823 4,078,044
As at 1 January 2021 R_E-—F—H—H 1,299,413 406,481 3,327 2,368,823 4,078,044
Total comprehensive income LREWEEE - - (2,146) 109,153 107,007
Appropriation to statutory surplus ~ BE AT RHHE
reserve - 10,915 - (10,915) -
Dividends declared to owners of MERFAEEAERRE
the parent = = - (132,352) (132,352)
As at 31 December 2021 NZE-_—F+-FA=1t—H 1,299,413 417,396 1,181 2,334,709 4,052,699
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41. HEMBEE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 31 March 2022.
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DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

fe 5% L4 ARl AR A

“2021 AGM"

(2021 FEREBAFAE |

'

“Articles of Association”

[RAEIERE ]

“Board”
[Exg]

“China Datang”

[PEXE]

“China Datang Group”

[PEREEER]

"Company"”

NS

"Controlling Shareholder”

[ AR

“"CSRC"

HPEEES

"Datang Capital”

[KEEA]
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the annual general meeting of the Company for the year of 2021, to be
held at 3:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30 June 2022 at No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

RRAFHER202266 A30R (2B TF =R =+9RNPEILRTEER
EMBER1208 BAB2021 FERRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company, as amended on 9
September 2021
RAAR2021F9 AIBETH AR ER

the board of Directors of the Company

AAREEE

China Datang Corporation Ltd. (FEIKELBEERAF]), a state-owned
enterprise established on 9 April 2003 in accordance with the PRC
laws and the Controlling Shareholder and a promoter of the Company
FEAEEEAERAR - B—HER2003F4 9B RIEFBAEKILHEF
¥ - WARRBIRZERARR RERA

China Datang and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group)

o B K e EL P A B (R B SN)

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (KERBEZEERD
ABR/A 7)) which was converted to a joint stock limited company on 26
June 2015, unless otherwise stated, including its predecessor China
Datang Corporation Environment Technology Co., Ltd. (f B KE£E R
BREMAMRAT) (a limited liability company established on 25 July 2011
pursuant to the PRC laws and was renamed to Datang Technology
Industry Co., Ltd. (KERIBEXBEMRAF) in September 2013 and
further to Datang Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. (KERHREZ S
B AP /A7) in December 2013)

RERBEXSEEROABR AR - K201556 A26 A KHIK L ARNDER
NA - BRIENESEME -  GREEENISPEAZEERSEMERR
RAI(RR201MEF7A25 B IRBEHEDEERNZONABREME LR - R2013F9HE
LBAERREZARAR » WN2013F 128 E— S ERLAAERFERE
SEEBERAR)

has the meaning ascribed under the Listing Rules, and in this annual
report, refers to the controlling shareholder of the Company, China
Datang

H EMARAIATETHRE - RAFRIERR A ZERRER R BEARE

China Securities Regulatory Commission (FEZBAHEEEELZES),
a regulator responsible for supervising and regulating the Chinese
securities market

TEREAFEEEEZEY ARERBRMRETERASTMENEERE

China Datang Group Capital Holding Co., Ltd. (PEIKEEBEEARZERE
fR/27|]), a company established on 30 November 2011 in accordance
with the PRC laws, and a subsidiary of China Datang, the Controlling
Shareholder

PEAEEEERZERAMRAT - R2011411 A30 B IRIEFBIERMK
NE] - RIERREHBAEME AR



"Datang Finance”

[ RER7

“Datang Huayin”

[ REFER]

"Datang Renewable”

[ REF#TEEIR ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

"

“Domestic Share(s)

[AER]

"EMC"

"EPC”

[EPCJSk Ti2#8%E |

DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)

e i Al ()

China Datang Finance Co., Ltd. (FEIKEEEH AR AR, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Datang

FEAEEENBKBRAF @ RPBEFMERIOBERAF - FEAEHIE
Ex- 10N

Datang Huayin Electric Power Co., Ltd. (KEZEREHBRHER QD
A]), a joint stock limited company established on 22 March 1993 in
accordance with the PRC laws and a subsidiary of China Datang, which
is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600744)
REZERENRMDAERRE - N1993F3 B22 BIREH BUEREKR MM
BRATE  RPEREMBAR - R EBEHRZ S Em(IRG RS
600744)

China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Ltd. (FEIAEEE
HEER D BR/AE)), a joint stock limited company established on 23
September 2004 in accordance with the PRC laws and a subsidiary of
China Datang, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1798)

FRARXESEFERRMDBRAT - R2004F9A23 8 RIEFBEIEREK L
HRMNBRAR - BPBRKEMBAR @ WARBRAMER MR RS
1798)

the director(s) of the Company

ARAREZR

ordinary shares in the Company’s share capital, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB
RATRATFEREEARE.00THTBER - AARERE R

a business model that the energy conservation companies provide
energy-conservation services to customers according to the energy
conservation service contracts entered into with customers, and
recover the investment and gain profit from the energy efficiency
achieved upon the completion of energy conservation facilities
refurbishment

B A2 AR 75 2 B4R & 6l
WEETBE R MRS 12 1
R

BEFAIUMERERBER - REFPRHEEAERS @ X
SEVETRE Mz P M IR E MRS F B B — R &

contracting arrangement whereby the contractor is commissioned
by the customer to carry out works, such as design, procurement,
construction and trial operations, either through the contractor'’s
own employees or by subcontracting part or all of the works, and
be responsible for the quality, safety, timely delivery and cost of the
project

Jit RERRE  ABRPZERER - ABREREP 2&RTET
KRB MIMAISEIE(ERERBAREAS ZEESNSBIHS
FrIELIIE) UHEBZ2EE %2 THRKAAER

Bl
X
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7T noou

“Group”, “our Group”, “we" or “us”

[ RSB Ikl AP

"H Share(s)”

[HA

"Joint Company Secretary” or “Joint

Company Secretaries”
RN 3

"Latest Practicable Date”

[ERIEATTH A

“Listing”

=l

“Listing Rules”

[EmAAI

“"Model Code”
[1Z4E<FRI]

“Nanjing Environmental Protection”

[ IR IR

"PBOC" or “People’'s Bank of China”

[PEARRT

“PRC"

(B

"Prospectus”

[1BR R
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the Company and all or any of our subsidiaries (as the context so
requires)

ARBREABIEPEFN—FHMBAR(RXEME)

overseas listed foreign shares in our ordinary share capital with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each, subscribed for and traded in Hong
Kong dollars and listed and traded on the Stock Exchange
AATEBRRAREREBEARE1.00THEIN ETINER - ABTITR
BRER  WTHRBXMETRER

joint company secretary/secretaries of the Company
RARWEEARWE

25 April 2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this annual report for ascertaining certain information contained in this
annual report

202244250 - BIRZARFRANEDAIEE EFAEE TEMO&EATH
H

listing of our H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FPIEOHAR PO B 2 BT =R T

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt R FTEE % LR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
B ITAEZETESF R HNELETA

Datang Nanjing Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (KfEF
FIRREREREML AR, a limited liability company established on 14
December 2011 in accordance with the PRC laws and a subsidiary of
the Company

AREERRRBMEEREMELR - A—HER201MF12 148 REBEHEIEE
KRB BREART - WARRTMEARF

the People’s Bank of China
B ARRTT

the People’'s Republic of China, unless it has specifically specified, it
excludes Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan

mEARANMB - RIFFRIFE  AXPIBEEEFIIITRE RBP4
PITH RIS E

the prospectus of the Company dated 3 November 2016 with respect
to the listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRAFHER2016F11 A3HNBKRER - AT BAARARBER AT ER
i)



"Reporting Period”
[¥#REH

"RMB”
[TAR®]

“SASAC”

[BHEZ |

"Senior Management”
[SRERE]

“SFC”

sk
Az m 8

“SFO”

[ &7 REAR15RB

“Shareholder(s)”

[A& 3]

"Share(s)”

[ ]

"Stock Exchange”

[ B 32 AT

"Supervisor(s)”
Committee”

[EEE k[ EEE

"o

[% ]

or "Supervisory

DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS (CONTINUED)
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the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BLEFE

Renminbi, the current lawful currency of the PRC

AEH# - PEEEEE

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the State Council of the PRC (FRIBEBKRNEEEEEEELZER),
responsible for the management of state assets
TEESREEEEEEEELZET  AEEEREEE

senior management of the Company
AAREREERE

the Securities and Futures Commission
BERHEEBEREZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BREPIESTEBFRIBIRD - ETERHER] - fFRSAE M &K

holder(s) of the Share(s)
A A

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the share
capital of the Company, composed of the Domestic Shares and H
Shares

RRRRATEREEARE1.00THE B - ARNERRHIRFTAEK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBBMERSAERRAT

supervisor(s) or supervisory committee of the Company

RAREEREFEE
per cent
Bkl

If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of entities or ~ RABE I T sk ¥ AT XA MME EE T
enterprises established in the PRC and their English translations, the ZEEZTRA » HAR X EATEALE -
Chinese names shall prevail.
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LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY
RERREXEERMN AR
ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Yanwen (Chairman) (appointed as the chairman in June 2021)
Mr. Tian Dan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jungi (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Wu Daging (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Chen Kan (appointed in September 2021)
Mr. Song Yunpeng (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Qu Bo (resigned as Chairman in June 2021, and resigned as non-

executive Director in September 2021)
Mr. Liu Quancheng (resigned in September 2021)
Mr. Liu Ruixiang (resigned in September 2021)
Mr. Li Zhenyu (resigned in September 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ye Xiang
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian
Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Huang Yuan (Chairman) (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Zhang Xuefeng (appointed in September 2021)

Ms. Luo Li (appointed in January 2021)

Ms. Huo Yuxia (former chairman) (resigned in September 2021)
Mr. Liu Liming (resigned in September 2021)

Mr. Chen Li (resigned in January 2021)

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Mr. Wang Yanwen (appointed in June 2021)
Mr. Qu Bo (resigned in June 2021)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Yanwen
Mr. Liang Xiuguang

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Liang Xiuguang
Ms. Wong Sau Ping (FCG; HKFCG)

COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD
Audit Committee

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Ye Xiang

Mr. Chen Kan (appointed in September 2021)
Mr. Liu Quancheng (resigned in September 2021)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Wang Yanwen (Chairman) (appointed in June 2021)
Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Gao Jiaxiang

Mr. Qu Bo (resigned in June 2021)

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
Mr. Ye Xiang (Chairman)

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Wu Daging (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned in September 2021)
Strategy and Investment Committee

Mr. Tian Dan (Chairman) (appointed in September 2021)
Mr. Wang Jungi (appointed in September 2021)

Mr. Mao Zhuanjian

Mr. Wang Yanwen (resigned in September 2021)
Mr. Liu Ruixiang (resigned in September 2021)

REGISTERED OFFICE

No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

No. 120 Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

NEER(E)

SiEAx

TEXRE
RFEBETE

BEARRE

®A L+ (FCG : HKFCG)

EFEERTEA®
FitEAE

BRELE(FEE)

WL

BR{T ST A (FA2021 F9 R R T)
B2 A (R2021F9 ABHT)

REEAE

TEXRA(EE)(HR2021F6 FEERT)
FEHREEE

SER: S

& 9 4 (72202146 A BHET)

FHEERERE

WL E(EE)

FEHREELE
RAELRAE(R2021FIAEERT)
FEX LA (R2021F9 ABHT)

BREREERE

A EE(EE)(R2021F9AERT)
FERLEAE(R2021FIAEERT)
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FEX LA (R2021F9 ABHT)

RIE ML A (R2021F9 ABHT)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

NE|ER(E)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

16/F, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza,

No. 1 East Chang An Ave., Dong Cheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong law

Zhong Lun Law Firm LLP
4/F, Jardine House,
1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong

As to the PRC law

Zhong Lun Law Firm

23-31/F, South Tower of CP Center

20 Jin He East Avenue, Chaoyang District
Beijing, PRC

PRC PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Development Bank Corporation

China Development Bank 11088,

Fortune Resource International Center,

No. 16 Taipinggiao Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

Beijing Xuanwu Sub-branch

No. 314 Guang'anmennei Street, Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Beijing Haidian Sub-branch

No. 100 Zhongguancun East Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the PRC
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Xuanwu Sub-branch

No. 1A Xuanwumenwai Avenue,
Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.
Shangdi Sub-branch

No. 1 Shangdi Xinxi Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

Ningbo Bank Corporation

Beijing Zhongguancun Sub-Branch

1st Floor, Dream Laboratory, 1 Haidian Avenue,
Haidian District, Beijing

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Beijing Luoma City Sub-branch

F1, Block A, Fenghua Haojing,

No. 6-4 Guang'an Men Nei Da Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing

China Minsheng Bank Wanliu Branch
Block 2, 6 Wanliuzhong Road, Haidian District,
Beijing

Post Savings Bank of China
Dashanzi Branch
13 Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

China Merchant Bank
Beijing East Third Ring Branch
1 East Third Ring North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Bank of Jiangsu Beijing Branch
1 Building, Guangxi Homeland,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
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* CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RRIER ()

H SHARE REGISTRAR HEXBSEELE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited EBPRBLHFELBRAA
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, EABTE2RRNERI18IFAEMPL17E
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong 1712-17165%48

STOCK ABBREVIATION AND STOCK CODE B {7 1 38 B B 47 AKX 3%
DATANG ENVIRO (1272) RNERE(1272)

INVESTOR INQUIRIES REEES

Investor Hotline: +86 10 5838 9858 EEHE  +86 10 5838 9858
Fax: +86 10 5838 9860 fE& : +86 10 5838 9860
Website: www.dteg.com.cn #3uf + www.dteg.com.cn
E-mail: ir@dteg.com.cn EH : ir@dteg.com.cn

*  For identification purpose only * {EHER

284 2021 Annual Report
Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.*




AERERERKERGARLF

Datang Environment Industry Group Co., Ltd.




	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER
	COMPANY PROFILE
	FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INVESTOR RELATIONS
	REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	HUMAN RESOURCES
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	DEFINITION AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	BACK COVER



